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organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
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and courier services. 
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To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society
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• Agility

• Courage
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To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION
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Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.
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The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, 
KTN Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio, Berur FM and 

The Standard Media Group Foundation.

Our Brands

NOTHING STAYS HIDDEN
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Who We Are
The Standard Group PLC is a leading 
multi-media organization in Kenya, 
with investments in platforms spanning 
print operations, television, radio, digital 
and courier services.

To inspire lives 
through media 
and entertainment

• Achievement 
• Agility 

• Courage 
• Excellence 

• Innovation 

Voice of Society 

To disseminate 
media content 
that provides a 
voice to society

PURPOSE 

OUR VALUES

VISION
MISSION
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NOTICE OF THE 106TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the One Hundredth and Sixth (106th) Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of The Standard Group 
PLC (“the Company”) shall be held via electronic communication on Monday, 02nd September 2024 at 09.00 a.m. to transact the busi-
ness set out below:

1. CONSTITUTION OF THE MEETING
To read the notice convening the meeting and determine if a quorum is present.

2. ORDINARY BUSINESS:
(a)	 To receive, consider and if thought fit, adopt the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 

2023 together with the reports of the Chairman, the Group Chief Executive Officer and the Auditors’ thereon.
(b)	 To note that the Directors do not recommend payment of a Dividend for the year ended 31st December 2023.
(c)	 Election of Directors:

(i)	 Dr. James Boyd Mcfie having attained the age of seventy years, retires in accordance with the Code of Corporate Gover-
nance Practices for Issuers of Securities to the Public, 2015 and being eligible, offers himself for re-election as Director of 
the Company.

(ii)	 In accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Albert Sigei, who was appointed to fill a casual 
vacancy retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-election as Director of the Company

(iii)	 In accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Christine Muthui, who was appointed to fill a 
casual vacancy retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers herself for re-election as Director of the Company

(iv)	 In accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Leonie Von Elverfeldt, who was appointed to 
fill a casual vacancy retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers herself for re-election as Director of the Company.

(v)	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 769 of the Companies Act 2015, the following Directors being members of the Finance 
& Audit Committee, be elected to continue to serve as members of the said Committee, subject to re-election as Board 
Members: Mr. Albert Sigei, Ms. Christine Muthui, Mr. Chris Otundo and Dr. James McFie.

(d)	 To approve the remuneration of the Directors and Directors Remuneration Report and policy for the year ended 31st December 
2023.

(e)	 To appoint Grant Thornton LLP as the Company’s External Auditors for the ensuing financial year by virtue of Section 721(2) of 
the Companies Act 2015 and to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration.

3. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
To transact any other business of the Company for which due notice has been received

4. SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

i. 	 “THAT the directors of the Company be and are hereby unconditionally authorised to increase the nominal share capital of the 
Company by the creation of two hundred and eighty three million, six hundred and sixty one thousand, one hundred and twenty 
(283,661,120) new ordinary shares of Kshs.5.00 each which shall rank pari passu with and have rights equal to the existing ordi-
nary shares of the Company.”

ii. 	 “THAT the Directors be are hereby authorized, until the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company, to raise up 
to Kes.1.5 billion through a rights issue, subject to the receipt of any required regulatory approvals including but not limited to 
the approval of the Capital Markets Authority and the Nairobi Securities Exchange, by way of rights to the holders of the issued 
ordinary shares in the Company registered at the close of business on such date and at such prices as shall be determined by the 
directors and on such terms and conditions as the directors may determine.”

iii. 	 “THAT subject to the limit as to the amount of capital being raised and period set out in the preceding resolution (i) above and 
subject also to any regulatory approvals the Directors be and are hereby authorised to do the following:
a)	 Rights Issue

TO offer shares by way of rights to holders of ordinary shares of the Company in such a proportion to the existing shares 
held by them at close of business on such a date to be fixed by the Directors and at such price as shall be determined by the 
Directors and to deal with fractional shares in such a manner as they deem fit.

b)	 Directors’ powers to deal with untaken shares TO dispose off the shares not taken up by any shareholders or the shares not 
issued by reason of fractions of shares being disregarded, at such price and on such terms as they may consider expedient.”

iv. 	 “THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to sign all documents and to do all such things as may be 
necessary to give effect to the above resolutions, subject to the provisions of The Companies Act,2015, the Company’s Articles 
of Association and The Capital Markets ( Public Offers, Listings and Disclosures) Regulations,2023.”

v. 	 “THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby instructed to file all such returns and make all such entries as required by law in 
order to give effect to the matters resolved or otherwise determined at this meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

VICTORIA CHEROTICH

COMPANY SECRETARY

Date: 9th August 2024
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NOTES:

1. 	 The Standard Group PLC has convened and is conducting this virtual annual general meeting pursuant to Article 56 of the Com-
pany’s Articles of Association.

2. 	 Any Shareholders wishing to participate in the meeting should register for the AGM by dialing *483*901# on all mobile networks 
and follow the various prompts on the registration process. Shareholders will not incur any cost for such registration.

3. 	 To complete the registration process, shareholders will be required to have their ID/Passport Number used to purchase share(s) 
and/or their CDSC Account Number. For assistance shareholders should dial the following helpline number: (+254) 709 170 000 
from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. from Monday to Friday. Any shareholder domiciled outside Kenya can dial the helpline number or 
send an email to Image Registrars via info@image.co.ke providing their details i.e. Name, Passport/ID No, CDS No and Mobile 
telephone number requesting to be registered. Image Registrars shall register the shareholder and send them an email link once 
registered.

4. 	 Registration for the AGM opens on Friday, 9th August 2024 at 9:00 a.m. and will close on Tuesday, 30th August 2024 at 11.00 a.m. 
Shareholders will not be able to register after this time.

5. 	 The following documents may be viewed on the Company’s website http://www.standardmedia.co.ke/corporate/investors (i) 
a copy of this Notice and the Proxy Form; (ii) and the Company’s Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended 31st December 2023.

6. 	 Shareholders wishing to raise any questions or clarifications regarding the AGM may do so by:
(a) 	 Dialing the USSD code *483*901# and following the prompts to submit your questions;
(b) 	 sending their written questions by email to agm@standardmedia.co.ke; or
(c) 	 to the extent possible, physically delivering their written questions with a return physical address or email address to the 

registered office of the Company at The Standard Group Centre, along Mombasa Road, or to Image Registrars offices at 5th 
floor, Absa Towers (formerly Barclays Plaza), Loita Street; or

(d) 	 sending their written questions with a return physical address or email address by registered post to the Company’s registered 
address at P.O. Box 30080-00100, Nairobi or Image Registrars at P. O. Box 9287- 00100, Nairobi.

Shareholders must provide their full details (full names, ID/Passport Number/CDSC Account Number) when submitting their questions 
and or clarifications.
The Directors of the Company shall provide written responses to the questions received, via the return address (physical, postal or 
email) provided by the Shareholder no later than 12 hours before the start of the AGM. A full list of all questions received, and the an-
swers thereto will also be published on the Company’s website not later than 24 hours following the conclusion of the annual general 
meeting.

7. 	 In accordance with Section 298(1) of the Companies Act, shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the AGM are entitled to 
appoint a proxy to vote on their behalf. Such proxy need not be a member of the Company.

8. 	 A proxy form is attached to this Notice and is available on the Company’s website via the link: http://www.standardmedia.co.ke/
corporate/investors. The proxy form can also be obtained from Image Registrars Limited offices, 5th Floor Absa Towers (formerly 
Barclays Plaza), Loita Street. A proxy must be signed by the appointer, or his attorney duly authorized in writing. If the appointer 
is a body corporate, the instrument appointing the proxy shall be given under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or 
duly authorized attorney of such body corporate. A completed form of proxy should be emailed to info@image.co.ke or delivered 
to Image Registrars Limited, 5th Floor Absa Towers (formerly Barclays Plaza), Loita Street, P.O. Box 9287 - 00100 GPO, Nairobi, 
so as to be received not later than Friday, 30th August 2024 at 11:00 a.m. Any person appointed as a proxy should submit their 
mobile telephone number to the Company not later than Saturday, 31st August 2024 at 11:00 a.m. Any proxy registration that is 
rejected will be communicated to the shareholder concerned not later than Saturday, 31st August 2024, to allow time to address 
any issues.

9. 	 The AGM will be streamed live via a link which shall be provided to all shareholders who will have successfully registered to par-
ticipate in the AGM. Duly registered shareholders and proxies will receive a short message service (SMS/USSD) prompt on their 
registered mobile numbers, 24 hours prior to the AGM acting as a reminder of the AGM. A second SMS/USSD prompt shall be 
sent one hour ahead of the AGM, as a reminder that the AGM will begin in an hour and provide a link to the live stream. By reg-
istering to attend the AGM, a Shareholder opts in to receive these messages. 10. Duly registered shareholders and proxies may 
follow the proceedings of the AGM using the live stream platform, access the agenda and vote (when prompted by the chairman) 
via the USSD prompts or via the vote tab on the livestream link.

11. 	A poll shall be conducted for all the resolutions put forward in the Notice.
12. 	Results of the AGM shall be published on the Company’s website http://www.standardmedia.co.ke/corporate/investors within 

24 hours following conclusion of the AGM



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

1902 
The African Standard is established 
by Alibhai Mulla Jeevanjee, marking 
the birth of Kenya's oldest newspaper.

1905 
Mr. Jeevanjee sells The African Standard 
to British businessmen, who rename it 
The East African Standard.

1910 
The Standard transitions 

into a daily newspaper 
and moves its headquarters 
from Mombasa to Nairobi.  

1952 
The Standard publishes 

Governor Evelyn Baring’s 
declaration of  Emergency, 

reflecting acquiescence 
to colonial authorities.

      1990 
        The acquisition of KTN marks 
    the beginning of a new era in broadcasting.

   2010 
Radio Maisha begins 
broadcasting in May, expanding 
the Group’s media footprint.

1995 
The Standard 
Group is sold 
to Kenyan investors.

1963 
The British-based   

Lonrho Group acquires    
the newspaper shortly     

before Kenya gains      
independence.      

1969 
A new printing press is installed 

on Likoni Road on July 5th, 1969.    

1977 
The newspaper rebrands 
simply as The Standard.  

2015
KTN NEWS, Kenya’s first 

24-hour TV news channel, 
is launched in June.

2022
Berur FM and Sacco Hela are launched, 

marking further expansion 
into radio and financial services.

2017
The Standard newspaper undergoes a redesign.   

2018       
The Standard Group celebrates        

its centennial anniversary and launches  
the Farm Kenya Initiative and KTN Farmers TV station in September.

2011 
The Standard Digital 
goes live in June, enhancing         
its online presence.               

       2013 
         The Nairobian 
     is launched in February, 
   followed by Standard Digital 
Entertainment (SDE) in April.  

2019 
Btv, Spice FM, and Vybez
Radio go on air in July and 
August respectively. 
The Standard Media Group
Foundation is 
incorporated in August.

       2021 
            Digger Classifieds
        is revamped in March, 
    followed by a redesign 
of The Standard in April. 
Standard Courier Services
    commences operations 
      in October, and the 
        converged newsroom 
         is opened alongside 
           the  rebranded 
            KTN News 
             in November.

OUR 
    JOURNEY...

With determination,
team work and a lot of 
resilience, year after year, we 
have seen a dream evolve
into something so beautiful.
And we are not about to stop 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Standard Group PLC (“the Group or Company”) 
Board  of Directors (“the Board”) is steadfast in its belief 
that good corporate governance  creates shared value 
by underpinning responsive thinking and protects 
shareholder value by ensuring responsible behaviour 
through effective leadership, enhanced accountability, 
heightened transparency and a robust risk management. 
The Board has embraced principles of good corporate 
governance in steering the Group to effectively achieve 
its mandate for sustainable growth in shareholder value 
and to meet stakeholder expectations.

As a company listed in the Nairobi Securities Exchange, 
we remain steadfast in complying with statutory and 
regulatory requirements as outlined in the Constitution of 
Kenya,2010, the Companies Act 2015, the Capital Markets 
Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance Practices for 
Issuers of Securities to the Public, 2015 (the Code), the 
Capital Markets (Securities) (Public Offers, Listing  and 
Disclosures), 2003 and other applicable laws in all areas 
of the Company’s operations. Besides complying with the 
Code, the Board has committed   to embed internal rules 
of engagement to support corporate governance. These 
internal guidelines are constituted in the Code of Conduct 
and Ethics to which every Director and employee attests 
their adherence.

This corporate governance statement provides necessary 
information to enable stakeholders and investors evaluate 
how the Company has applied the principles embedded in 
the Code besides the self -assessment that the Company  
is expected to complete on its level of compliance with the 
Code and also outlining key corporate governance practices 
and arrangements of the Group. The Group remains 
committed to the standards of corporate governance and 
business ethics which are essential to the delivery of long 
term and sustainable stakeholder and shareholder value. 
The Board regularly reviews its corporate governance 
structure and practices to ensure that the same reflects 
the regulatory changes, best practice and stakeholder’s 
expectation.

The Board of Directors
The Board is collectively responsible for the overall strategic 
direction of the Group with oversight and review of the 
management, administration and overall governance. The 
Board provides leadership necessary for the Group to 

meet its business objectives within a robust framework of 
internal controls. The Board exercises its oversight role 
by setting appropriate business strategy and overseeing 
delivery against the set strategy. The composition of the 
Board is stipulated in the Group’s Articles of Association 
which provides that the board shall comprise of a maximum 
of twelve (12) directors.

The Board currently consists of nine (9) directors, one (1) 
executive director and eight (8) non-executive directors 
including the deputy chairman, of whom three (3) are 
independent directors. The Corporate Governance & 
Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending 
directors for election by shareholders at the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM). Nominated directors undergo 
screening by the Corporate Governance and Nomination 
Committee guided by the Board Appointment Guidelines duly 
approved by the Board. All the directors’ appointments 
are subject to confirmation by shareholders at the AGM 
except for the Group Chief Executive Officer. At every 
AGM, at least one third of the non-executive directors 
must retire from the Board and where eligible, stand for 
re-election.

Board Operations
The Board has in place an annual work plan that sets out 
the Board activities for the year. To adequately cover the 
Board’s annual work plan, board and committee meeting 
dates are  agreed on and circulated in December for the 
preceding year. This enables the Board to have a detailed 
review of the Group’s operation and strategy, approve 
business plans, budgets and financial statements. The 
Board meets at least four (4) times a year and additionally 
as may be necessary  in response to business needs. 

The Board Chairman, in conjunction with the Group 
Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary, 
sets the agenda for each meeting. The Board receives all 
information  relevant to the discharge of its obligations 
in an accurate and timely manner enabling it to maintain 
effective control over strategic, financial, operational and 
compliance issues.  

Board and Committee packs are circulated in advance 
to give directors ample time to review the content and 
request clarification before any meeting. This also 
allows the directors to undertake an appropriate review 
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of the Board and Committee papers to facilitate full 
and effective discussions at the meetings. Information 
on agenda items is also provided prior to meetings and 
additionally through presentations to the Board. The 
Board  may in addition seek briefing from management on 
specific  matters. This serves to give the Board greater 
insights into the business area. 

In line with statutory provisions and the Board Charter, 
the Board can also seek independent professional 

Board Charter
The Board has adopted a Board Charter that provides a framework for the effective operation of the Board within the 
confines of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association. The Charter is continuously reviewed and amended 
to ensure it is aligned to the current corporate governance best practices and evolving operating environment in the 
industry. The Board Charter is critical for the Company’s framework and offers guidance on matters including but not 
limited to the following:

♦	 Board’s roles, composition and responsibilities;

♦	 Relationship and interaction between the Board and Management; and 

♦	 Authority delegated by the Board to Management and Board Committees.

The Charter is not a substitute or a replacement of any laws and regulations that govern the running of the Company. The 
Charter will be reviewed annually and amended further as need arises to ensure it remains consistent with regulatory 
requirements and the Board’s objectives. A copy of the Charter is available on the Company’s website (http://www.
standardmedia.co.ke/corporate/investors).

Board of Directors Responsibilities
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the business is financially viable and properly managed so as to protect and 
enhance the company’s interest over time. To achieve continued prosperity for the Company, the Board exercises leadership, 
enterprise, integrity and good judgement and shall always act in the best interest of the company. The  following are the 
roles and responsibilities of the Board:

♦	 Provide effective leadership and collaborate with the Executive Management in articulating the 
organization’s values, vision, mission and strategies and developing the strategic plan and ordering 
strategic priorities of the Company that are sustainable.

♦	 Develop an organizational structure to support the achievement of strategic objectives; monitor 
the operational performance and establish policies and processes that ensure the integrity of the 
Company’s internal controls and risk management.

♦	 Review and approve the business plans and annual budget proposed by the Executive Management 
and evaluate the outcomes thereof.

♦	 Establish such Committees, Policies and Procedures that will facilitate effective discharge of the 
Board’s fiduciary and leadership functions.

♦	 Establish and oversee the Company’s corporate governance framework that promotes standards of 
ethical behavior.

♦	 Ensure the Company’s compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, governance codes, guidelines 

advice  on any matter connected with the discharge 
of its responsibilities and have access to any internal 
resources that may be required. Procedures are also in 
place, through the Chairman and Company Secretary 
enabling directors to have reasonable access at all 
times, to all relevant Company information and senior 
management to assist them in the discharge of their duties 
and responsibilities and to enable them make informed 
decisions.
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and regulations and establish systems to effectively monitor and control compliance across the 
Company.

♦	 Ensure that systems and procedures are in place for the Company to run effectively and efficiently.

♦	 Establish appropriate staffing and remuneration policies for all employees.

♦	 Appoint and evaluate the performance of the Group Chief Executive Officer (GCEO).

♦	 Act in the best interest of the Company and its business taking into consideration the interest of the 
Company’s shareholders and stakeholders.

♦	 Ensure that the Group is, and is seen to be, a responsible corporate citizen by having regard to not 
only the financial aspects of the business of the Group, but also the impact the business operations 
have on the environment and the society within which it operates.

Board Meetings
The Board has a schedule of its meetings and the agenda for each Board meeting is prepared and circulated to members 
at least seven (7) days in advance. Board Meetings are held every quarter and in exceptional circumstances as dictated by 
requirements of business operations. The meetings are structured in a way that allows for open discussions. During the 
year ended 31 December 2023, a total of nine (9) Board Meetings were held.

Board meetings and members’ attendance for 2023

Member: Position: 3.1.23 
(S)

18.1.23 
(S)

16.2.23 
(S)

15.3.23 
(S)

28.4.23 
(Q1)

23.6.23 
(Q2)

26.6.23 
(Q2)

25.8.23 
(Q3)

1.12.23 
(Q4)

1. Mr. Robin Sewell Chairman √ √ √ √ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2. Dr. Julius Kipngetich Ag. Chairman √ × √ √ √ √ √ √ √

3. Mr. Orlando Lyomu Executive √ √ √ √ √ √ √ N/A N/A

4. Dr. James Mcfie Non-Executive √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

5. Ms. Zehrabanu 
Janmohamed

Non-Executive × √ √ √ √ √ √ √ ×

6. Mr. Shaun Zambuni Non-Executive √ √ √ √ √ √ √ N/A N/A

7. Ms. Juliana Rotich Independent √ √ √ √ × √ × √ N/A

8. Dr. Githinji Gitahi Independent √ √ √ √ √ × √ × N/A

9. Mr. Christopher Kulei Non-Executive √ √ √ √ √ √ × √ √

10. Mr. Thomas Omondi Non-Executive N/A N/A N/A N/A √ √ √ √ √

11. Mr. Chaacha Mwita Independent N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A √ √

12. Mr. Albert Sigei Independent N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

13. Ms. Christine Muthui Independent N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

a Adjourned Q2 Board meeting

b Mr. Robin Sewell Resigned effective 27th April 2023
c Dr. Julius Kipngetich appointed Ag. Chairman effective 28th April 2023
d Mr. Orlando Lyomu resigned effective 6th July 2023
e Mr. Shaun Zambuni resigned effective 4th July 2023
f Ms. Juliana Rotich resigned effective 18th September 2023
g Dr. Githinji Gitahi resigned effective 10th November 2023
h Mr. Thomas Omondi appointed effective 24th March 2023
i Mr. Chaacha Mwita appointed effective 4th July 2023
j Mr. Albert Sigei appointed 19th December 2023
k Ms. Christine Muthui appointed effective 19th December 2023
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Board Skills and Diversity
The Board recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity in bringing different perspective into Board meetings in 
offering better anticipation of the risks that are inherent in the business and the opportunities that the Group pursues. 
The Group seeks to have a Board that has a diverse mix of individuals with synergistic range of attributes skills, knowledge, 
experience, professional and industry knowledge and expertise aligned to the needs of the business. The directors of the 
Group come from broad industry and professional backgrounds, with varied experience and expertise aligned to the needs 
of the business. The areas of expertise of the current Board are general management, finance, marketing, media, IT and legal.

The Board as presently constituted has the appropriate mix of skills, knowledge and experience to deal with current and 
emerging issues and effectively guide management in attainment of its strategic objectives. Women constitute 20% of 
our Board and the Corporate Governance & Nomination Committee has been tasked to take this into consideration in its 
subsequent nominations. The Board is fully committed to enhancing its gender balance in the Board to increase women 
representation in the Board. Short biographies of the Directors, including details of their relevant, skills, experience, 
nationalities and other directorship, are set out in the Directors and Statutory Information and Directors Profile pages.

The Board appreciates the benefits of diversity in all of its forms (gender, age, ethnicity and welfare), within its own membership 
and across the Company. Talent is our competitive advantage and diversity is a critical component of our success, providing 
better understanding, connectivity and insight to our consumers and our employees. The Board encourages initiatives 
to improve gender diversity in management and this has resulted in the establishment of The Standard Group Women 
Network which continues to articulate the voice of women within the organization and  position them for leadership.

Board Induction and Development
Each new director on appointment receives a comprehensive induction programme tailored to their individual needs to 
acquaint them with their responsibilities including legal and regulatory responsibilities and appraise them of the Company’s 
strategy and operations. The induction program consists of detailed presentations and briefings from the Chairman, 
Executive Management and the Company Secretary on the Company operations. The directors are also provided with all 
the requisite Company documents. 

The Board members undergo regular training and education to enable them continuously develop knowledge and skills 
required to discharge their responsibilities effectively. Directors receive regular briefings from the Executive Management 
on developments in the media industry both locally and globally. The Board and its Committee’s also receive briefings and 
participates in deep dive sessions on various matters such as risks and their mitigations, legal and regulatory developments 
that directly impact the operations of the Group.

During the year under review, the Board attended webinars on areas of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the 
Code conducted by external facilitators. Continuous development training requirements of the Board are determined 
by the Board, the changing business environment, business needs and or regulatory changes. The program of continuing 
education ensures the Board is kept upto date with developments in the industry.

Board Evaluation
In line with the provisions of the Code, the Board reviews its performance and that of its Committees, the Group Chief 
Executive Officer and Non-Executive Directors, the Chairman and Company Secretary, on an annual basis. The evaluation 
in respect of the financial year 2023 was conducted internally by the Chairman through the coordination of the Company 
Secretary. The evaluation was conducted by each Director completing a Board Evaluation Form which is designed to 
obtain feedback on the Board’s performance in key thematic areas. The Evaluation also seeks to identify development 
opportunities and areas of improvement. Results were collated confidentially by the Company Secretary and reviewed 
by the Chairman. The evaluation established that the Board understood its role and that the Board members have a good 
understanding of the business and receive the information they need to inform decisions on a timely and accurate manner. 
The Board demonstrated collegiality and alignment of vision. Implementation of the recommendations arising out of the 
feedback from the Board Evaluation is ongoing.
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Board Independence and Conflicts of Interest
The Board comprises of ten (10) non-executive directors, of whom six  (6) are independent as defined in the Code  and the 
Board Charter. As per the Board Charter, the Board only considers directors to be independent where they have served for 
a period of less than six  (6) years and are independent of management and free of any business or other relationship that 
could materially interfere with, or reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with, the directors’ capacity to bring an 
independent judgement to bear on issues before the Board and to act in the best interest of the Group or the shareholders 
generally.

The directors are obligated to fully disclose to the Board any real or potential conflict of interest, which comes to the directors’ 
attention, whether direct or indirect. All business transactions with all parties, directors or their related parties are carried 
out at arm’s length. Directors are required to give advance notice of any conflict of interest to the Chairman or Company 
Secretary and exclude themselves from any discussions or decisions over the matter in question.

The Board maintains a Conflict of Interest register and this is tabled as the first agenda item in all Board and Committee 
meetings. Directors are excluded from the quorum and vote in respect of any matters in which they have an interest. 

Board Committees
The Board has approved the delegation of certain authorities to Board Committees where applicable, and to management. 
The Board has established five (5) Board Committees namely; Finance & Audit Committee, Corporate Governance & 
Nominations Committee, Human Resources & Remuneration Committee, Editorial Committee and The Turnaround 
Committee. The Board receives a report from the Chairman of each Committee on significant areas of discussion and 
key decisions at subsequent Board meetings. The Committees execute their functions in accordance with the terms of 
reference which defines its mandate, roles and responsibilities.

The terms of reference for the respective Committees are continuously reviewed and amended to ensure it is aligned to 
the current corporate governance best practices and evolving roles. The terms of reference for the committees are to be 
reviewed on an annual basis or as need arise. Copies of the committee’s terms of reference are available on the Company’s 
website (http://www.standardmedia.co.ke/corporate/investors). The Committees are instrumental in monitoring Group 
operations, conduct of business, systems and internal controls.

1.	 Finance and Audit Committee

This Committee consists of five (5) directors and in compliance with the Code, is comprised of three (3) independent non-
executive directors. The Chairman is an independent non-executive director and one (1) member holds professional 
qualification in accounting and is a member of good standing with ICPAK. The Committee meets quarterly or as required 
and reports to the Board on a quarterly basis. The Committee regularly invites the Executive Management to the Committee’s 
meetings. External auditors are also invited to attend the meetings when necessary.

The Committee plays a vital role in ensuring the integrity of the financial statements. It assists the Board in evaluating financial 
and management controls and recommending improvements. The Committee further ensures that the financial reporting 
is accurate and timely. To further strengthen and ensure independent reports on internal audit, the Board has hired internal 
auditors. The head of Internal Audit holds professional qualification in accounting and is a member of good standing with 
ICPAK.

The Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function. Internal audit 
reports, findings and recommendations are presented to the Committee quarterly and these are monitored to ensure 
implementation. The Committee also reviews the performance of Internal Audit and approves the Audit Plan for the year.

The Committee is also responsible for reviewing and assessing the Group’s risk management process and the adequacy 
of the overall control environment. Risk registers, based on a standardized methodology, are used to identify, assess and 
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monitor the key risks (both financial and non-financial) faced by the Group each quarter. All  identified risks are assessed at 
three (3) levels (high/medium/low) by reference to their impact and likelihood. Mitigation plans are put in place to manage 
the risks identified and the risk registers and mitigation plans are reviewed on a quarterly basis.

The Finance and Audit Committee oversees the external audit function. This includes approving the external audit 
financials, review/engagement of the management letters and assessing their performance. The external auditor provides 
a further level of protection on the integrity of the financial statements. The external auditor reports independently and 
directly to the Board. PwC Kenya is the Company’s external auditor following their re- appointment by the shareholders in 
the last AGM. The Finance and Audit Committee considers its relationship with the external auditor worked well during the 
year under review and was satisfied with its effectiveness.

The Board, with advice from its Finance & Audit Committee, has completed its annual review of the effectiveness of 
the system of risk management and internal control for the period ended 31 December 2023. No significant failings or 
weaknesses were identified, and the Board is satisfied that, where specific areas for improvement have been identified, 
processes are in place to ensure that the necessary remedial action is taken and that progress is monitored.

The Committee met four (4) times during the year. 

Finance and Audit Committee meetings and members’ attendance for 2022

Member: Position: 21.4.23 (Q1) 16.6.23 (Q2) 18.8.23 (Q3) 24.11.23 (Q4)
1. Dr. Githinji Gitahi Chairman √ √ √ N/A
2. Dr. James Mcfie Non-Executive √ √ √ √
3. Mr. Shaun Zambuni Non-Executive √ √ N/A N/A
4. Ms. Juliana Rotich Independent × √ × N/A
5. Dr. Julius Kipngetich Independent √ √ √ ×
6. Mr. Chris Kulei Non-Executive √ √ √ √
7. Mr. Thomas Omondi Non-Executive N/A √ √ √
8. Mr. Chaacha Mwita Independent N/A N/A √ √

Mr. Shaun Zambuni resigned effective 4th July 2023
Ms. Juliana Rotich resigned effective 18th September 2023
Dr. Githinji Gitahi resigned effective 10th November 2023

2.	 Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

This Committee consists of four (4) directors, comprising the Chairperson who is a non-executive director and other 
directors. The Committee regularly invites the Executive Management to the Committee’s meetings. The Committee 
meets quarterly or as required. The Committee reviews and ensures that the Human Resources and Remuneration policies 
and practices in the Company support the overall objectives of the Group and enable the recruitment, development and 
retention of highly skilled staff in line with the business needs.

The Committee is also responsible for reviewing the Group’s organizational structure and ensuring that the Group’s 
human resources and remuneration offering are sufficiently competitive to attract and retain the desired talent pool. 
The Committee further reviews and monitors policies and principles for selection, retention and termination of executive 
management and setting the terms of service for executive management and their remuneration structure covering 
salary and benefits; performance- based variable rewards; pensions and/or gratuity. The Committee is also responsible for 
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s Succession Plan and appraising the performance of Executive Management.



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 20238

The Committee met four (4) times during the year.

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee meetings and members’ attendance for 2022

Member: Position: 14.4.23 (Q1) 16.6.23 (Q2) 18.8.23 (Q3) 24.11.23 (Q4)
1. Ms. Zehrabanu Janmohamed Chairperson × √ √ √
2. Mr. Shaun Zambuni Non-Executive √ √ N/A N/A
3. Dr. James Mcfie Non-Executive √ √ √ √
4. Mr. Chirs Kulei Non-Executive √ √ √ √
5. Mr. Thomas Omondi Non-Executive N/A √ × √

Mr. Shaun Zambuni resigned effective 4th July 2023

3.	 Editorial Committee

This Committee consists of eight (8) directors, comprising of a Chairman who is an independent non-executive director 
and other directors and regularly invites the Executive management and the respective Managing Editors. The Committee 
meets quarterly or as required. The role of the Committee is to develop the Group’s Editorial Policies and provide overall 
leadership and oversight over the Group’s journalism and media content.

The Committee met four (4) times during the year. 

Member: Position: 14.4.23 (Q1) 9.6.23 (Q2) 11.8.23 (Q3) 17.11.23 (Q4)
1. Dr. Julius Kipngetich Chairperson √ √ √ ×
2. Ms. Zehrabanu Janmohamed Non-Executive √ √ × √
3. Mr. Shaun Zambuni Non-Executive √ √ N/A N/A
4. Dr. Githinji Gitahi Independent × √ √ N/A
5. Ms. Juliana Rotich Independent × √ × N/A
6. Mr. Christopher Kulei Non-Executive √ × √ ×
7. Mr. Thomas Omondi Non-Executive N/A N/A N/A √
8. Mr. Chaacha Mwita Independent N/A N/A √ √

Mr. Shaun Zambuni resigned effective 4th July 2023
Ms. Juliana Rotich resigned effective 18th September 2023
Dr. Githinji Gitahi resigned effective 10th November 2023

4.	 Corporate Governance & Nomination Committee

The Corporate Governance & Nomination Committee is an ad hoc Committee that assists the Board in discharging 
corporate governance responsibilities in relation to appointment and re-election of directors, evaluation of the Board, its 
committees and individual directors and remuneration of the directors. The Committee keeps under review the structure, 
size, composition and development of the Board as well as succession planning for directors. The Committee oversees a 
transparent process for recruitment of directors to the Board in line with the Board Appointment Guidelines approved by 
the Board.
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The Committee is also charged with the responsibility of evaluating and reporting to the Board on an annual basis, the 
effectiveness and performance of the Board and the Directors in the discharge of their responsibilities. The Committee 
is also responsible for reviewing and proposing the remuneration structures and policies for Non- Executive members of 
the Board.

Key activities undertaken by the Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2023 include: 

The Committee met four (4) times during the year. 

Member: Position: 21.3.23 3.7.23
1. Dr. Julius Kipngetich Chairman √ √
2. Dr. Githinji Gitahi Independent √ √
3. Ms. Juliana Rotich Independent √ √
4. Mr. Christopher Kulei Non-Executive √ √
5. Ms. Zehrabanu Janmohamed Non-Executive N/A √
6. Mr. Shaun Zambuni Non-Executive N/A √
7. Dr. James Mcfie Non-Executive N/A √
8. Mr. Thomas Omondi Non-Executive N/A √

5.	 The Turnaround Committee

The Turnaround Committee has been established on a time-limited basis, for an initial period of one year. Their term  may be 
extended for such longer period as may be necessary to ensure attainment of its objectives and recovery of the business. 
Membership to the committee comprises of Non-Executive Directors appointed by the Board and its membership shall 
consist of not less than two (2) members. The committee meets bi- weekly or as maybe required. The Committee is also 
responsible for developing, coordinating and managing the Company’s financial recovery program in line with its strategic 
purpose and values as well as its sustainability.

The Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is appointed by the Board and is responsible for advising and providing practical support to 
the directors. The Company Secretary provides a central source of guidance and advice to the Board on matters of 
governance, statutory compliance and compliance with regulatory requirements. The Company Secretary is responsible 
for monitoring compliance with board procedures and facilitating good flow of information with the Board, its Committees 
and management. The Company Secretary is a member in good standing with the Institute of Certified Secretaries (ICS).

Role of the Company Secretary
♦	 Ensure that the Board complies with its obligations under the law and the Company’s Articles of Association.

♦	 Ensure that the Board agenda is developed in a timely and effective manner for review and approval by the Chairperson.

♦	 Ensuring, in conjunction with the GCEO, that Board papers are developed in a timely and effective manner.

♦	 Coordinating, organizing and attending meetings of the Board and shareholders and ensuring that correct procedures 
are followed.

♦	 Drafting and maintaining minutes of Board meetings.

♦	 Meeting statutory reporting requirements in accordance with relevant legislation. Assist the Board with the Board 
Evaluation exercise.
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♦	 To coordinate the Governance Audit and Board Evaluation exercise. To maintain and update the register of conflict of 
interest.

♦	 To carry out any other duties as may be assigned by the Board and the GCEO from time to time.

♦	 Advising the Board on all corporate governance matters.

♦	 Facilitating effective communication between the Company and the shareholders.

Code of Ethics and Conduct
The Group continues to promote an ethical culture among the Board, staff and key stakeholders to inculcate a value- based 
approach in business operations and decision making. The Code of Conduct and Ethics enables the Board and employees 
conduct business and embodies their commitment to pursue the highest standards of ethical behaviour when dealing with 
customers, suppliers, regulatory authorities and other stakeholders.

The Code of Conduct and Ethics binds all directors and has been integrated into the Company’s operations through the development 
of various policies and practices aimed at promoting a culture of compliance, honesty, ethical behaviour and reporting 
mechanisms. The Company has adopted zero tolerance approach to corruption, bribery and unethical business practices. 
Initiatives to ensure its application include training, monitoring, mechanisms for whistle blowing, taking disciplinary actions 
amongst other measures.

Shareholder Relations
To ensure transparency and fairness in line with corporate governance best practice and enhance investor relations, the 
Board maintains active communication and engagements with shareholders and the public by providing regular as well as ad 
hoc information regarding Group strategy, operations and performance and addressing areas of concern. The engagement 
programme was adapted to make full use of digital interaction, enabling more extensive shareholder communication with 
shareholders. This was achieved through the following:

♦	 The Group publishes its half-year and full year trading results in newspapers with nationwide 
circulation. The Group additionally posts all material information on its website www.
standardmedia.co.ke and stakeholders are encouraged to visit the website for general information. 
The Group additionally releases material information to the Capital Markets Authority and the 
Nairobi Securities Exchange in line with all disclosure requirements in the Capital Markets Acts 
as well as all other regulatory requirements.

♦	 The Annual General Meeting (AGM) is held annually where shareholders engage the Company 
directors and Executive Management on matters relating to our business. Shareholders are 
notified at least 21 days before the AGM and copies of the Annual Report made available to 
enable them review the proposed agenda and prepare to attend. A shareholder may appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on his or her behalf during the AGM if unable to attend in person. At 
the meeting, a reasonable opportunity is allowed for shareholders to ask questions about or 
make comments on the management and performance of the Group. 
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The Company has also retained Image Registrars Limited to provide shares registrar services. The firm handles day to 
day requirements of shareholders. The registrar’s offices are located at 5th Floor, Absa Towers (formerly Barclays Plaza), Loita 
Street, P.O. Box 9287- 00100, Nairobi or through the email address info@image.co.ke and also through the telephone 
numbers 0709170000/ 0735565666.

The Group’s website also has a specific dedicated page dedicated to the information requirements of the shareholders and 
investment analysis.

The Group also regularly responds to numerous queries from shareholders and interested parties on a wide range of issues.

Restrictions on Insider Trading
The Group has a policy on insider trading. Directors, employees and contractors are made aware that they ought not to 
trade in the company’s shares while in possession of any material insider information that is not available to the public or 
during a closed period. To ensure compliance with the Companies Act, 2015 the Group communicates ‘open’ and ‘closed’ 
periods for trading in its shares to its employees and directors on an annual basis. To the best of the  Group’s knowledge, there 
was no insider dealing in the financial year ended 31 December 2023..

Whistle Blowing Policy
The Group has a Whistleblowing Policy available at the Company’s website which provides a platform for employees, suppliers, 
customers and contractors to raise concerns regarding any suspected wrongdoing. The Policy also outlines the framework 
through which such concerns are identified and addressed. The Group encourages the reporting of such wrongdoing in a 
way that protects and supports whistle-blowers. The programme provides confidential and anonymous communication 
channels to raise concerns. Reasonable steps have been put in place to protect a person who makes disclosure of any 
inappropriate behaviour. Further the Group has also in place an anonymous whistle blowing platform managed by an 
Independent Accredited and external institution.

The Board ensures that risks arising from any ethical issues are identified and managed in the risk management process. 
Further, there is zero tolerance for any actual or threatened act against any whistle blower and the Group takes reasonable 
steps to protect a person who makes disclosure of any inappropriate behaviour.

Procurement Policy
The Group maintains a Procurement Policy which governs the procedures for purchase of goods and services within the Group. 
The Policy seeks to ensure that the most appropriate and effective controls are applied in the purchase of goods and services 
for the company. The Policy also advocates for fair and transparent procurement procedures in the purchase and disposal 
of goods and services.

The Group did not undertake an audit in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023. 
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Corporate Governance Assessment Report
During the year 2023, the Capital Markets Authority (CMA) assessed the status of implementation of the CMA Code by 
the Company for the FY 2022 and awarded an overall rating of 82% which is a testament of the Board’s commitment to 
sound corporate governance practices. The Company continues to implement the recommendations received from CMA to 
improve its level of compliance with the Code.

Legal Audit
The Group did not undertake an audit in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023. 

Shareholding Structure
TOP 10 GLOBAL INVESTORS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

The ten largest shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2023 were as follows:
Names Address Shares Percentage

1 S.N.G HOLDINGS LIMITED IBEX HOUSE- BAKER STREET, WEYBRIDGE SURREY 
KT13 8AH UNITED KINGDOM SURREY KT13 8AH

56,422,699 69.03%

2 TRADE WORLD KENYA LIMITED P. O. BOX 45675-00100 NAIROBI KENYA 8,906,068 10.90%

3 MILLER TRUSTEES  LIMITED P O BOX 72133- NAIROBI KENYA 8,608,569 10.53%

4 ISMAIL,GULAMALI P.O. BOX 90626-80100 MOMBASA KENYA 2,211,500 2.71%

5 THE STANDARD GROUP LIMITED ESOP TRUST P.O. BOX 30080-00100 NAIROBI GPO KENYA 266,880 0.33%

6 DENROMA INVESTMENT LIMITED P.O. BOX 5133-00200 NAIROBI KENYA 238,640 0.29%

7 SHAH,SAVITABEN VELJI RAICHAND P.O. BOX 46101-00100 NAIROBI KENYA 228,070 0.28%

8 GOES,EUFRAZIO JULIAO P.O BOX 493-00606 NAIROBI KENYA 220,000 0.27%

9 THUTHUMA LIMITED 49341-00100 Nairobi KENYA 219,774 0.27%

10 SARAJ PROPERTIES LIMITED P.O. BOX 40127-00100 NAIROBI KENYA 186,900 0.23%

11 Others   4,222,708 5.17%

Grand Totals: 81,731,808 100.00%

Shares Distribution Schedule as at 31 December 2023
Range Records Range Total Percentage

1 1 to 500 2,648 329,642 0.40%

2 501 to 1000 399 293,302 0.36%

3 1001 to 5000 558 1,107,954 1.36%

4 5001 to 10000 106 734,379 0.90%

5 10001 to 50000 73 1,388,353 1.70%

6 50001 to 100000 3 237,500 0.29%

7 100001 to 500000 7 1,491,842 1.83%

8 500001 to 1000000      

9 1000001 to 2000000000 4 76,148,836 93.17%

Grand Totals: 3,798 81,731,808 100.00%

DRAFT
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Information Technology policy
The Group has established an IT Policy which aims to protect the information technology infrastructure (including IT 
equipment, mobile facilities, data/ telecommunications networks and software) and maintain the highest standards of 
cyber security, while protecting the Group’s confidential and sensitive information. The policy aims to facilitate ease of 
use of IT systems by staff, business partners and other stakeholders while mandating the responsible use of IT systems.

Governance Audit
The Board is committed to the highest standards of corporate governance and strives to ensure adherence to legal and 
regulatory requirements while adopting global best practices. Recognizing the role of management, the Board also ensures 
that Group’s management is fully aware of Code requirements and that the same are implemented in all spheres of the 
business.

DRAFT
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BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

Dr. Julius Kipngetich
Chairman

Dr. Julius Kipngetich is the chairman of the board. He 
has served as Independent/Non-Executive Director and 
Deputy Chairman Nationality since October 7, 2017. 
He is also the Chairman of the Editorial Committee 
and member of the Finance & Audit Committee. Dr. 
Kipngetich is the Regional Chief Executive Officer 
of Jubilee Holdings Ltd. Previously, he served as the 
Chief Executive Officer of Uchumi Supermarkets Ltd 
and Chief Operating Officer of Equity Group Holdings 
Ltd. He had an illustrious career as Director and CEO 
of Kenya Wildlife Service between December 2004 
and September 2012. He holds a Masters Degree in 
Business Administration and a Bachelor of Commerce 
Degree from the University of Nairobi. Dr. Kipngetich is 
a member of the Board of Jubilee Holdings Ltd. He also 
serves as a member of the Board of The Standard Group 
PLC subsidiaries. 

Ms. Zehrabanu Janmohamed
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Zehrabanu Janmohamed has been a Non-Executive 
Director since July 2007. She is the chair of the Human 
Resource and Remuneration Committee and member 
of the Editorial Committee. Ms. Janmohamed is an 
Advocate of the High Court of Kenya and a Barrister 
at Lincolns Inn (UK) with over twenty (20) years legal 
practice experience. She was conferred the title of Senior 
Counsel. She is a partner at Archer & Wilcock Advocates. 
Ms. Janmohamed was awarded the ‘Mzalendo Award’ by 
the President of the Republic of Kenya in 2020 for her 
philanthropic works of food distribution to vulnerable 
families during the Covid-19 pandemic in Kenya. Ms. 
Janmohamed has previously served as the first woman 
chair of the Kenya Cricket Association and the Pan 
African Cricket Association. She sits on the board of 
several companies, including Lukiza Limited and The 
Standard Group PLC subsidiaries.

Dr. James Boyd McFie
Non-Executive Director

Dr. James Boyd McFie has been a Non-Executive 
Director since July 2007. He is a Member - Finance & 
Audit Committee and Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee. Dr. McFie is a holder of a PhD. from the 
Graduate School of Business, University of Strathclyde, 
Glasgow, Scotland, and is a Certified Public Accountant 
(CPA-K). He is currently a Senior Lecturer at Strathmore 
Business School with over forty (40) years lecturing 
experience. He previously served as a Director of 
the Capital Markets Authority and a member of the 
Value Added Tax Tribunal of Kenya. Dr. McFie serves 
as Chairman of Sasini PLC and Director of SBM Bank 
(Kenya) Limited. He is also a member of the Board of The 
Standard Group PLC subsidiaries.

Mr. Christopher Kulei
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Christopher Kulei has been a Non-Executive Director 
since 14 July 2020. He is a Member - Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee and Editorial Committee. Mr. Kulei 
holds a Masters Degree in International Politics & Economics 
from Kingston University (UK) and a Bachelor’s Degree in 
Business Management from Hult International School, London. 
He is a business executive with diverse experience from 
banking, media, hospitality and agribusiness. Mr. Kulei is an 
Executive Director at the Sian Roses Group of Farms where 
he also sits in the Marketing and Operations Committee. He 
also serves as a Non-Executive Director of Chemusian Farm, 
Liasion Group Limited and the Kenya Flower Council. Mr. Kulei 
has experience in a broad spectrum of fields and has a passion 
for agriculture, having worked in one of Kenya’s signature 
industries for the past decade. He has a wealth of experience in 
agriculture, marketing, strategic analysis, partnership, leadership 
and technology, having worked in the agriculture and insurance 
industries in Kenya, Uganda, Tanzania, and Rwanda. He travels, 
plays rugby, squash and football for fun.

Mr. Thomas Omondi Achola
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Thomas Omondi Achola has been a Non-Executive Director 
since March 23,  2023. He is a member of the Transformation 
Committee. Mr. Achola holds a Master’s Degree in Business 
Administration (MBA) majoring in Accounting and Finance 
from the University of Nairobi and an MBA in General 
Management from Instituto de Estudios Superiores de la 
Empresa (IESE) in Spain. He also holds a Bachelor of Science 
Degree in Mathematics from the University of Nairobi. Mr. 
Achola is a Certified Information System Auditor and a graduate 
of Executive Development Programs from Gordon Institute 
of Business Science, University of Pretoria, General Electric, 
Rolls-Royce and London Business School. Mr. Achola is a 
Partner, Portfolio Operations at Centum and currently oversees 
implementation of value creation plans in portfolio companies 
including sitting in several of their Boards as an Alternate 
Director to Centum Investment Company PLC. He has a wealth 
of experience in strategy analysis, operations, leadership and 
technology having worked for over 13 years in the aviation 
industry in Kenya. 

Mr. Chaacha Mwita
Independent Director

Mr. Chaacha Mwita was an Independent/Non-Executive Director 
from July, 4 2023. He is a leadership, media and communication 
management, and policy engagement consultant with over 15 years’ 
integrated international experience in Executive Management and 
Board relations; as well as research translation, and advocacy. A former 
journalist, Mr. Mwita’s current efforts are focused on connecting African 
journalists, scientists, policy makers and civil society organisations, to 
best help shape the news agenda for policy, practice, and development. 
He has in recent years conducted in-depth media assessments in 
Mozambique, South Africa, Zambia, Botswana, eSwatini, Zimbabwe, 
Malawi and Uganda. Among others. Mr. Mwita has worked in leadership 
roles at the Nation Media Group PLC, The Standard Group PLC, the Aga 
Khan Foundation, the African Population and Health Research Centre 
(APHRC), and Thomson Foundation (London, UK). He has also served 
on the Boards of Inter-Region Economic Network (IREN-Kenya) and 
Ewaso Nyiro South Development Authority (ENSDA) and Co-Secretary 
of the Africa Means Business Advisory Panel. Mr. Mwita graduated with 
a Bachelor of Education (Arts) degree from the University of Nairobi in 
1996. He also holds a Postgraduate Diploma in Mass Communication 
from the University of Nairobi’s School of Journalism and an MBA from 
the University of St. Gallen, Switzerland, with Executive Development 
stints at the Haas School of Business (the University of California at 
Berkeley, USA), and the University of Luxembourg. A published author, 
Mr. Mwita is a former Fanning Fellow for Journalism at the Kettering 
Foundation, Dayton, Ohio, USA.



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 15

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

Ms. Christine Mueni Muthui
Independent  Director

Ms. Christine Mueni Muthui has been an Independent/
Non-Executive Director of the Company from December 
19, 2023. She is a Director at Alpha Tax & Business 
Advisory Services Limited and has over 20 years of tax 
& business advisory experience where she works with 
organizations to implement and execute corporate tax 
strategies and with other stakeholders in reviewing 
tax legislation in Kenya and East Africa. Previously, 
she worked as a Tax Manager at Coca- Cola Central 
East and West Africa (CEWA) and KPMG. Ms. Muthui 
is an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya, a Certified 
Public Accountant of Kenya (CPA-K) and a Certified 
Public Secretary (CPS-K). She holds a Bachelor of Laws 
(LLB) Degree from the University of Nairobi, an MBA 
for Executives from Strathmore Business School and is 
currently pursuing a PHD in Commercial Law - Taxation 
at the University of Cape Town. She is also an accredited 
trainer. She is a member of the Public and Tax Committee 
of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 
a former member of the Tax Committee of the Law 
Society of Kenya. She also served as a Board Trustee and 
currently sits as an External Committee member of the 
Centre of Tax Studies in Africa - IBFD.

Ms. Leonie Von Elverfeldt
Independent Director

Ms. Leonie Von Elverfeldt is an Independent/Non-
Executive Director. She was appointed on March 6, 
2024. She has over 15 years of experience in media 
and advertising and has coached 50+ media brands 
around the world in audience and revenue growth. She is 
currently a consultant and coach at Elverfeldt Consulting 
where she works with well known legacy media brands 
on digitization, newsroom transformation, revenue 
schemes and rebranding. Ms. Elverfeldt is credited with 
developing and managing the first paywall in Germany 
(BILD/ Axel Springer) and founded a media company 
in East Africa (Pulse/Ringier). She holds an MBA from 
Technische University in Berlin, Germany.

Mr. Chris Otundo
Independent Director

Mr. Chris Otundo is an Independent/Non-Executive 
Director. He was appointed on March 6, 2024. Mr. 
Otundo is a seasoned business executive with over 15 
years of experience largely in talent management. He 
has held several leadership positions over the years 
including his present role as CEO BrighterMonday Kenya. 
His previous roles have included leadership roles at 
Mastercard Foundation, Safaricom and General Electric, 
overseeing strategic talent acquisition across Sub-
Saharan Africa and Canada. Mr. Otundo holds a Masters 
Degree in International Management (International 
Business) from Toulouse School of Management (France) 
and a BSc. in Business Information Technology from 
Limkokwing University of Creative Technology (Malaysia). 
He is also an Executive Coach accredited by the Academy 
of Executive Coaches UK.

Marion Mwangi
Group Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Marion Mwangi is the Group Chief Executive Officer (GCEO) 
of the Standard Group PLC. She was appointed, effective August 
5th, 2024. Additionally, she is the part-time Academic Director 
of the Women in Leadership program at Strathmore Business 
School and serves as a non-executive director at the Kenya 
Association of Manufacturers (KAM), Palmhouse Foundation, 
and BAT. With over 20 years of senior management experience, 
she previously served as the Director of Bulk and Onsite Services 
at Africa Oxygen (AFROX) and Managing Director of BOC Gases 
PLC where she drove significant business initiatives. Marion 
has held executive roles at Nestlé Foods (K) Limited, Bayer 
East Africa Limited, and other major companies, with expertise 
in Lean Manufacturing, Performance Management, and Trade 
Marketing. She is known for successfully leading business 
turnarounds across sectors such as industrial, FMCG, dairy, 
and professional services. Her qualifications include a Bachelor 
of Science (BSc) in International Business Administration from 
USIU, along with certifications from the European Business 
School, Cranfield School of Management, and Strathmore 
Business School (SBS). Recognized for her community impact 
and leadership, Marion is also a sought-after mentor, executive 
coach, and public speaker.

Ms. Victoria Cherotich
Company Secretary

Ms. Victoria Cherotich was appointed as the Company Secretary 
with effect from May 1, 2024. Ms. Cherotich is currently the 
Chief Executive Officer of Image Registrars Limited. She is a 
Certifed Secretary registered with the Institute of Certifed 
Secretaries (ICS) and an ICS Accredited Governance Auditor. 
She is also a Certifed Public Accountant (CPA). 

Mr. Albert Sigei
Independent Director

Mr. Albert Sigei has been an Independent/Non-Executive Directors 
of the Company from December 19, 2023. He is a seasoned Senior 
Executive with more than 25 years’ experience in business advisory 
and manufacturing sectors, including Chief Executive Officer in 
three countries across Africa. Mr. Sigei is the Chief Executive Officer 
for Pretoria Portland Cement – Zimbabwe. This follows a stint as 
the founding Managing Partner of STARTIFY Ltd, an Africa-focused 
business advisory firm focused on restructuring, turnaround and M&A 
transactions. He brings on board a multi-disciplinary background with 
a mix of skills including General Management, Business Development, 
Restructuring & Turnaround, M&A, Finance and Risk Management. He 
has wide Board experience having served as Executive and Independent 
Director for various companies. He is currently on the Board of Angaza 
Centre for Technology Literacy as a Non-Executive Director Mr. Sigei 
holds a First-Class Honors degree in Mechanical Engineering from the 
University of Nairobi, is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants (ACCA) and graduated in leadership courses offered by Ivy 
league Business Schools - INSEAD, London Business School, HEC Paris 
and The Ivey Business School at Western University.
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

Dear Esteemed Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management, 
I am delighted to present to you the audited financial 
statements for the Financial Year ended 31st December, 
2023. This past year has been one of profound 
transformation and resilience, marked by both external 
challenges and internal evolution. It is against this 
backdrop that I share with you our journey, the obstacles 
we have navigated, and the strategic responses that have 
positioned us for sustained growth.

Navigating Economic Challenges
The Kenyan economy in 2023 has faced significant 
headwinds. The Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
growth was constrained by multiple factors, 
including heightened inflation and volatile 
forex trading conditions. Inflation rates have 

soared, primarily driven by increased costs of 
essential goods and services, impacting the 

purchasing power of our consumers and 
the operational costs for businesses like 
ours.

The geopolitical landscape, notably 
the ongoing conflict in Ukraine, has 
further complicated our economic 
environment. The war has disrupted 
global supply chains, leading to 
increased costs and scarcity of key 

import products, including newsprint 
and other production materials vital for our 

operations. These disruptions have necessitated 
strategic adjustments in our procurement 
processes to mitigate the impact on our 

production capabilities and cost structures.

DR. JULIUS KIPNGETICH
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Together, we will 
continue to navigate 
the complexities of 
our industry and drive 
forward our vision for 
sustainable growth 
and excellence.”
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Strategic Responses and Transformations
Internally, the group has undergone substantial 
transformation to address the evolving challenges. We 
have restructured several departments to enhance 
agility and responsiveness. Our talent development 
programs have been intensified, focusing on upskilling 
our workforce to navigate our operational complexities 
effectively. In response to these external pressures, the 
group has embarked on several transformative initiatives 
to strengthen our resilience and adaptability:

1.	 Operational Efficiency: We have implemented 
rigorous cost management and operational 
efficiency programs to offset rising costs and 
ensure the sustainability of our operations. 
Leveraging technology and process improvements 
has been central to these efforts.

2.	 Digital Innovation: Our continued investment in 
digital platforms has not only expanded our reach 
but also diversified our revenue streams. This 
strategic pivot towards digital media is crucial 
in mitigating the impacts of traditional market 
volatilities.

3.	 Supply Chain Adaptation: To counter the 
disruptions in import products, we have 
diversified our supplier base and explored 
alternative materials and local sourcing options, 
ensuring continuity in our production processes.

Board Changes and Governance
This year has also seen significant changes within our 
Board of Directors. We have bid farewell to several 
esteemed members who resigned after years of dedicated 
service. Their contributions have been invaluable, and 
we extend our deepest gratitude for their commitment 

and leadership. Concurrently, we have welcomed new 
members whose expertise and fresh perspectives are set 
to drive our strategic vision forward. These appointments 
underscore our commitment to robust governance and 
strategic oversight.

Looking Ahead
As we move forward, we remain cautiously optimistic. The 
external economic environment is expected to remain 
challenging, but we are confident in our strategic direction 
and the resilience of our operations. Our commitment to 
innovation, operational excellence, and stakeholder value 
remains steadfast.

In conclusion, I extend my heartfelt thanks to our 
shareholders, board members, management team, and 
employees for their unwavering support and dedication. 
Your trust and commitment are the pillars of our success. 
Together, we will continue to navigate the complexities of 
our industry and drive forward our vision for sustainable 
growth and excellence.

Thank you for your continued confidence in The Standard 
Group PLC.

Sincerely,

 

Dr. Julius Kipngetich 
Chairman of the Board
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AG. GROUP CEO’S
STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,
As we present the Annual Financial Report for the year 
ended December 2023, I would like to highlight briefly 
on the state of the media industry in Kenya and our 
achievements over the past year. Kenya’s economic 
situation in 2023 was characterized by high inflation, 
deterioration of the Kenya Shilling, debt-related risks and 
other uncertainties.  The continued delay in settling pending 
bills owed to the Media Companies by the Government 
further adversely impacted the media sector. Challenges 
arising out of fast-changing media consumption behaviors 
and increased media fragmentation further compounded 
the situation. However, despite this challenging operating 
environment, our business has shown great resilience 
driven by an unwavering commitment to serve our 
audiences and stakeholders.

Our Product Portfolio
Our diverse portfolio continues to set us apart in the 
media industry. In print media, Standard Newspaper 
remains a cornerstone of quality journalism, with a robust 
digital presence that extends our reach and influence 
internationally. Our broadcast division continues to 
thrive with an array of radio stations - Radio Maisha, 
Spice FM, Vybez Radio, and Berur FM - each catering to 
distinct audience preferences. In television, KTN News, 
KTN Home, BTV, and KTN Farmers consistently deliver 
top-tier content, making us leaders in both news and 
entertainment.

Customer Focus and Market Dynamics
Our customers remain at the heart of everything we do. 
We are deeply grateful for their loyalty and trust, which 
inspire us to continually innovate and improve. Our 
standing commitment is to continuously enhance our 
value proposition and win market share through superior 
service and engagement.

“Our customers 
remain at the heart of 
everything we do. We 
are deeply grateful for 
their loyalty and trust, 
which inspire us to 
continually innovate 
and improve.”

JOE MUNENE
AG. GROUP CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Operational Excellence and Cost Management
In response to the evolving market landscape, we have 
undertaken various cost-cutting initiatives to streamline 
operations and ensure sustainability. This included a staff 
rationalization process. These measures were necessary 
to optimize our resources and maintain financial health. 
Our commitment to operational excellence is reflected 
in the enhanced efficiency of our systems and processes, 
positioning us well for future growth.

Transformation Process and Strategic Initiatives
Under the guidance of a Transformation Committee of the 
Board, a transformation process was kicked off in 2023. 
The transformation agenda was anchored on 4 main 
pillars; Cash Generation, Positive Profit After-tax Position, 
100% maintenance of the License to Operate and Balance 
Sheet restructure. 

The process entailed the development and implementation 
of a bankable plan and saw the Company embark on 
various projects and initiatives aimed at transforming the 
business, enhancing our digital capabilities, improving 
content delivery, increasing efficiency and fostering a 
culture of continuous improvement.

Looking Ahead
As the media industry continues to evolve it is imperative 
that we respond quickly and effectively.  In line with this 
we have developed a new strategy aimed at ensuring that 
the business is fit for purpose, stays competitive and is 
very well-positioned to take advantage of the emergent 
opportunities in a digital- driven media environment. 

Content is at the heart of all that we do, and we remain 
dedicated to our mission of delivering high-quality content 
and services to our audiences. Our extensive footprint, 
coupled with a strategic focus on digital innovation, 
positions us to navigate the future with confidence. We 
stand committed to creating value for our shareholders, 
providing exceptional experiences for our customers, and 
fostering a dynamic and inclusive work environment for 
our employees.

In closing, I would like to express my sincere gratitude 
to our board of directors, management team, all the 
employees, and partners for their unwavering support and 
dedication. Together, let us continue to pursue excellence 
and work towards achieving new heights of success..

Thank you.

Joe Munene
Ag. Group Chief Executive Officer

We stand committed 
to creating value for 
our shareholders, 
providing exceptional 
experiences for our 
customers, and 
fostering a dynamic 
and inclusive work 
environment for our 
employees.”
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STRATEGIC
OVERVIEW

Future Outlook
Deep uncertainty has characterized the global landscape 
in recent years, and there is little prospect of a near-term 
return to greater predictability. International conflicts, 
growing social strains, technological shifts and tight 
financial conditions have all contributed to heightened 
volatility and continue to reshape patterns of economic 
activity. This makes for a particularly challenging 
environment for businesses and government to operate, 
with this heightened complexity being a growing challenge 
where businesses will adopt and develop corrective 
measures to respond to low growth and an unpredictable 
operating environment.  

The media landscape continues to evolve rapidly, with 
digital advertising becoming dominant as businesses 
shift budgets from traditional media to online platforms. 
Social media, influencer marketing, and programmatic 
advertising are leading this charge. To succeed, brands 
will need to pivot from insight to foresight and present 
consumers with emotive and instinctive solutions that 
will dictate not only whether they prefer a brand but also 
if a brand even crosses their radar in an AI-filtered and 
culturally reshaped reality. Brands need to begin laying the 
foundation now to future-proof themselves, developing 
and adopting the predictive capabilities and anticipatory 
behaviours needed to differentiate and grow in this new 
era. 

Consumers expect ever more relevant content and 
personalized experiences, and there is a significant shift 
in content consumption, with video-on-demand and 
streaming services gaining popularity. This and economic 
uncertainty are reshaping advertising strategies and 
leading to an increased focus on digital video content and 
data-driven marketing strategies that deliver targeted 
campaigns with better engagement and ROI. 

As a Group, we are boldly re-inventing our business to 
compete robustly in the digital age. Our Strategic Plan is 
a critical first step in shaping the Group’s future outlook 
and direction. 

As we execute our strategic plan, key imperatives that 
will feature most prominently in our strategic goals 
include: 1) Deeper focus on Innovation/R&D, 2) Revenue, 
3) Improving internal efficiencies and regulatory compliance 
4) Investing in human capital and promoting staff welfare to 
unlock productivity growth and 5) Capital Allocation from 
strategic investor financing which will be essential for our 
sustainable growth in the evolving media landscape.

As a Group, we are 
boldly re-inventing our 
business to compete 
robustly in the digital 
age. Our Strategic 
Plan is a critical first 
step in shaping the 
Group’s future outlook 
and direction. 
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We remain confident that our brands, products and 
services will deliver long-term shareholder value for our 
customers and shareholders. In our strategic intent that 
focuses on innovation and customer satisfaction, we 
continue to be guided and stand by the values of fact-
checking, journalism independence, and editorial integrity. 
The Group remains committed to improving the quality 
of people’s lives through innovative solutions, driving 
accountability by being the voice of society.

Together with our shareholders, stakeholders, customers, 
local and international communities, and strategic partners 
we are committed to pursuing a strategy that will deliver 
positive shareholder equity.  With a rich legacy spanning 
over a century, we are dedicated to delivering quality 
content driven by free and fair independent journalism.  

Consumers expect ever 
more relevant content and 
personalized experiences, and 
there is a significant shift in 
content consumption, with 
video-on-demand and streaming 
services gaining popularity.

Standard Group team during AACOSE 2023, social enterprise 
conference at Tangaza University. 

A team from Standard Group with partners at a tree 
planting event at Lenana School during the National 
Tree Planting Day.

Standard Group management during a strategy workshop at company headquarters.
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STANDARD GROUP 
JOURNALISTS SHINE

Journalist Caroline Chebet received a prestigious award by 
Internews’ Earth Journalism Network for her exceptional 

reporting on biodiversity.

Andy Kagwa received the Earth Journalism Network award for 
his great work in mentoring journalists to better their craft.

Steve Ondieki’s podcast, “The Blue Gold Rush: Race to Control 
Kenya’s Shrinking Water Towers,” won the Podcast of the Year 

at the AJEA 2024.

Standard Group’s Anthony Ndiema and Edwin Kwambai 
celebrate winning at the 2023 KUZA Awards.

Isaiah Gwengi’s investigation into the detrimental impact of 
cage culture on Nyanza’s landing sites earned him the Best 

Print Story accolade at the AJEA 2024.
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Lukenya University Marathon 2nd Edition Cheque 
Presentation Ceremony at the Standard Group: Pauline 
Mutwa Sammy, winner of the 42km Women’s Race, 
receives her award from Lukenya University leadership, 
witnessed by the marathon’s sponsors.
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Standard Group and Huawei Kenya 
leadership during a partnership signing 
on cloud technology.
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Amidst the whirlwind of changes in the media landscape, 
The Standard Group PLC has not only weathered the 
storms but has emerged as a beacon of resilience and 
innovation. Despite facing formidable challenges, 
including disruptions in traditional media and evolving 
consumer habits, the company has demonstrated 
remarkable adaptability and unwavering commitment to 
delivering value to its consumers. 

In the face of adversity, and the hostile business 
environment, caused largely by the problem of pending 
bills and a slowdown in the overall economy, we continue 
to transform our business to best serve our customers. The 
company has risen to the occasion, embracing innovation, 
fostering impactful partnerships, and driving sustainable 
growth. Our relentless pursuit of excellence has not only 
sustained our operations but has also positioned us for 
future success in an ever-evolving industry landscape. 
As we reflect on the achievements of 2023, our priority 
remains to serve our customers with the best media 
products, improve the welfare of our staff, and fulfil our 
obligations to all our stakeholders.

The evolution of the media landscape has been unrelenting 
with rapid increase in the disruptions in radio, print and TV 
and the advent and growing impact of digital platforms. 
The context of this assertion is the need therefore to 
adapt with the changing trends in the consumer habits, 
to ensure that Standard Group brands deliver great value 
to the consumers.  Admittedly, we have had to adjust how 
we do business to meet the consumer needs, as informed 
by changing consumer demands.

Whereas the business 
environment remained 
challenging, as attributed to 
many factors, practical yet 
efficient approaches were 
adopted to ensure the key 
goal of recruiting and retaining 
audiences across all the 
Group’s platforms is sustained. 
Specific focus was on 
execution of brand campaigns, 
content marketing, consumer 
engagement activities and 
robust brand visibility on 
integrated media platforms. 

The activities were aligned 
with the marketing strategy of 
‘‘audience first’’. 

KTN Home was rebranded and assumed the best 
foundational colours for the entertainment industry, 
which are purple and yellow. The new look is dynamic, 
refreshing, aspirational and inspires hope, and is indeed 
the home of entertainment. It remains a family channel, it’s 
fun, its captivating, inspirational and puts the audiences 
first in its content offering on all platforms. The new look 
and brand unveiled was a recommitment to our audiences 
that this reawakened KTN Home will focus on local Swahili 
drama shows such as Njoro wa Uba and Hullabaloo, NIA, 
and so much more. 

The Group has sustained its brand campaign of Facts First 
which is the editorial-driven messaging of reaffirming 
our integrity to our audiences. As the world battles with 
misinformation and disinformation, The Standard and 
KTN News brands have stood tall by being unflinching 
in dissemination of news by providing all the insights, 
context and perspectives. 

Navigating Challenges, Building 
Resilience, and Embracing Growth

YEAR IN REVIEW
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The 9th edition of Pulse Music Video Awards was very 
successful in recruiting youthful audiences for the 
entertainment brands. The overall winner received 1M 
worth of medical insurance and the event cemented the 
position of Standard Group as the home of entertainment 
for the youth.    

The focus for Radio Maisha was promotion of new talents 
who joined the station and through major brand events 
such as Choma na Ngoma. Additionally, English Premier 
League activations in clubs have sustained the momentum 
for the brand by maintaining the brand relevance and 
furthered the connections with the audiences. The Lokole 
Festival graced by Rhumba maestro Ferre Gola and other 
local artists, accorded Radio Maisha the energy that 
propelled the brand to second place in the country in 
2023, according to IPSOS data. Radio Maisha was voted 
as the best radio station in the prestigious KUZA Awards, 
held by Communication Authority of Kenya.  

There was an intense promotion of the Group’s brands 
on billboards across the country. This was a significant 
achievement that increased top of mind awareness of 
brands, cultivated brand equity and the impact could be 
felt in the growth of audiences.  

Building Bridges: Fostering Meaningful 
Connections and Partnerships
The Standard Group PLC is committed to fostering 
meaningful partnerships and engaging with stakeholders 
to drive positive impact across various sectors. These 
engagements have not only strengthened our relationships 
but have also contributed significantly to our corporate 
social responsibility efforts and revenue generation.

Here are some highlights of our key partnerships and 
stakeholder engagements for the year:

High-Level Visitors and Meetings:

•	 Hosted several high-level government officials and 
corporate executives, including Nobel Laureate Prof 
Muhammad Yunus, Mombasa Governor Abdulswamad 
Nassir, former British High Commissioner Jane 
Marriott, CS for Land, Public Works, Housing and 
Urban Development Zachariah Mwangi Njeru, British 
High Commissioner to Kenya Neil Wigan, and The 
Nairobi Hospital CEO James Nyamongo among 
others.

•	 Paid a courtesy call to the new Kenya Re Managing 
Director Dr. Hillary Wachinga, discussing mutual 
areas of collaboration.

Other Engagements and Activities:

•	 In partnership with the Global Peace Foundation 
Kenya, hosted the 2nd edition of the Transform 
Education summit in Nairobi. The forum brought 
together stakeholders in the education sector to 
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FarmKenya Initiative: Empowering 
Agriculture Through Innovation
The Standard Group PLC continues to foster impactful 
partnerships and pursue diverse revenue streams through 
its FarmKenya initiative. Despite funding challenges, 
collaborations were established with key entities such as 
Food and Land Use Coalition (FOLU), Ecological Organic 
Agriculture Initiative (EOA-I), Share Screen Africa, 
Kenchic, Alliance for Science, Farm Forest, and KALRO. 
These partnerships aimed at enhancing agricultural 
communication, promoting sustainable practices, co-
creating and disseminating content through various 
channels and countering misinformation.

Notable events and revenue-generating activities included 
the successful hosting of the FarmKenya Breakfast 
focusing on food security and safety, as well as the launch 
of the Global Hunger Index (GHI) report, generating 

significant revenue. Additionally, strategic 
initiatives like the Real IPM marketing drive, 
AYUTE Challenge launch, and coverage of 
the Sustainable Agriculture College of East 
Africa (CSAEA) contributed to revenue 
generation and awareness building.

Furthermore, FarmKenya continued to 
explore opportunities for collaboration and 
revenue generation through events like the 
World MSME Day focusing on agribusiness, 
and joint proposals such as the partnership 
with Bio-vision Africa Trust (BvAT) for 
agro-ecology farming stories, reflecting 
the initiative’s commitment to innovative 
partnerships and sustainable growth.

FarmKenya 
continued 
to explore 
opportunities 
for 
collaboration 
and revenue 
generation

To mark World Children’s Day, Precious 
Ng’ondu, 13, guest anchored on KTN News 
at One, on November 20, 2023.

deliberate on education trends and share best 
practices and recommendations aimed at improving 
the quality of learning in Kenya.

•	 Sponsored by UNFPA, the Standard Group Women 
Network (SGWN) Mentorship Workshop was held 
on May 31, with more than 60 staff enrolled in the 
Cohort 2 Programme.

•	 Hosted the Transform Kenya Forum on E-Mobility in 
partnership with the Ministry of Transport.

•	 Social Entrepreneurship Project - Partnered with 
Tangaza University College and Ashoka Africa to 
host the East Africa Social Business Conference 
and the 6th Annual Africa Conference on Social 
Entrepreneurship, featuring Nobel Peace Laureate 
Prof Muhammad Yunus. The highlight was the launch 
of SAT Innovation Awards to recognize and reward 
social entrepreneurs.

•	 UNICEF Kenya partnership for World Children’s Day 
– hosted the World Children’s Day 
event in Kisumu, including the 2nd 
edition of the Children’s Essay and 
Video competition.

•	 Hosted the inaugural Climate Action 
Forum.

THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA



THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 31



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 202332

PHOTO SPEAK

Nairobi Governor Johnson Sakaja poses with Spice FM Situation Room 
presenters.

Cars showcased during the 2023 Digger Motor Show at the KICC.

Standard Group’s Seth Enos and Media Council 
of Kenya CEO David Omwoyo at The Standard 

Group PLC stand during the second edition of the 
Global Media Congress in Abu Dhabi, UAE.

Prince Indah receives his award 
at the 2023 PMVA awards.

Standard Group sponsored 2023 
East African Safari Classic.

Standard Group staff participate at the Scott 
Christian University’s Campus to Campus Run.

Children pose for a picture during 
Club Kiboko Festival.

The winner of The Standard County Golf Classic 
in Eldoret celebrates.
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Ktn News Studio visit by high school students.

Ktn News Studio visit by high school students.

New Standard Group CEO Marion Mwangi  (third left) with part of the senior 
management team and guests.

Performances during Lokole Festival.

End of year client engagement event.

Conversation on social entrepreneurship with legendary Nobel leaureate and recently appointed interim Bangladesh Prime 
Minister Prof. Muhammad Yunus (third right) at the Standard Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 
GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 
GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT

US Ambassador to Kenya Meg Whitman planting 
a fruit seedling at Muongoiya Primary School in 
Kiambu during a Fruity School Initiative.
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With a legacy spanning over a century of journalistic 
excellence, The Standard Group takes pride in its pivotal 
role of informing, educating, and entertaining audiences 
across various platforms. Recognizing our responsibility 
towards societal commitments, we are dedicated to 
ensuring the long-term viability of our business, benefitting 
not only our consumers but also the communities we 
serve. As an organization, we have focused our efforts 
on impactful areas such as health, education, and the 
environment, leveraging the power of media to foster 
dialogue and drive meaningful action.

The Standard Group remains steadfast in its commitment 
to environmental stewardship, social responsibility, and 
ethical governance. Through strategic initiatives and 
partnerships, we strive to make a positive impact on 
society while ensuring the sustainability and resilience of 
our business operations.

Environment
•	 Fruity Schools Initiative: In collaboration with 

Fruity Schools Africa, The Standard Group PLC 
embarked on an ambitious project  aimed at utilizing 
underutilized spaces in over 35,000 public schools 
to plant and care for over 1,000,000 fruit trees. This 
initiative not only promotes healthy nutrition among 
learners but also underscores the vital role of trees 
in supporting biodiversity and environmental health. 
We have planted over 50,000 fruity trees in various 
educational institutions through the Green Initiative 
in collaboration with Fruity Schools Africa, US 
Embassy, Global Peace Foundation among partners, 
promoting environmental sustainability.

•	 SG Green Initiative: Climate change 
poses one of the most urgent 
challenges to our planet today, 
affecting every corner of the globe. 
In Kenya, a nation heavily reliant 
on tourism and rainfed agriculture, 
climate change and extreme 
weather events threaten economic 
stability and human well-being. The 
Standard Group has championed 
environmental awareness through 

extensive reporting and educational campaigns 
over the years. Our SG Green Initiative embodies a 
comprehensive agenda encompassing multi-platform 
journalism, partnerships, and operational initiatives 
aimed at combating climate change, restoring the 
planet, and securing a better future for generations 
to come.

	 A monthly pullout magazine, “Planet Action,” within 
The Standard Newspaper features news, special 
features, and outstanding climate journalism. 
Additionally, we host bespoke events designed to 
facilitate crucial conversations on climate solutions. 
Our initiatives have included the inaugural Standard 
Group Climate Action forum in partnership with the 
Pan-African Climate Justice Alliance (PACJA), setting 
the stage for Kenya’s commitments at COP28.

	 We also engage in tree planting exercises as part of 
sporting activities such as  Eldoret City Marathon, 
Lukenya University Marathon and the Standard 
County Golf Classic, Eldoret Edition to promote 
climate adaptation and mitigation across Kenya, 
uniting corporate leaders and policymakers as active 
climate advocates.

  MONDAY ,   JUNE   24 ,  2024    The Standard  18  PLANET ACTION

PlanetAction 
World. UK minister compares poll betting scandal to Partygate. Page 22

Scan here for more 
stories, photos, videos 

and audio clips.

TRANS NZOIA

y B Martin Ndiema
healthscience@standardmedia.co.ke

Trans Nzoia county government targets 
to plant 119 million trees by 2032 under its 
ambitious afforestation programme.

Chief Offi cer for Environment Dorothy 
Nyukuri, said the county government has 
put in place measures to ensure that all 
seedlings planted grow to maturity to com-
bat degradation of the environment.

“I urge environmental stakeholders to 
ensure that all trees planted are properly 
nurtured to grow and fulfi ll their intended 
purpose,” said Nyukuri.

She regretted that failure to nurture 
seedlings has been a setback in efforts to 
restore tree cover in the past.

Nyukuri said tree planting will be inte-
grated with agricultural practices through 
Community Forest Associations (CFS).

The Chief Offi cer urged farmers to grow 
trees alongside crops, to complement coun-
ty efforts to enhance tree survival rate and 
foster a sustainable environment.

“As we focus on planting trees, we should 
also ensure that every tree matures, to 
improve forest cover and make our efforts 
a success,” Nyukuri added.

Elly Tinda, the Trans Nzoia County Con-
servator, said the tree planting initiative 
was a vital measure to restore the forests 
and biodiversity.

“Kenya Forest Service (KFS) has desig-
nated 45,000 hectares for tree growing, 
aimed at fostering socioeconomic develop-
ment within the county while providing 
commercial services,” Tinda said.

“We urge farmers to participate actively 
in this campaign. By adopting a model 
where trees are planted alongside crops, 
the initiative not only improves the envi-
ronment but also enhances agricultural 
productivity and provides additional 
income sources for farmers,” he added.

James Cabinda, an environmentalist 
noted that by planting trees, the environ-
ment is safeguarded and the livelihoods of 
millions of people who depend on forests 
for their sustenance are guaranteed.

“Local schools have integrated tree 
planting into their curriculum, educating 
students about the importance of environ-
mental conservation from a young age. 
Community tree nurseries have sprung up 
in rural areas, providing residents with 
access to seedlings and training on proper 
planting techniques,” said Cabinda.

County takes 
up 119 million 
tree mission

 ∑ He called upon non-state 
actors and other develop-
ment partners to support 
learning and facilitate re-
gional engagements

JAMES WANZALA, NAIROBI

T
here is a need for non-
state actors and devel-
opment partners to 
support learning and 
facilitate regional en-

gagements to strengthen capaci-
ties on the critical role of climate 
diplomacy and international coop-
eration on climate action among 
young people.

This is according to Principal 
Secretary, of the State Department 
for Environment and Climate 
Change Eng Festus Ng’eno, who 
delivered a keynote address at the 
three-day conference of the fourth 
edition of the Climate Diplomacy 
Academy (CDA) at Strathmore 
University in Nairobi. 

“I call upon non-state actors 
and other development partners 
to support learning and facilitate 
regional engagements, such as this 
conference which has brought to-
gether about 80 young and as-
piring climate change experts, 
diplomats, negotiators, and poli-
cymakers from 21 Sub-Saharan 
African countries to build their 

capacity on the critical role of cli-
mate diplomacy and international 
cooperation on climate action,” 
said PS Ngeno.

He added: “I believe that this 
Climate Diplomacy Academy and 
any other related programmes will 
go a long way in helping Africa in-
troduce its young climate change 
experts and policymakers to the 
global climate negotiation pro-
cesses as well as build their tech-
nical negotiation understanding 
and skills.”

Started four years ago in Cam-
eroun, the CDA is a six-month 
programme by the Konrad-Ade-
nauer-Stiftung (KAS), Regional 
Programme Energy Security and 
Climate Change in Sub-Saharan 
Africa (SSA) and works with 
Strathmore University as its part-
ner. The fourth edition comprised 
a total of 80 students drawn from 
21 countries, an increase from 40 
for the last edition.

Ms Anja Berretta, Head of 
Programme, KAS-Regional Pro-
gramme Energy Security and Cli-
mate Change, emphasised the ur-
gency of international cooperation 
to address the impacts of climate 
change.

“The consequences of cli-
mate  change can be  felt every-
where. Due to a low level of resil-
ience and economic  reliance on 
rainfed agriculture in most sub-

Saharan countries, the continent 
is especially vulnerable to unpre-
dictable and extreme weather 
events,” said Ms Anja.

Prof Izael Da Silva, Deputy Vice-
Chancellor - Research and Innova-
tion at Strathmore University and 
the UNESCO Chair for Climate 
Change Resilience and Sustaina-
bility, welcomed the establishment 
of a network of future leaders.

He highlighted the role of sus-
tained policy-making and diplo-
matic relations across Sub-Saha-
ran Africa in fostering these new 
leaders. He underscored the need 
for ongoing efforts to nurture this 
new generation of leaders who can 
effectively engage in international 
climate policy and negotiations, 
helping to bridge the gap in Af-
rica’s capacity to drive climate ac-
tions at both regional and national 
levels.

The United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change 
(UNFCCC) serves as the primary 
global policy framework address-
ing climate change.

However, Africa faces signifi-
cant challenges due to its limited 
capacity to engage effectively in in-
ternational climate policy discus-
sions, hindering the advancement 
of climate actions at both regional 
and national levels.

jwanzala@standardmedia.co.ke

PS calls for empowerment of 
young climate change experts

Environment and Climate Change Principal Secretary Festus Ng’eno with students of the 4th Climate Diplomacy Academy, 2024 at Strathmore University, Nairobi. 
[Jonah Onyango, Standard]

I call upon non-
state actors and 
other development 
partners to support 
learning and 
facilitate regional 
engagements.”
 Festus Ng’eno, Environment and 
Climate Change  Principal 
Secretary

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 37

Making a Difference: Impacting Communities 
Through Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

The Standard Group PLC remains committed to its 
mission of making a positive impact on society through 
various Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives. 
Our efforts spanned across diverse areas including 
education, healthcare, environmental sustainability, and 
empowerment of persons with disabilities.

Through strategic partnerships and impactful 
initiatives, we strive to create a 
sustainable and positive impact 
on the communities we serve. We 
remain dedicated to upholding 
our values of social responsibility 
and corporate citizenship in the 
years to come.

Healthcare:

•	 Supported St. Luke’s 
Orthopaedic Hospital in 
Eldoret in launching the 
production of Trans-Humeral 
prosthetic limbs, contributing to 
healthcare accessibility.

•	 Participated in health awareness 
walk with St. John’s Ambulance, promoting 
community wellness. 

•	 Collaborated with Nairobi Pinktober Fest to raise 
awareness about breast cancer; Used media 
platforms to raise awareness on early detection and 
prevention of cancer.

•	 Sponsored a golf tournament that was aimed at 
raising funds to support the Coast Hospice, a facility 
in Mombasa that provides palliative care to patients 
with life limiting illnesses. 

Advocacy for Persons with Disability:

•	 Supported initiatives for persons with special needs, 
including raising awareness about autism through 
partnerships with Andy Speaks4Persons with Special 
Needs and Step Up4Autism organization.

•	 Partnership with Step Up4Autism organization- 
Used our media platforms to raise awareness on 
autism; Supported the World Autism Awareness Day 
Marathon in Eldoret.

Bomb Blast Commemoration:

•	 Sponsored the August 7th Memorial Trust to 
commemorate the Silver Jubilee since the August 7th 
terror attack in Nairobi.

Education:

Academic Media Tours

We hosted 1,703 learners from 55 schools 
including primary, secondary and tertiary 
institutions, on our Academic Tour 
Programme, among them Kabarak University, 
NLA University- Norway, and Mombasa 
Aviation College. We hosted a group of 25 
editors attending a professional development 

course at the Aga Khan University’s Graduate School of 
Media and Communications, showcasing our multimedia 
nature business and Converged Newsroom.

Newspapers in Education (NiE) Programme

The Newspaper in Education (NiE) program aims to 
cultivate a robust reading culture in learning institutions 
as well as improving writing skills among learners. We 
have partnered with over 250 schools.

Since its inception, the NiE program has been a beacon 
of educational support, delivering tailored educational 
content to schools. For a nominal fee of Ksh.14,400 per 
term or Ksh.43,200 per year, enrolled schools receive 22 
copies of The Standard newspaper every Tuesday. Each 
edition is meticulously curated to include educational 
content such as:

The Standard
MONDAY, JUNE 24, 2024

Deadly heat: Heat exposure during pregnancy can lead to 

premature births and stillbirths or a lifetime of health problems, 

Landmark study: Clinical trial brings new hope 

in decades-long quest for an HIV vaccine , P.3

10 ways imbalances 

affect your health

Involving men and boys is In a survey of 2,000 women aged between 30 

and 60, 47 per cent of the respondents said they had experienced 

symptoms of hormonal imbalance, we speak to experts about how these 

symptoms manifest physically and mentally, P.4-5

P.6
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•	 Test Papers: Crafted by renowned examiners, providing 
students with valuable practice opportunities.

•	 Exam Tips: Columns offering strategic advice on how 
to excel in examinations.

•	 Guidance and Counselling: Articles aimed at 
supporting students’ mental and emotional well-
being.

Other education engagements:

1.	 Collaborated with KCA University for the Vice 
Chancellor & CEO Cycling Tour, raising funds for 
needy students.

2.	 Launched the Campus to Campus Run in partnership 
with Scott Christian University to raise funds for 
needy students.

3.	 Hosted the 4th edition of the Annual Great Places to 
School initiative in collaboration with Global Peace 
Foundation, promoting quality education. 

4.	 Supported various charity events including the 
Starehe Girls’ Centre charity walk and Laibon Society’s 
Annual Charity Golf Day, raising funds for educational 
support.

The Standard Media Group Foundation

Our commitment to social impact is further embodied 
through The Standard Media Group Foundation, an 
autonomous body tasked with developing and managing 
impactful social programs in partnership with various 
organizations. Key focus areas include environmental 
sustainability, healthcare access, education equity and 
disability rights, The Foundation has been instrumental in 
responding to national emergencies, including mobilising 
support during the recent flood relief efforts.

Floods Disaster Recovery Initiative

First Responders taking records of flood victims who turned up at the Huruma Sports Ground free Medical Camp organized by 
St. John Ambulance. 

 St. John Ambulance volunteer nurse checking temperature 
levels of a sick child displaced by the floods at the Huruma 
Sports Grounds medical camp on 11 May.

St. John Ambulance Volunteer Doctor diagnosing for possible 
throat inflammation before treatment of a flood victim who 
survived the Mathare area where floods swept away homes.

An initiative of Standard Media Group Foundation

The Standard Group Media Foundation, Global Peace Foundation and Chandaria 
Foundation donated food items to flood victims in Magadi, Kajiado County. 

About 1000 people affected by floods in Magadi Kajiado county benefited from the relief donations. 

St. John Ambulance volunteer doctors, nurses and pharmacists attend to 
flood victims  in Mathare, Nairobi. 

The medical camp organized by St John Ambulance Kenya in partnership with The Standard Media 
Group Foundation, Rotary Clubs of Kenya and MP Shah Hospital offered free medical consultation 
services, triage, treatment and dispensing of medication to over 400 families displaced by the recent 
floods.
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Employee Engagement
Employee engagement at The Standard Group is 
a continuous process essential to our company’s 
performance and culture. We prioritize an open-door 
policy that encourages employees to voice their opinions 
without fear of discrimination or retaliation. This policy 
also provides a safe channel for resolving conflicts or 
addressing issues effectively. Quarterly staff forums 
serve as pivotal platforms for fostering dialogue, sharing 
updates, and gathering feedback from our team members.

Our comprehensive grievance procedure ensures that 
concerns related to social, financial, emotional, or 
physical well-being are promptly addressed, reinforcing 
our commitment to employee welfare. Additionally, our 
whistleblowing policy offers a secure mechanism for 
reporting unethical practices, behaviors, or violations of 
our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct.

We recognize that our employees are our greatest 
assets. We are dedicated to nurturing a supportive work 
environment where every individual can thrive and 
contribute effectively.

Mentorship and Training
The Standard Group fosters skills enhancement and 
professional growth through various training programs, 
particularly in journalistic skills. 

Our training initiatives are designed to enhance journalistic 
skills and keep our teams abreast of emerging trends 
and technologies in media. We offer a diverse range of 
workshops, seminars, and online courses tailored to the 
needs of different departments and career levels within 
the organization. These programs not only strengthen 
technical competencies but also cultivate leadership 
qualities and strategic thinking among our staff.

The Standard Group Women Network plays a pivotal role 
in mentoring both women and men in media, promoting 
gender diversity and inclusion. The network spearheads a 
mentorship program that pairs experienced professionals, 
both men and women, with mentees to provide guidance, 
support career development, and foster a collaborative 
work environment.

Through these initiatives, The Standard Group empowers 



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 202348

its employees to excel in their roles, adapt to industry 
changes, and contribute effectively to our mission of 
journalistic excellence and societal impact. We are 
committed to investing in our team members’ professional 
growth, ensuring they remain at the forefront of media 
innovation and leadership.

Employee Well-being
At the heart of our business are our employees, whom 
we value as our greatest assets. We uphold equal 
employment opportunities and merit-based decisions 
across recruitment, promotion, development, career 
progression, and remuneration. The Group is committed 
to building a future-ready workforce through continuous 
development and support.
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Championing Safety at The Standard Group

At The Standard Group, our commitment to Occupational 
Health and Safety (OSH) isn’t just a priority; it’s a way of 
life. We embarked on a journey to not just meet industry 
standards but to set new benchmarks in workplace safety, 
recognizing the invaluable role it plays in the well-being of 
our employees and the efficiency of our operations.

Safety Week Celebration: Every 
year, we celebrate our much-
anticipated Safety Week in April, 
a vibrant extravaganza of safety 
activities. From mastering first 
aid techniques to honing fire 
safety skills, from road safety 
awareness to comprehensive 
medical check-ups, every aspect 
of safety was meticulously 
covered.

Safety Training Initiatives: Throughout the year, we 
invested in empowering our team with essential skills. 
First aid training ensured that our staff were equipped 
to handle emergencies confidently. Road safety training 
aimed to instill responsible habits on the road, while 
fire safety sessions and drills fortified our preparedness 
for any unforeseen circumstances. Our OSH Committee 
underwent specialized training, reinforcing our internal 
network of safety advocates.

Fitness and Wellness: Understanding that physical fitness 
and mental well-being are pillars of a productive workforce, 
we prioritized access to a gym within the premises at the 
Standard Group Centre, on Mombasa Road. Additionally, 
we organized invigorating hikes, immersing ourselves in 
the rejuvenating embrace of nature at Oloolua Nature Trail, 
Karura Forest and Kijabe Trail among other adventures.

Our fitness enthusiasts didn’t stop there. They 
enthusiastically participated in renowned marathons and 
walks, not just for the thrill of competition but to champion 
health and wellness. From the Standard Chartered 
Marathon to the Mater Heart Run, from the Lukenya 
University Marathon to the Campus to Campus Run, our 
team left footprints of commitment and resilience.

Mental Health Awareness: Recognizing the importance of 
mental well-being, we embarked on a series of initiatives 
to foster a supportive environment. From enlightening 
webinars to dynamic dance collaborations with Dance 
Klan, we celebrated World Mental Health Awareness Day 
with vigor. We 
also introduced 
Men’s Hub, 
providing a safe 
space for men to 
connect, share, 
and support each 
other through 
life’s challenges.

Industry Collaboration: In 
collaboration with The 
Workplace Safety Professionals 
Association of Kenya (WSPAK), 
we hosted the inaugural 
Conference themed “Capacity 
Building in the Occupational 
Safety & Health Profession.” 
This milestone event brought 
together industry leaders to 
exchange insights and advance 
the cause of workplace safety.

Community Engagement: Our commitment to safety extended beyond our walls. 
Preceding the World Day of Safety, we convened at Karura Forest for a day of impactful 
activities. From a spirited first aid competition to empowering mental health talks, 
from exhilarating team-building exercises to nurturing our environment through tree 
planting, every moment was a testament to our dedication to safety and community 
stewardship.
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WAKADINALI NASIEKU TOBY BISENGO OMOKE KATE THUKU

WINNERS

T H E  H O T T E S T  E N T E R T A I N M E N T  B R A N D  P R E S E N T S

NONINI FT MTEMI NASHA TRAVIS
& TRIO MIO

VIJANA BARUBARU SOUNDKRAFT
FT. GODY TENNOR

BEST CHOREOGRAPHY
OF THE YEAR

BEST COLLABORATION
OF THE YEAR

BEST GROUP
OF THE YEAR

BREAKTHROUGH VIDEO 
SONG OF THE YEAR

DJ GIBBZ SSARU PRINCE INDAH PRINCESS RECHO

DJ OF THE YEAR

SONG OF THE YEAR
TIKTOK CHALLANGE

OF THE YEAR
VERNACULAR SONG

OF THE YEAR
VIDEO DIRECTOR

OF THE YEAR
VIDEO VIXEN
OF THE YEAR

FEMALE ARTIST
OF THE YEAR

MALE ARTIST
OF THE YEAR

NEW ARTIST 
OF THE YEAR

FREE COPY WITH THE STANDARD ON FRIDAY
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                          TripleOKLaw Advocates LLP 

ACK Garden House, 5 Floor 
First Ngong Avenue 
PO Box 43170 - 00100 
Nairobi.  

 
 
**German 
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

 
 

PRINCIPAL BANKERS  
 
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited 

      Stanbic Bank Centre 
                          Westlands Road, Chiromo  
                          PO Box 72833 – 00200 
                          Nairobi. 

 
                          NCBA Bank Kenya PLC  

NCBA Centre Upperhill 
                          Mara Rd, 
                          PO Box 44599 - 00100 
                          Nairobi. 

 
                          KCB Bank Kenya Limited 
                          Moi Avenue 
                          PO Box 48400 - 00100 
                          Nairobi. 

 
                          Equity Bank Kenya Limited 
                          Equity Centre 
                          Hospital Road, Upperhill 
                          PO Box 75104 - 00200 
                          Nairobi. 
 

 
COMPANY REGISTRARS  
                           

Image Registrars Limited  
                          Absa Towers (formerly Barclays Plaza) 
                          5th Floor, Loita Street 
                          PO Box 9287 - 00100 
                          Nairobi. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 47

 

Page 4 

 
THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 

 
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for 
the year ended 31 December 2023, which disclose the state of affairs of the Group and the Company. 
 
1. Principal activities 

 
The principal activity of the Group is gathering and disseminating information through Print, 
Television, Radio and Digital Media. The print products are The Standard, The Nairobian and 
The Standard Courier. Radio products include Radio Maisha, Spice FM ,Vybez radio and Berur 
FM. Television products include KTN Home, KTN News, Btv and KTN Farmers TV. Digital 
offerings include the E-paper, Reader revenue, Standardmedia.co.ke website, Digger Classifieds 
and Value Added Services.  
 

2. Group results   
       2023 2022 
 KES 000 KES 000 
Loss before income tax            (722,538)  (1,023,463) 
Income tax credit /(expense) (538,902) 158,259  
Loss for the year                 (1,261,440) (865,204) 
   
Attributable to:   
Non-controlling interests              (95,039)  (44,184) 
Owners of the Company (1,166,401)  (821,020) 
                                                                             (1,261,440)  (865,204) 

3. Dividend 
 
The directors do not recommend a dividend payment for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022 
– Nil). 
 

4. Directors 
 
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report are set out below. 

Robin Sewell* -Chairman Resigned 27th April 2023 
Dr. Julius Kipngetich                                                    - Deputy Chairman  
Orlando Lyomu                                                              -Chief Executive Officer      Resigned 6th July 2023 
Zehrabanu Janmohamed   
Dr. James Mcfie   
Juliana Rotich  Resigned 18th September 2023 
Dr. Evanson Gitahi  Resigned 10th November 2023 
Shaun Zambuni*  Resigned 4th July 2023 
Christopher Kulei   
Thomas Omondi  Appointed 24th March 2023 
Chaacha Mwita  Appointed 4th July 2023 
Albert Sigei  Appointed 19th December 2023 
Christine Muthui  Appointed 19th December 2023 
Leonie Von Elverfeldt**  Appointed 6th March 2024 
Chris Otundo  Appointed 6th March 2024 
   
* British   
**German   
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED) 
 

5. Statement of disclosure to the company’s auditor 
 

With respect to each director at the time this report was approved: 
 

a. There is, so far as the director are aware, no relevant audit information of which the 
Group’s and Company’s auditor is unaware; and 

 
b. the directors have taken all steps that the director ought to have taken as a director to be 

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Company’s 
auditor is aware of that information. 
 

6. Terms of appointment of auditors 
 
Grant Thornton LLP have been appointed and are willing to continue in office in accordance with 
the Company’s Articles of Association and Section 723 of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. 
 
The directors monitor the effectiveness, objectivity and independence of the auditor. This 
responsibility includes the approval of the audit engagement contract and the associated fees on 
behalf of the shareholders. 
 

7. Business overview 
 

Summary of results 
 
The Group operates on various platforms which include: 

 
(a) Print platform. This platform has two main publications; The Standard and The Nairobian. 

Revenue from this platform is generated from the sale of newspaper copies and 
advertisements on the publications.  

(b) Broadcast platform. This includes television and radio platforms. 
i. The television platform comprises 4 television stations which include; KTN-Home, 

KTN-News, Btv and KTN Farmers TV. KTN Home is a station providing all round 
entertainment and news for general audiences. KTN-News is the first 24 hour news 
channel in East Africa. Btv is a station catering for the sports and entertainment 
needs of the youth. KTN Farmers TV was rolled out as part of the Group’s Farm 
Kenya Initiative; and aims to connect all stakeholders in the agribusiness sector. 
Revenue from the television platforms is generated through advertisements on the 
television stations. 

ii. The radio platform comprises 4 radio stations which are Radio Maisha, Spice FM, 
Vybez Radio and Berur FM. Revenue from the radio platforms is generated through 
advertisements on the radio stations. 

(c) Digital platform. Digital platforms include the Standard Digital website, Value Added 
Services (VAS), Digger Classifieds and social media pages. Revenue is generated through 
advertisements ran on these platforms, subscriptions to access content on these platforms and 
sale of digital copies of the newspaper. 

 
The Group revenue decreased by 13% to KES 2.3 billion from KES 2.7 billion in the prior year. 
The decline was a result of decreased revenue from advertising clients. Owing to the tough 
economic conditions, companies reduced their marketing spends to avail funds for other critical 
expenses, to keep businesses afloat. Further, there was experience of decline in audience 
engagement which was a factor of revenue decline. Government institutions minimised their 
marketing activities and that negatively impacted the Group’s revenues. 

 



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 49

 

Page 6 

 
THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED) 

 
7. Business overview (continued) 
 

Summary of results (continued)  
 

 
 
Group direct costs slightly increased compared to 2022 largely due to changes in newsprint prices 
and electricity costs. Group overhead costs closed at 25% lower than 2022 largely from staff cost 
reduction measures and variation of fuel prices. 

 
The Group incurred a loss before tax of KES 723 million compared to a loss before tax of KES   
1 billion in 2022. This was driven by the factors mentioned above on revenue and overhead costs.  
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED) 

 
7. Business overview (continued) 
 

Financial position  
 
The Group’s total assets have decreased to KES 4.09 billion year (2022: KES 4.43 billion). as a 
result of the derecognition of the deferred tax asset of KES 539 million in the year.  

 

 
Principal risk: 

 
The principal risk facing the business were high level of inflation, audience engagement and rising 
cost of doing business. Increased inflation, from rising cost of food, electricity, and fuel, increased 
the cost of doing business. Being a post electioneering year, the speed of recovery from the loss 
of income from the slowed economic activities was a risk as there were uncertainties on the 
policies that came with the new government. We are positive with the economic stabilisation after 
the close of elections and resumption of business activities, clients will recommence their 
advertising spends to grow our revenues. Further, with the new government institutions having 
settled in, there is renewed optimism of growth in advertising spends and consequently our 
revenues.  

  
 

8. Approval of financial statements 
 
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue at a meeting of the Board of 
Directors held on 29th June 2024. 
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
 
The Standard Group PLC is pleased to present the Director’s Remuneration report for the year ended 
31 December 2023. The report sets out the remuneration arrangements for the Directors for the year 
under review.  
 
Information not subject to audit 
Details of Directors 
 
The Board comprises Non-Executive and Executive Directors who served during the year (collectively 
referred to as Directors), as follows: 
Name                                         Position 

*British 
 
Remuneration Policy 
 
The Group has an approved Remuneration Policy for the Board which defines the remuneration and 
related privileges received by the director of the Company. The policy seeks to recognize the 
contribution the directors make to the success of the Group while reflecting the value of the roles they 
play, as well as the level to which they perform them. Our approach to recognizing our director’s 
contribution to the business is based on the following principles: 
 
⎯ Competitive remuneration - The remuneration is sufficient to attract and retain highly experienced 

directors to effectively direct the affairs of the Group. 
⎯ Affordability and sustainability - Our remuneration is sustainable and affordable in the face of the 

Group’s performance in the industry. 
⎯ Equitable - The reward is equitable and commensurate to the amount of time and skill in delivering 

the Group’s strategic objectives. 
 

The Nominations Committee of the Board is responsible for setting and administering the directors 
Remuneration Policy. The Nominations Committee continuously reviews the entitlements under the 
policy to ensure these are aligned to the market.  
 
 
 

Robin Sewell* -Chairman Resigned 27th April 2023 
Dr. Julius Kipngetich                                                    -Deputy Chairman  
Orlando Lyomu                                                              -Chief Executive Officer      Resigned 6th July 2023 
Zehrabanu Janmohamed -Non-Executive Director  
Dr. James Mcfie -Non-Executive Director  
Shaun Zambuni* -Non-Executive Director Resigned 4th July 2023 
Christopher Kulei -Non-Executive Director  
Thomas Omondi -Non-Executive Director Appointed 24th March 2023 
Juliana Rotich -Independent/Non-Executive Director Resigned 18th September 2023 
Dr. Evanson Gitahi -Independent/Non-Executive Director Resigned 10th November 2023 
Chaacha Mwita -Independent/Non-Executive Director Appointed 4th July 2023 
Albert Sigei -Independent/Non-Executive Director Appointed 19th December 2023 
Christine Muthui -Independent/Non-Executive Director Appointed 19th December 2023 
Leonie Von Elverfeldt** -Independent/Non-Executive Director Appointed 6th March 2024 
Chris Otundo -Independent/Non-Executive Director Appointed 6th March 2024  
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*British 
**German 
 
 

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 
Remuneration structure for Executive Directors 
 
The remuneration of the Executive Director is based on the terms of engagement negotiated 
and outlined in the contract of employment. The Group’s Policy is to appoint the Executive 
Director for an initial four-year period, which may be extended for a further term by mutual 
consent. The initial appointments and any subsequent reappointments are subject to annual 
performance review by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. 
 
Remuneration structure for Executive Directors (continued) 
 
The salary for the Executive Director is set at a level which is considered appropriate to attract an 
individual with the necessary skills, experience and ability to oversee the business. Judgement is used 
but consideration is given to a number of internal and external factors including responsibilities, market 
positioning, inflation and The Standard Group PLC reward policies. The salary is subject to annual 
reviews upon attainment of specific objectives.  
 
Other benefits provided include: medical cover, gratuity and club membership which are payable as per 
The Standard Group PLC reward policies in force from time to time. Travel and other reasonable 
expenses incurred in the course of performing duty are paid as per the Group’s travel and subsistence 
Policies. These ensure the package is competitive. 

 
Remuneration structure for Non-Executive Directors 
 
The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Board upon recommendation 
by the Nomination Committee in line with the Remuneration Policy. In determining the remuneration 
for Non-Executive Directors, the Board considers the nature and extent of their contribution and 
responsibilities. In addition, Director’s remuneration is subject to regular reviews and external 
benchmarking to ensure that we continually offer a competitive package commensurate with the 
remuneration for other Non-Executive Directors in the same industry.  
 
Non-Executive Directors receive honoraria fees in recognition of the services rendered to the Group, 
which is payable quarterly in arrears. In addition, the Non-Executive Directors are paid an attendance 
fee in recognition of the time spent attending Board and Committee meetings. 
 
The Group also provides for travel and accommodation costs incurred by the Non-Executive Directors 
in connection with the Group’s business in line with the Group’s travel and subsistence policies in force 
from time to time. 
 
Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to any performance related pay or pension. These Directors 
do not have service contracts and their appointment, reappointment and retirement is subject to terms 
of the Group’s Articles of Association.  
 
Changes to Directors’ remuneration 
 
During the year 3 Non executive directors forewent full fees and sitting allowances. (2022: 100% 
forfeiture for all except for Robin Sewell who resigned). 
 
Directors’ Shareholding 
 
Directors can purchase or sell shares of the Company in the open market subject to the regulations of  

Page 10 

the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. During the year under review, none of the Directors held shares in 
the Company. 
 
 

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 
Information subject to audit 
Remuneration structure for Executive Directors 
 
 The remuneration for the year is as set out below: 
 

Name Date of contract Unexpired term Notice period 

Amount payable on 
termination 

KES 000 
Orlando 
Lyomu 25/05/2022 Resigned 6 months 15,300 

 

  
2023 

KES 000 
2022 

KES 000 
 
 
Name Basic pay  Insurance Gratuity Total Basic pay  Insurance Gratuity Total 
Orlando 
Lyomu 

 
15,810 

 
118 

 
1,860 

 
17,788 27,000 228 3,600 30,828 

 
Non-Executive Directors 
 

  Fees and sitting allowance 

  
2023 2022 

KES ‘000 KES ‘000 
Robin Sewell* 660              1,320  
Dr.James Mcfie - - 
Zehrabanu Janmohamed 1,625 - 
Shaun Zambuni* 1,355 - 
Dr. Julius Kipngetich 2,015 - 
Juliana Rotich 1,090 - 
Dr. Evanson Gitahi  - - 
Christopher Kulei - - 
Thomas Omondi 2,415 - 
Chaacha Mwita 1,350 - 
Albert Sigei - - 
Christine Muthui - - 
Total 10,510 1,320 

 
 
  * British 
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the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. During the year under review, none of the Directors held shares in 
the Company. 
 
 

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 
Information subject to audit 
Remuneration structure for Executive Directors 
 
 The remuneration for the year is as set out below: 
 

Name Date of contract Unexpired term Notice period 

Amount payable on 
termination 

KES 000 
Orlando 
Lyomu 25/05/2022 Resigned 6 months 15,300 

 

  
2023 

KES 000 
2022 

KES 000 
 
 
Name Basic pay  Insurance Gratuity Total Basic pay  Insurance Gratuity Total 
Orlando 
Lyomu 

 
15,810 

 
118 

 
1,860 

 
17,788 27,000 228 3,600 30,828 

 
Non-Executive Directors 
 

  Fees and sitting allowance 

  
2023 2022 

KES ‘000 KES ‘000 
Robin Sewell* 660              1,320  
Dr.James Mcfie - - 
Zehrabanu Janmohamed 1,625 - 
Shaun Zambuni* 1,355 - 
Dr. Julius Kipngetich 2,015 - 
Juliana Rotich 1,090 - 
Dr. Evanson Gitahi  - - 
Christopher Kulei - - 
Thomas Omondi 2,415 - 
Chaacha Mwita 1,350 - 
Albert Sigei - - 
Christine Muthui - - 
Total 10,510 1,320 

 
 
  * British 
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 
Approval of the Directors’ remuneration report 
 
The Directors confirm that this report is in compliance with the Capital Markets Authority guidelines 
on Director’s Remuneration and Companies Act, 2015. 
 
By order of the board 
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
 

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Companies Act, 2015 requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and Company as at the end of the 
financial year and of their profit or loss for that year. It also requires the directors to ensure that the 
Company keeps proper accounting records that: 

(a) show and explain the transactions of the Group and Company;  
(b) disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Group and Company; and  
(c) enable the directors to ensure that every financial statement required to be prepared complies 

with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2015. 
 
The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenya 
Companies Act, 2015. They also accept responsibility for: 
 
i. designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as they determine necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or 
error; 
ii. selecting suitable accounting policies and then applying them consistently; and 
iii. making judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
The Directors have assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and highlighted their 
assessment in note 2(e) of the financial statements.  
 
The directors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relieve them 
of their responsibility. 
 
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2024 and signed on its behalf by: 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
 
          2023                     2022 
 Notes                KES  000      KES 000 
    
Revenue 8     2,381,425     2,726,063 
    
Direct costs 9        (749,880)        (749,386) 
    
Other gains or (losses) 10            (8,489)             22,749 
    
Selling and distribution costs  11         (239,517)         (257,202) 
    
Administrative expenses      12(a)      (1,971,167) (2,320,891) 
    
Movement in expected credit losses           12(b)        (46,167)     (246,323) 
    
Finance costs 13       (88,743)     (215,676) 
    
Loss before taxation 14         (722,538)      (1,023,463) 
    
Income tax credit /(expense) 15 (538,902)      158,259 
    
Total loss after tax for the year  (1,261,440)   (865,204)  
    
Other comprehensive income               -              - 

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,261,440) (865,204) 

 
Attributable to: 

   

    
Non-controlling interests 26 (95,039) (44,184) 
    
Owners of the parent  (1,166,401) (821,020) 
  

(1,261,440) (865,204) 
    
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the 
ordinary equity holders of the company 

 
16 

 
(14.27) 

 
 (10.05) 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
 
              2023                      2022 
 Notes       KES 000 KES 000 
 
Revenue 8 1,821,464 2,050,731 
    
Direct costs 9 (569,538) (574,767) 
    
Other gains or (losses) 10 (25,512) 7,122 
    
Selling and distribution costs  11 (190,710) (199,196) 
    
Administrative expenses 12(a) (1,547,366) (1,809,605) 
    
Movement in expected credit losses      12(b) (48,254) (228,364) 
    
Finance costs 13 (65,777) (184,399) 
    
Loss before taxation 14 (625,693) (938,477) 
    
Income tax (credit)/expense 15 (441,789)   163,445 
 
Loss after tax for the year  (1,067,482) (775,032) 
    
Other comprehensive income 
 
 

 - - 
    
Comprehensive loss for the year   (1,067,482) (775,032) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 
 
ASSETS      2023 RESTATED 

2022 
RESTATED 

2021 
Non-current assets Notes KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Property, plant and equipment 17(a) 1,220,258 1,394,546 1,542,554 
Leasehold land 18 299,845 303,987 308,128 
Right of use assets 19(a) 17,290 23,346 52,014 
Intangible assets 20(a) 524,486 538,712 521,626 
Deferred income tax  28(a)                - 538,902 380,642 
     

  2,061,879 2,799,493 2,804,964 
Current assets     
Inventories 22(a) 105,824 99,913 158,406 
Trade and other receivables 23(a) 1,856,229 1,455,098 1,322,297 
Cash and bank balances  32(i)(b) 49,251 45,422 8,320 
Current income tax 15(a)      23,973      23,973 18,075 
     

  2,035,277 1,624,406 1,507,098 
TOTAL ASSETS  4,097,156 4,423,899 4,312,062 
     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Capital and reserves      
Share capital 24(a) 408,654 408,654 408,654 
Share premium 24(a) 39,380 39,380 39,380 
Investment in joint operation  21(b) (42,250) (42,250) (42,250) 
Capital redemption reserve 25(a) 102 102 102 
Retained earnings 25(b) (1,578,590) (412,189)    408,831 
     

Attributable to owners of the company  (1,172,704) (6,303) 814,717 
Non-controlling interests 26        50,232    145,271    189,455 
     

Total equity  (1,122,472)    138,968 1,004,172 
     

Non-current liabilities     
Borrowings 29(a)  279,649 -  
Lease Liabilities 19(b) 18,847      6,537 31,144 
Due to related parties 27(b)  748,840    351,949            -  
 -    
  1,047,336    358,486 31,144 
Current liabilities     
Borrowings 29(a) 183,921 849,919 1,204,705 
Trade and other payables 30(a) 3,891,508 2,969,272 1,688,074 
Lease liabilities 19(b) 1,416 16,937 37,504 
Due to related parties 27(b)      95,447      90,317    346,463 
     

  4,172,292 3,926,445 3,276,746 
     

 
TOTAL EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES 

  
4,097,156 

 
4,423,899 

 
4,312,062 

     
The financial statements on pages 18 to 82 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 
on 29th June 2024. 
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Share capital 24(a) 408,654 408,654 408,654 
Share premium 24(a) 39,380 39,380 39,380 
Investment in joint operation  21(b) (42,250) (42,250) (42,250) 
Capital redemption reserve 25(a) 102 102 102 
Retained earnings 25(b) (1,578,590) (412,189)    408,831 
     

Attributable to owners of the company  (1,172,704) (6,303) 814,717 
Non-controlling interests 26        50,232    145,271    189,455 
     

Total equity  (1,122,472)    138,968 1,004,172 
     

Non-current liabilities     
Borrowings 29(a)  279,649 -  
Lease Liabilities 19(b) 18,847      6,537 31,144 
Due to related parties 27(b)  748,840    351,949            -  
 -    
  1,047,336    358,486 31,144 
Current liabilities     
Borrowings 29(a) 183,921 849,919 1,204,705 
Trade and other payables 30(a) 3,891,508 2,969,272 1,688,074 
Lease liabilities 19(b) 1,416 16,937 37,504 
Due to related parties 27(b)      95,447      90,317    346,463 
     

  4,172,292 3,926,445 3,276,746 
     

 
TOTAL EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES 

  
4,097,156 

 
4,423,899 

 
4,312,062 

     
The financial statements on pages 18 to 82 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 
on 29th June 2024. 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 

      
  ASSETS          
  2023 RESTATED 

2022 
RESTATED 

2021 
Non-current assets Notes KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Property, plant and equipment 17(b) 1,108,975 1,257,096 1,395,376  
Leasehold land 18  299,845  303,987  308,128  
Right of use assets 19(a)  17,290  23,346  52,015  
Intangible assets 20(b)   434,520 445,478  429,807  
Deferred income tax 28(b) - 441,789  278,343  
Investment in subsidiaries 21(a)      70,367       70,367    70,367  
     

  1,930,997 2,542,063 2,534,036 
Current assets     
Inventories 22(b)         104,601  98,498 154,467  
Trade and other receivables 23(b)         1,481,548 1,174,033 1,064,693  
Current income tax 15(b)           16,500  16,500 12,318  
Cash and bank balances  32(ii)(b)      32,197     45,222        8,120 
     

  1,634,846 1,334,253 1,239,598 

TOTAL ASSETS  3,565,843 3,876,316 3,773,634 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Capital and reserves      
Share capital 24(a)  408,654  408,654 408,654 
Share premium 24(b)  39,380  39,380 39,380 
Investment in joint operation  21(b)    (42,250)  (42,250) (42,250) 
Capital redemption reserve 25(a)  102  102 102 
Retained earnings 25(b)  (1,637,972) (570,490) 204,542 
     
Shareholders’ (deficit)/equity  (1,232,086) (164,604) 610,428 
 
Non-current liabilities 

    

Borrowings 29(b)   279,649 - - 
Lease liabilities 19(b)  18,847       6,537 31,144 
Due to related parties 27(b)          748,840  351,949 - 
  1,047,336 358,486 31,144 
Current liabilities     
Borrowings 29(b)                 99,762 590,363  1,006,558 
Bank overdraft 29(b)                  74,014  232,137  167,380 
Trade and other payables 30(b) 3,061,510 2,399,426  1,304,514 
Lease liabilities 19(b) 1,416 16,937  37,504 
Due to related parties 27(b)   513,891 443,571 616,106 
     
  3,750,593 3,682,434 3,132,062 
 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  
   3,565,843 

 
  3,876,316 

 
3,773,634 

 
The financial statements on pages 18 to 82 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 
on 29th June 2024. 
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TOTAL ASSETS  3,565,843 3,876,316 3,773,634 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Capital and reserves      
Share capital 24(a)  408,654  408,654 408,654 
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Capital redemption reserve 25(a)  102  102 102 
Retained earnings 25(b)  (1,637,972) (570,490) 204,542 
     
Shareholders’ (deficit)/equity  (1,232,086) (164,604) 610,428 
 
Non-current liabilities 

    

Borrowings 29(b)   279,649 - - 
Lease liabilities 19(b)  18,847       6,537 31,144 
Due to related parties 27(b)          748,840  351,949 - 
  1,047,336 358,486 31,144 
Current liabilities     
Borrowings 29(b)                 99,762 590,363  1,006,558 
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  3,750,593 3,682,434 3,132,062 
 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  
   3,565,843 

 
  3,876,316 

 
3,773,634 

 
The financial statements on pages 18 to 82 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 
on 29th June 2024. 
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
            2023                   2022 
                                                              Notes                    KES 000               KES 000 
Cash flows from operating activities    
    
Cash generated from operations 32(i) (a) 491,437 734,434 
Interest expense on other loans  (83,408) (207,326) 
Interest expense on lease 19(b) (5,335) (8,350) 
Income tax paid 15(c)           -  ( 5,898) 
    
Net cash flows from operating activities  402,694 512,860 
    
Cash flows from investing activities    
    
Purchase of intangible assets 20(a) - (37,717) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17(a) - (38,613) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 

  
     7,044 

 
       532 

    
Net cash flows from investing activities  7,044 (75,798) 
    
Cash flows from financing activities    
    
Principal elements of lease payments 19(c) (19,559) (45,174) 
Proceeds from borrowings 29(a) 703,375 1,986,524 
Loan repayment 29(a) (914,328) (2,402,719) 
    
Net cash flows from financing activities  (230,512)    (461,369) 
    
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents                       179,226              (24,307) 
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year   (214,134) (189,827) 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   32(i)(b) (34,908) (214,134) 
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
 
  2023 2022 
 Notes   KES 000 KES 000 
Cash flows from operating activities    
    
Cash generated from operations 32(ii) (a) 420,813 672,197 
Interest expense on other loans            13 (46,913) (176,049) 
Interest expense on lease liability 19(b) (5,335) (8,350) 
Income tax paid 15(c)          -    (4,182) 
    
Net cash flows from operating activities  368,565 483,616 
    
Cash flows from investing activities    
    
Purchase of intangible assets 20(b) - (29,723) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17(b) - (20,712) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment     7,044        533 
Net cash flows from investing activities     7,044 (49,902) 
    
Cash flows from financing activities    
    
Principal elements of lease payments 19(c) (19,559) (45,174) 
Proceeds from borrowings 29(b) 703,375      1,986,524 
Loan repayment 29(a) (914,327) (2,402,719) 
    
Net cash flows from financing activities  (230,511)    (461,369) 
    
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  145,098 (27,655) 

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year   (186,915) (159,260) 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at end year 32(ii) (b) (41,817) (186,915) 
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THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 
 
1. REPORTING ENTITY 

 
The Standard Group PLC (“the Company”) is a limited liability Company incorporated in Kenya 
under the Kenya Companies Act, 2015 and is domiciled in Kenya. The financial statements 
comprises the consolidated and separate financials statements. The consolidated financial 
statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 comprise the Company 
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”). The subsidiaries are presented on Note 
21. The Group is primarily involved in the gathering and disseminating of information through 
print, television, radio and digital media. The Group products include; The Standard and The 
Nairobian; Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez radio and Berur FM; KTN Home, KTN News, Btv 
and KTN Farmers TV; and Standard Courier. Digital offering include the E-paper, 
Standardmedia.co.ke website, Digger classified and Value added Services.  

 
The address of its registered office and principal place of business is as follows: 
 
The Standard Group Centre 
Mombasa Road 
PO Box 30080 – 00100  
Nairobi. 
 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
(a) Statement of compliance 

 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations 
Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial 
statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB). Changes in significant accounting policies are detailed in Note 4. Details of the 
Group and Company significant accounting policies are included in Note 3. 
 
For the Companies Act, 2015 reporting purposes in these financial statements, the balance 
sheet is represented by the statement of financial position and profit and loss account is 
represented by the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 

(b) Basis of measurement 
 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where stated 
otherwise. 
 

(c) Functional and presentation currency 
 
These Financial Statements are presented in Kenya shillings (KES 000), which is the 
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented has been rounded to 
the nearest thousand (KES 000) except where otherwise indicated. 
 

(d) Use of estimates and judgements 
 
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 
 
(d) Use of estimates and judgements (continued) 

 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
estimates are recognised prospectively. 

 
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical 
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount 
recognised in the financial statements are described in note 6. 
 

(e) Going concern 
 

The Group and Company in the current year incurred a loss after tax of KES 1.261 Billion 
(2022: KES 865 million) and KES 1.067 Billion (2022: 775 million) respectively during the 
year ended 31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the Group’s and Company’s current 
liabilities exceeded the current assets by KES 2.1 billion (2022: KES 2.3 billion) and KES 2.1 
billion (2022: KES 2.3 billion) respectively. As at year end the Group had total negative equity 
of KES 433 million (2022: positive KES 139 million) whilst the Company had a negative equity 
of KES 648 million (2022: negative equity KES 165 million). 
 
The current liquidity constraints in the economy have caused The Group to struggle to collect 
from its current debtors thus impacting the liquidity of the Company. Due to financial 
constraints the group has been unable to settle some amounts due to key suppliers, statutory 
bodies, and employee related costs. Management does not foresee any new sources of 
uncertainty that will impact the business in a materially negative way. The business still enjoys 
immense goodwill and confidence and this demonstrated by the market share it commands 
across its product offering. 
 
The directors remain confident that the Group and Company will remain a going concern over 
the next 12 months. In making this assessment, the directors have considered in detail all 
pertinent facts as outlined below: 
  

a. A thorough review of the budgetary and forecasting process to ensure that appropriate 
assumptions have been considered in developing the Group’s forecast. The key areas of 
focus will include: 

 
i. Review of the revenue strategy to ensure that the investments in the broadcast and 

digital platforms continue to grow in revenue generation. This will drive the revenue 
up by about 35% in 2024 with a projected growth there on. 

ii. Cost containment measures to ensure that the operations are run efficiently which 
include full utilization of all editorial staff; travel expenses, rental expenses and 
aggressive collection measures to reduce the utilization of the financing facilities thus 
lower finance cost. 

iii. Continuous engagement with creditors to agree on payment plans based on paying 
ability of the company and in line with projected cash flows. 

iv. The Group expects to start generating positive operating cashflows in 2024 thus able 
to meet its current and future obligations including payment of its statutory 
deductions. 
 

b. The Group’s board and management have implemented initiatives that are geared towards 
improving the cash collection cycle that include but are not limited to: 
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 
 

(e) Going concern (continued) 
 

i. Reduce the number of days to collect from the open market by encouraging 
select clients to forward pay for services rendered. 

ii. Ensure continuous engagement with government officers to enhance debt 
collections. 

iii. Engage various debt collection agencies to fast-track debt collection. 
iv. Continuous engagement with creditors to ensure continued service delivery 

and increased number of credit days. 
v. Organizational right sizing and staff rationalization as part of cost cutting 

measures 
 

c. The Group has been heavily reliant on borrowing to fund expansion and capital 
investments. To ensure that investments have been maintained even as performance 
is expected to improve the shareholders have extended a loan in the first quarter of 
2023. Further the NCBA facility was restructured in the first quarter. Subsequent to 
the year end the Group still has enough unutilized borrowing facilities and is thus 
able to meet its working capital requirements. The Shareholders have committed 
continued support if need be. 

 
d. The largest impact on revenue has been caused by changes in government policies 

and regulations. The Group is thus focusing on investing and diversifying in 
Broadcast (TV and Radio) and digital as these platforms are impacted much less than 
the print platform of The Group. 

 
e. Subsequent to the year end the Q1 2024 results of the group have seen positive growth 

and improved performance compared to prior year with a positive EBITDA of KES 
1.1 million and KES 32 million for the months of February and March. With April & 
May also reporting positive EBITDAs of KES 8.2 million and KES 1.7 million 
respectively. 

 
The Directors have reviewed the projections based on the above strategies and the medium-term plan. 
Based on the implementation of the various turnaround initiatives outlined above, the directors 
consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis. The 
shareholders also indicated their willingness to support the business which is demonstrated by the 
willingness of the majority shareholders to inject funds into the business as and when the need arises 
as evidenced by the KES 392 million given in the current year. The group is also at an advanced stage 
to secure another KES 300 million to ease the cashflow constraints as we gear up for further capital. 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these financial statements and have been applied consistently by Group entities. 

 
(a) Basis of consolidation 

 

Subsidiaries 
 

Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee when it is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement in the investee and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. The financial statements of 
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control 
commences until the date that control ceases.  
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3.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
(a)   Basis of consolidation (continued) 
        

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group 
companies are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses 
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred.  
The holding Company accounts for dividends from subsidiary companies only when the right to 
receive the dividends is established. 

 
Non-controlling interests: 
 
The Group recognises non-controlling interests at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate 
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.   
  
Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of financial position respectively. 
 
Equity method 
 
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and 
adjusted thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the 
investee in profit or loss, and the group’s share of movements in other comprehensive income 
of the investee. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are 
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. The group recognises non-
controlling interests at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s 
net identifiable assets.  
  
Where the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its 
interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not 
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the 
other entity. 
 
Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are 
eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also 
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. 

 
Joint operations 
 
The Group recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint 
operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.  
 
Separate financial statements 
 
In the separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less 
impairment and investment in associates is accounted for using the equity method. Cost is 
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration amendments. 
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued) 

 
Business combinations 

 
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, 
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration 
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the: 

 
• Fair values of the assets transferred 
• Liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business 
• Equity interests issued by the Group 
• Fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration agreement; and 
• Fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary 

 
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition 
date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of 
the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. 

 
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 

 
The excess of the: 

i. consideration transferred, 
ii. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and 

iii. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the 
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts 
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the 
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase. 

 
Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future 
are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the 
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be 
obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. 
 
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified 
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value, with changes in fair value 
recognised in profit or loss. 
 
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the 
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the 
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit 
or loss. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

b) Revenue and other income recognition 
 

Revenue comprises of income from print and broadcasting segments. The Group derives 
revenue from the transfer of goods and services at a point in time in the following major 
product lines: circulation and advertising. Revenue from print arises from the sale of 
newspapers and magazines. The Group uses vendors and agents in the sale of newspapers and 
magazines. The Group has been assessed as the principal in this arrangement, and therefore 
recognises revenue on the gross amount. E-paper revenue is recognized on delivery of 
electronic version of the newspaper to the customer. Advertising income is earned from both 
print and broadcasting.  Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group 
expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer.  
 
Revenue from the sale of newspapers and magazines is recognised upon the delivery of goods 
to customers or when title has passed to customers.  Advertising revenue is recognised when 
advertisements are published in the newspaper or aired on television or radio. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of VAT and 
discounts. There are no significant estimates made in revenue recognition. 
 
Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss using the effective interest method, 
unless its collectability is in doubt. 
 
Other income is recognised once control of the goods or service is passed to the customers and 
largely includes sale of newspaper returns, production waste, broadcast content and courier 
services. 

 
c) Income tax  

 
Income tax expense in profit or loss for the year comprises current income tax and the change 
in deferred tax. 
 
Current income tax is provided on the basis of the results for the year, as shown in the financial 
statements, adjusted in accordance with tax legislation. 
 
Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.  Currently 
enacted tax rates are used to determine deferred income tax. 
 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner 
in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
 
Deferred tax is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that is probable that future profits will be available against which the tax asset can be 
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax is 
calculated on the basis of the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date 
and expected to apply when the asset is recovered, or the liability is settled. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

d) Provisions 
 
A provision is recognised in the financial statements when the Group has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost. 
 

e) Segmental reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about 
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in 
order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance. The Group’s chief 
decision maker is the chief executive officer. The Group organizes its activity by business lines 
and these are defined as the Group’s reportable segments. The business segments are Print and 
Broadcast.  
 

f)  Property, plant and equipment 
 

(i) Recognition and measurement 
 

Initial recognition of items of property, plant and equipment is at cost and are consequently 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

 
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 
 
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes 
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, 
for qualifying assets, capitalised borrowing costs.  
 
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment 
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis 
as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

(ii) Subsequent costs 
 
The cost of replacing a component of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of 
the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as 
incurred. 

  
(iii) Depreciation 

 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated to write off the cost in equal 
annual instalments over their expected useful lives.  The annual rates used are: 
                  
Buildings            2%    
Plant and machinery      12.5%   
Motor vehicles     25%     
Furniture, fittings and equipment  10% - 33⅓%           
 
The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting 
date and adjusted if appropriate. 
 

(iv) Disposal of property, plant and equipment 
 
Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the 
difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) 
is recognised in profit or loss.  
 

g) Intangible assets 
 
(i) Software 

 
Computer software and other intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.  The costs are amortised over the expected useful 
lives of the software on the straight line basis. The annual rates used for amortisation are: 
 
Computer software              20%   
 
Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date 
and adjusted if appropriate. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

(ii) Subsequent costs 
 
The cost of replacing a component of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of 
the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as 
incurred. 

  
(iii) Depreciation 

 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated to write off the cost in equal 
annual instalments over their expected useful lives.  The annual rates used are: 
                  
Buildings            2%    
Plant and machinery      12.5%   
Motor vehicles     25%     
Furniture, fittings and equipment  10% - 33⅓%           
 
The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting 
date and adjusted if appropriate. 
 

(iv) Disposal of property, plant and equipment 
 
Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the 
difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) 
is recognised in profit or loss.  
 

g) Intangible assets 
 
(i) Software 

 
Computer software and other intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.  The costs are amortised over the expected useful 
lives of the software on the straight line basis. The annual rates used for amortisation are: 
 
Computer software              20%   
 
Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date 
and adjusted if appropriate. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

             (g)    Intangible assets (continued) 
 

(ii) Trademark and broadcasting frequencies 
 
Trademarks and frequency are initially recognised at cost. At each reporting date, the 
Group reviews the carrying amount of the trademarks and broadcasting frequency to 
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. Such indicators include decline in market value or negative changes in technology, 
markets, economy or laws. The trademarks and broadcasting frequency have indefinite 
useful lives and are tested for impairment at each reporting date. 
 

h) Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets and deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group 
that generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a 
pro rata basis. 
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and 
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.  
 

i) Leases  
 
As a lessee 

 
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group 
and Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis 
of its relative stand‑alone prices. 
 
The Group and Company recognises a right‑of‑use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right‑of‑use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the 
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is 
located, less any lease incentives received. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

             (g)    Intangible assets (continued) 
 

(ii) Trademark and broadcasting frequencies 
 
Trademarks and frequency are initially recognised at cost. At each reporting date, the 
Group reviews the carrying amount of the trademarks and broadcasting frequency to 
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. Such indicators include decline in market value or negative changes in technology, 
markets, economy or laws. The trademarks and broadcasting frequency have indefinite 
useful lives and are tested for impairment at each reporting date. 
 

h) Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets and deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group 
that generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a 
pro rata basis. 
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and 
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.  
 

i) Leases  
 
As a lessee 

 
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group 
and Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis 
of its relative stand‑alone prices. 
 
The Group and Company recognises a right‑of‑use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right‑of‑use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the 
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is 
located, less any lease incentives received. 
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3.           SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(i)    Leases (continued) 
 

     As a lessee (continued) 
 
The right‑of‑use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight‑line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the 
underlying asset to the Group and Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the 
right‑of‑use asset reflects that the Group and Company will exercise a purchase option.  
 
In that case the right‑of‑use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, 
which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the 
right‑of‑use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. 
 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group and Company’s incremental borrowing rate. 
Generally, the Group and Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.  
 
The Group and Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates 
from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of 
the lease and type of the asset leased. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease 
liability comprise the following:  

 
⎯ fixed payments, including in‑substance fixed payments; 
⎯ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the  

index or rate as at the commencement date; 
⎯ amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
⎯ the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group and Company is reasonably 

certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Group and 
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early 
termination of a lease unless the Group and Company is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early. 

 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index 
or rate, if there is a change in the Group and Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group and Company changes its assessment of 
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised 
in‑substance fixed lease payment. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right‑of‑use asset, or is 
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right‑of‑use asset has been reduced to 
zero. 
 
The Group and Company has elected not to recognise right‑of‑use assets and lease liabilities 
for leases of low‑value assets and short‑term leases. The Group and Company recognise the 
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight‑line basis over the lease 
term.  
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3.           SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(i)    Leases (continued) 
 

     As a lessee (continued) 
 
The right‑of‑use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight‑line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the 
underlying asset to the Group and Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the 
right‑of‑use asset reflects that the Group and Company will exercise a purchase option.  
 
In that case the right‑of‑use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, 
which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the 
right‑of‑use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. 
 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group and Company’s incremental borrowing rate. 
Generally, the Group and Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.  
 
The Group and Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates 
from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of 
the lease and type of the asset leased. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease 
liability comprise the following:  

 
⎯ fixed payments, including in‑substance fixed payments; 
⎯ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the  

index or rate as at the commencement date; 
⎯ amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
⎯ the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group and Company is reasonably 

certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Group and 
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early 
termination of a lease unless the Group and Company is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early. 

 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index 
or rate, if there is a change in the Group and Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group and Company changes its assessment of 
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised 
in‑substance fixed lease payment. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right‑of‑use asset, or is 
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right‑of‑use asset has been reduced to 
zero. 
 
The Group and Company has elected not to recognise right‑of‑use assets and lease liabilities 
for leases of low‑value assets and short‑term leases. The Group and Company recognise the 
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight‑line basis over the lease 
term.  

 
 
 
 
 

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED) 
 

Page 36 

3.           SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(i)    Leases (continued) 
 

As a lessee (continued) 
 
The Group and Company classifies leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership as finance leases. When this is the case, the leased assets are measured initially 
at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Minimum lease payments are the payments over the lease term that the lessee is 
required to make, excluding any contingent rent. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets 
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. 
 

(j) Inventories  
 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost comprises direct 
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and the overheads incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of direct materials and general 
consumable stores are determined on the weighted average cost basis.  Net realisable value 
represents the estimated selling price less the estimated cost to completion and costs to be 
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Programmes are expensed when aired. 

 
(k) Foreign currency translations 

 
In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other 
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated 
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that 
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Gains and 
losses on exchange are dealt with in the profit or loss. 
 

(l) Financial instruments 
 

(i) Recognition and initial measurement 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of financial 
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asset or liability. 
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3.           SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(i)    Leases (continued) 
 

As a lessee (continued) 
 
The Group and Company classifies leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership as finance leases. When this is the case, the leased assets are measured initially 
at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Minimum lease payments are the payments over the lease term that the lessee is 
required to make, excluding any contingent rent. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets 
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. 
 

(j) Inventories  
 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost comprises direct 
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and the overheads incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of direct materials and general 
consumable stores are determined on the weighted average cost basis.  Net realisable value 
represents the estimated selling price less the estimated cost to completion and costs to be 
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Programmes are expensed when aired. 

 
(k) Foreign currency translations 

 
In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other 
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated 
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that 
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Gains and 
losses on exchange are dealt with in the profit or loss. 
 

(l) Financial instruments 
 

(i) Recognition and initial measurement 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of financial 
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asset or liability. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(l)  Financial instruments (continued) 
 
   (i)     Recognition and initial measurement (continued) 

 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement 

 
Financial assets 

 
The Group and Company classify their financial assets at amortised cost. The classification 
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 
 
The classification of financial assets and their subsequent accounting will be determined by 
the application of dual tests examining the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial instruments and the Group’s business model for managing the assets. 

 
Financial assets may be held at amortised cost only where both:  
 
(a) the asset is held in a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows; and  
(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that consist solely of principal and interest on the outstanding principal. 
 

Financial assets – Business model assessment  
 
The classification of financial assets depends on the entity’s business model for managing 
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. In determining the business 
model, the information considered includes: 
 
⎯ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies 

in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning 
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the 
duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected 
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(l)  Financial instruments (continued) 
 
   (i)     Recognition and initial measurement (continued) 

 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement 

 
Financial assets 

 
The Group and Company classify their financial assets at amortised cost. The classification 
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 
 
The classification of financial assets and their subsequent accounting will be determined by 
the application of dual tests examining the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial instruments and the Group’s business model for managing the assets. 

 
Financial assets may be held at amortised cost only where both:  
 
(a) the asset is held in a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows; and  
(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that consist solely of principal and interest on the outstanding principal. 
 

Financial assets – Business model assessment  
 
The classification of financial assets depends on the entity’s business model for managing 
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. In determining the business 
model, the information considered includes: 
 
⎯ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies 

in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning 
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the 
duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected 
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;  
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3.     SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(l) Financial instruments (continued) 
 

                     (ii)   Classification and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 

Financial assets – Business model assessment (continued) 
 

⎯ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s 
management;  

⎯ the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held 
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;  

⎯ how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based 
on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and  

⎯ the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons 
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity. 

 
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for 
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s 
continuing recognition of the assets.  
 

 
Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of 
principal and interest 

 
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial 
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money 
and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular 
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and 
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

 
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, 
the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether 
the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of 
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, 
the Group considers: 
 
⎯ contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;  
⎯ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;  
⎯ prepayment and extension features; and  
⎯ terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse 

features). 
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3.     SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

              (l)    Financial instruments (continued) 
 

                       (ii)   Classification and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 

Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of 
principal and interest. (continued) 
 
 
 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest 
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable 
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset 
acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or 
requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount 
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable 
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair 
value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. 
 

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or 
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

Financial liabilities – Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses  
 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost. Other financial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain 
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.  
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3.     SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

              (l)    Financial instruments (continued) 
 

                       (ii)   Classification and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 

Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of 
principal and interest. (continued) 
 
 
 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest 
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable 
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset 
acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or 
requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount 
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable 
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair 
value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. 
 

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or 
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

Financial liabilities – Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses  
 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost. Other financial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain 
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(l) Financial instruments (continued)    
  

(iii)  Offsetting financial instruments 
 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

 
(iv) Impairment of financial assets 

 
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected on investments in debt instruments that 
are measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, trade receivables and contract assets, as well 
as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each 
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective 
financial instrument. 
 

The “incurred loss” model was replaced by the “expected credit loss” model in IFRS 9. This 
applies to all financial assets not held at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) – certain 
investments, trade receivables and other receivables. 
 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including receivables such as trade debtors), 
impairment losses should be recognised under the “expected loss model”, building up a 
debtors’ provision / allowance account against credit losses over the life of the financial 
asset (including an estimate of initial credit risk). 
 

Under the impairment approach in IFRS 9 it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have 
occurred before credit losses are recognised. Instead, the Group will account for expected 
credit losses, and changes in those expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit 
losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial 
recognition and, consequently, more timely information is provided about expected credit 
losses. 
 
The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of an asset and 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout 
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the 
company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with 
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

             (l)    Financial Instruments (continued)   
 

(v)  De-recognition 
 

Financial assets 
 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.  

 

Financial liabilities 
 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged 
or cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are 
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case 
a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.  
 
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount 
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or 
liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
(vi) Write-off 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has 
stopped pursuing the recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated 
loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then 
applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to credit 
loss expenses. 

(m) Employee benefits 
 

(i) Defined contribution plan 
 

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for its permanent and 
pensionable employees. The assets of the scheme are held in separate trustee administered 
fund, which is funded by contributions from both the Group companies and employees. 
The Group and all its employees also contribute to the National Social Security Fund, which 
is a defined contribution scheme. The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution 
schemes are recognised in the profit or loss in the period which related services are rendered 
by employees.  The Group has no further obligation once the contributions have been paid. 

  

(ii) Staff gratuity  
 

The Group also has a gratuity plan for senior management staff. The Group’s net obligation 
in respect of the gratuity plan is calculated at a agreed rate of the salary of the employees 
under the plan. The provision for liability recognised in the financial statements is the 
estimated entitlement as a result of services rendered by employees up to the financial 
reporting date. The Group recognises all expenses related to the gratuity plan in employee 
costs in profit or loss. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

           (m)    Employee benefits (continued) 
 

(iii) Short term employee benefits 
 

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 
obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 
(n)   Cash and cash equivalents 

 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include short term 
liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which were 
within three months to maturity when acquired less advances from banks repayable within three 
months from date of disbursement or confirmation of the advance. 

 
(o) Related party transactions  

 
The Group discloses the nature, volume and amounts outstanding at the end of each financial 
year from transactions with related parties, which include transactions with the directors, 
executive officers and Group or related companies.  
 

(p) Earnings per share 
 
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares. 
 

(q) Share capital 
 
Ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in equity. Equity instruments issued by a Group 
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a 
reduction from equity. 
 

(r) Finance income and finance costs 
 
Interest expense on borrowings is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest rate 
unless they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset, in which case they are capitalized to that asset. 
 
Foreign exchange gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities are reported on a 
net basis as either finance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency 
movements are in a net gain or net loss position. 
 

(s) Leasehold land 
 
The leasehold land relates to the land where the Standard Group Centre is located. Payments to 
acquire leasehold interest in land are amortised over the period of the lease.  
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4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 
 

      New standards, amendments and interpretations 
 

    (i)     New standards, amendments and interpretations effective and adopted during the year 
 

The following standards and interpretations apply for the first time to financial reporting 
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2023 
 

New standard or amendments Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 

⎯ International tax reform - Pillar two model 
rules - amendments to IAS 12 

I January 2024 

⎯ Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - 
Comparative information 

I January 2023 

⎯ Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 
arising from a single transaction - 
Amendments to IAS 12 

I January 2023 

⎯ Disclosure of accounting policies: 
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice 
Statement 2 

I January 2023 

⎯  Definition of accounting estimates: 
Amendments to IAS 8 

1 January 2023 

⎯ IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 
⎯ Classification of Liabilities as Current or 

Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1 
 

1 January 2023 
 

These amendments have not had a significant impact on the financial statements.  
 

    (ii)     New and amended standards and interpretations not yet effective 
             

 
New standard or amendments Effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 
⎯ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or 

Contribution of Assets between an Investor 
and its Associate or Joint Venture 

To be determined 

⎯ Lack of exchangeability - amendments to 
IAS 21 

1 January 2025 

⎯ Supplier finance arrangements - amendments 
to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 

1 January 2024 

⎯ Non-current liabilities with covenants - 
amendments to IAS 1 

1 January 2024 

⎯ Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024 
 

All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their effective date (except for those 
standards and interpretations that are not relevant to the entity). None of these standards are 
expected to have a material impact on the financial statements. 
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5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and 
liquidity risk, foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and capital risk. The Group’s overall 
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
  

Risk management is carried out by the Finance department under policies approved by the Board of 
Directors. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written 
policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of 
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments and investing excess liquidity.   
 

(a) Market risk 
 
i. Foreign exchange risk 

 
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, 
primarily with respect to the US dollar, Euro, and GBP. Foreign exchange risk arises from 
the purchase of materials and inputs in foreign currency. These include programs, newsprint 
and items of property plant and equipment. Foreign denominated revenue is insignificant.  
 
The Group mitigates this risk through cashflow planning where payments of purchased 
denominated in foreign currency are scheduled at strategic points in the year, and also made 
in bulk so as to increase the bargaining power of the Group when negotiating for foreign 
exchange rates. 
 
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: 

 
Group and Company 
 USD EURO GBP     Total 
2023: KES 000 KES 000 KES 000    KES 000 
     
Financial assets     
Cash at bank (3,708) 2,027 6,006 4,325 
Foreign debtors 23,745 - - 23,745 
     
Financial liabilities     
Trade payables (281,568) (37,126) (9,266) (327,960) 
Net foreign     
currency liability (261,531)  (35,099) (3,260) (299,890) 

 
2022:     
     
Financial assets     
Cash at bank 3,700 584    281 4,565 
Foreign debtors 25,718 4,783 - 30,502 
     
Financial liabilities     
Trade payables (209,912) (42,489) (9,860) (262,261) 
     
Net foreign     
currency liability (180,493)  ( 37,122) (9,579) (227,194) 

 
At 31 December 2023, if the Shilling had weakened/strengthened by 1% against the foreign 
currencies with all other variables held constant, the impact on profit before taxation for the 
year would have been KES 2,998,905 (2022: KES  2,271,943). 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

(a) Market risk (Continued) 
 

i. Foreign exchange risk (Continued) 
 

   The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year: 
 
                                              Average                Closing 
 2023  2022 2023  2022 
       
USD 138.6  117.5 156.5  123.4 
EURO 149.8  124.1 173.8  131.3 
GBP 172.2  145.9 199.8  148.5 

 
ii. Price risk 

 
 The Group does not hold financial instruments that would be subject to price risk. 

 
iii. Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 

 
The Group has borrowings in the form of overdraft facilities and 5 year term loans with two 
banks namely NCBA Bank Kenya PLC and Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited with a combined 
overdraft limit of KES 105 million (2022: KES 185 million) at rates determined by prevailing 
market conditions.   
 

As at 31 December 2023, an increase/decrease of 1% on average borrowing rates would have 
resulted in an increase/decrease in profit before taxation for Group by KES 2,998,905 (2022: 
KES 8,499,000). 

 

(b)    Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is managed on a Group-wide basis. Credit risk arises from trade receivables, cash at 
bank and other receivables. The credit committee assesses the credit quality of each customer, 
taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits 
are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The 
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. 
 

 Expected credit loss (ECL) assessment as at 1 January and 31 December 2023 
 

The Group uses a provision matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from customers. 
The loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate’ method based on the probability of a receivable 
progressing through successive stages of delinquency to write off. The provision matrix is 
based on an entity’s historical default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and 
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Roll rates are calculated separately for exposures in 
different segments. The Group uses historical patterns to determine the future payment patterns 
for government advertising debt. The expected future payments are then discounted to take into 
account the time value of money.  
 
The following table provides information about the maximum exposure to credit risk and ECLs 
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.The amounts on the table represent the 
maximum exposure to credit risk. 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

             (b)       Credit risk (continued) 
            

(i) Trade receivables 
 

Group 
 
Year ended 31 December 2023 
 

Aging bucket Loss rate Gross amount  Loss 
allowance 

Credit 
impaired 

    KES  000 KES 000   
0–30 days past due 6% 833,918 48,324 No 
31–60 days past due 7% 73,992 5,142 No 
61–90 days past due 13% 51,617 6,872 No  
More than 90 days past due 64% 1,808,460 1,162,141 Yes 
   2,767,986 1,122,479  

 

Year ended 31 December 2022 
 

Aging bucket Loss rate Gross amount  Loss 
allowance 

Credit 
impaired 

   KES  000 KES 000   
0–30 days past due 10% 828,110 77,839 No 
31–60 days past due 16% 61,427 7,584 No 
61–90 days past due 29% 27,558 8,628 No 
More than 90 days past due 68% 1,645,177 1,082,261 Yes 
  

 
2,562,273 1,176,312  

 
Company 
 
Year ended 31 December 2023 
 

Aging bucket Loss rate Gross amount  Loss 
allowance 

Credit 
impaired 

    KES  000 KES 000   
     
0–30 days past due 6% 625,899 36,247 No 
31–60 days past due 6% 58,767 3,498 No 
61–90 days past due 11% 35,451 3,965 No 
More than 90 days past due       63% 1,500,714 951,519 Yes 

  2,220,831 995,229 
 

Year ended 31 December 2022 
 

Aging bucket Loss rate Gross amount  Loss 
allowance 

Credit 
impaired 

    KES  000 KES 000   
0–30 days past due 9% 618,090 63,750 No 
31–60 days past due 12% 50,095 6,018 No 
61–90 days past due 31% 21,296 7,757 No 
More than 90 days past due 64% 1,374,032 869,451 Yes 

   2,063,513 946,975 
 

 

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past 3 years, current conditions plus 
the Group’s view of economic conditions such as commercial bank lending interest rates as guided 
by IFRS 9.  
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5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

             (b)       Credit risk (continued) 
 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
 

The Group and Company held cash and cash equivalents of KES 43,092,000 and KES 
26,037,600 respectively (2022: Group and Company – KES 45,222,000 and KES 
45,222,000 respectively). These amounts represent the maximum exposure to credit risk 
for cash and cash equivalent balances. The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks 
and financial institution counterparties. 
 

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected 
credit loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures and the resulting 
amounts are not material.  
 
 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during 
the year was as follows: 

 

   2023 2022 
Group:         KES 000 KES 000 

 

At start of year                          1,176,312 956,359 
Charge/(credit) for the year 46,167 246,324 
Bad debt write offs and credit notes               -    (26,370) 
   

At end of year 1,222,479 1,176,312 
   

Company:   
At start of year 946,975 744,981 
Charge/(credit) for the year 48,254 228,364 
Bad debt write offs and credit notes                                   -   (26,370) 
At end of year    995,229    946,975 
   

 
The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they 
continue trading. The default rate is low. 
 
The debt that is overdue is not impaired and continues to be paid. The credit control 
department is actively following this debt. Further, for circulation, the debt is partially 
covered by cumulative cash deposits by vendors and agents. 
 
The debt that is impaired has been provided for based on the expected credit loss 
assessment model. However, debt collectors as well as the legal department are 
following up on the impaired debt. 
 
Other financial instruments for which the Group and Company is exposed to credit risk 
are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 89

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 (CONTINUED) 
 

Page 48 

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

(b) Credit risk (continued) 
 

ii. Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 
 

 2023 2022 
  KES 000 KES 000 
Group: 
Bank and cash balances (Note 32(i)(b)) 49,251 45,422 
Other receivables (Note 23(a)) 49,493 42,653 
 
 98,744 88,075 
 
Company:  
 
Bank and cash balances (Note 32(ii)(b)) 32,197 45,222 
Other receivables (Note 23(b)) 37,536 31,440 
   
 69,733 76,662  
 
There was no significant credit risk exposure on bank and cash balances and other receivables 
which comprises staff advances and prepaid rent. 

 
(c) Liquidity risk  

 
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash to meet Group 
obligations.  The treasury function reviews the cash forecast monthly and determines the cash 
requirement.  Cash generated from operations is healthy but if a heavy cash requirement is 
necessary, there exists overdraft facilities with NCBA Bank Kenya PLC and Stanbic Bank 
Kenya Limited with a combined limit of KES 105 million (2022: KES 185 million). 
 
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and assets that will be settled or 
realized on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table 
below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their 
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant. 
 
Group  
      Within         Over  
Liabilities       1 year       1 year Total 
At 31 December 2023  KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Related party loans                            126,640   748,840   875,480  
Bank borrowings                         238,045    279,649     517,694   
Lease liabilities         1,607   21,391   22,998  
Trade and other payables 3,891,508                -   3,891,508 
 4,257,800 1,049,880     5,307,680 
    

 
Assets Within 1 year           Over 1 year Total 
At 31 December 2023  KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Inventories  105,824  105,824 
Trade and other receivables 1,856,229  1,856,229 
Bank and cash balances       49,251                 -      49,251 
   2,011,304                 -  2,011,304 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

              (c)     Liquidity risk (continued) 
                        

 
Liabilities Within 1 year           Over 1 year Total 
At 31 December 2022  KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Related party balances 464,916 - 464,916 
Bank borrowings                      904,043 - 904,043 
Lease liabilities        19,224 7,419 26,643 
Trade and other payables 2,969,272           - 2,969,272 
 4,357,455   7,419   4,364,875 

 
Assets    
At 31 December 2022    
Inventories  99,913 - 99,913 
Trade and other receivables 1,455,098 - 1,455,098 
Bank and cash balances     45,422           -      45,422 
 1,600,433            -   1,600,433 

 
 Company    
Liabilities    
At 31 December 2023    
Related party loans                    545,084 748,840    1,293,924 
Bank borrowings                      227,901   279,649   507,549 
Lease liabilities 1,607   18,847   20,454 
Trade and other payables            3,061,510               - 3,061,510 

 3,836,102 1,047,336 4,883,437 
 
Assets    
At 31 December 2023    
Inventories   104,601  -  104,601  
Trade and other receivables   1,481,548 -   1,481,548 
Bank and cash balances 32,197           - 32,197 
 1,618,346           - 1,618,346 

 
 At 31 December 2022 
Liabilities    
Related party loans                    818,170  818,170 
Bank borrowings                      876,625 - 876,625 
Lease liabilities - - - 
Trade and other payables            2,399,426  2,399,426 
  4,094,221                    -    4,094,221  
    

 
Assets    
At 31 December 2022    
Inventories   98,498  -  98,498  
Trade and other receivables  1,174,033  -  1,174,033  
Bank and cash balances      45,222             -      45,222   
 1,317,753           - 1,317,753 
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  5.      FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

(d) Fair values (continued) 
 
(i) Valuation hierarchy 

 
The valuation hierarchy, and types of instruments classified into each level within that 
hierarchy, is set out below: 
 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Fair value 
determined 
using: 

Unadjusted quoted prices in 
an active market for 
identical assets and 
liabilities 

Valuation models 
with directly or 
indirectly market 
observable inputs 

Valuation 
models using 
significant  
non-market 
observable 
inputs 

 
(ii) Fair values for financial assets and financial liabilities 

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following table 
shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities.  

 
Group 

2023 

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 
cost 

 Financial      
assets at 
amortised 
cost 

Total 
carrying 

value 

 
Fair  

value 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 

Financial assets      
Trade and other receivables         - 1,856,229 1,856,229 1,856,229 
Cash and bank balances            -       49,251      49,251     49,251 

            - 1,905,480 1,905,480 1,905,480 
Financial liabilities     
Borrowings    463,570  463,570 463,570 
Trade and other payables 3,891,507  3,891,507 3,891,507 
Lease liabilities  20,263  20,263 20,263 
Amount due to related parties      95,447                -      95,447      95,447 
 4,470,787                -    4,470,787 4,470,787 

 
2022     
Financial assets     
Trade and other receivables - 1,455,099 1,455,099 1,455,099 
Cash and bank balances                -       45,422      45,422      45,422 
                 - 1,500,521 1,500,521 1,500,521 

     
Financial liabilities     
Borrowings 849,919 - 849,919 849,919 
Trade and other payables 2,969,272 - 2,969,272 2,969,272 
Lease liabilities 23,474 - 23,474 23,474 
Amount due to related parties     90,317            -     90,317 90,317 
              

 3,932,982            - 3,932,982 3,932,982 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

(d) Fair values (continued) 
 

(ii) Fair values for financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 

   Company 

2023  

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised 
cost 

Financial 
assets at 

amortised 
cost 

Total 
carrying 

value 

 
Fair  

value 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 

Financial assets     
Trade and other receivables -   1,481,548   1,481,548 1,481,548 
Cash and bank balances              - 32,197 32,197 32,197 
     

                -  1,513,745 1,513,745 1,513,745 
 
Financial liabilities     
Borrowings                                     453,425    453,425 453,425 
Trade and other payables   3,061,509    3,061,509 3,061,509 
Lease liabilities  20,263    20,263   20,263  
Amount due to related parties  1,262,731                -  1,262,731  1,262,731  

 
 4,797,928                -      4,797,928 4,797,928 

 
2022 
Financial assets     

Trade and other receivables - 1,174,034 1,174,034 1,174,034 
Cash and bank balances              - 45,222 45,222 45,222 
     

                -  1,219,256 1,219,256 1,219,256 
Financial liabilities      
Borrowings                                   822,500 - 822,500 822,500 
Lease liabilities                                  2,399,426 - 2,399,426 2,399,426 
Amount due to related parties                                    23,474 - 23,474 23,474 

Trade and other payables 
     

 795,520 
 

              - 
     

 795,520 
 

795,520 
     

 4,040,920               - 4,040,920 4,040,920 
 

(e) Capital risk management 
 

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as 
a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group 
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt. 
 
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

(d) Fair values (continued) 
 

(ii) Fair values for financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 

   Company 

2023  

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised 
cost 

Financial 
assets at 

amortised 
cost 

Total 
carrying 

value 

 
Fair  

value 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 

Financial assets     
Trade and other receivables -   1,481,548   1,481,548 1,481,548 
Cash and bank balances              - 32,197 32,197 32,197 
     

                -  1,513,745 1,513,745 1,513,745 
 
Financial liabilities     
Borrowings                                     453,425    453,425 453,425 
Trade and other payables   3,061,509    3,061,509 3,061,509 
Lease liabilities  20,263    20,263   20,263  
Amount due to related parties  1,262,731                -  1,262,731  1,262,731  

 
 4,797,928                -      4,797,928 4,797,928 

 
2022 
Financial assets     

Trade and other receivables - 1,174,034 1,174,034 1,174,034 
Cash and bank balances              - 45,222 45,222 45,222 
     

                -  1,219,256 1,219,256 1,219,256 
Financial liabilities      
Borrowings                                   822,500 - 822,500 822,500 
Lease liabilities                                  2,399,426 - 2,399,426 2,399,426 
Amount due to related parties                                    23,474 - 23,474 23,474 

Trade and other payables 
     

 795,520 
 

              - 
     

 795,520 
 

795,520 
     

 4,040,920               - 4,040,920 4,040,920 
 

(e) Capital risk management 
 

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as 
a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group 
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt. 
 
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 
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5.   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

(e)   Capital risk management (continued) 
 

 The constitution of capital managed by The Standard Group PLC is as shown below: 
 
 GROUP  COMPANY 
 2023 2022  2022 2022 
 KES 000 KES 000  KES 000 KES 000 
      
Equity (1,122,472) 138,968  (1,232,086) (164,604) 
      
Total borrowings  463,570 849,919  453,425 822,500 
Less: cash balances (49,251) (45,422)  (32,197) (45,222) 
      
Net debt 414,319 804,497  421,228 777,278 
      
Gearing (37)%  579%  (34)% (472)% 

      
 
6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF 

ESTIMATION  UNCERTAINTY 
 

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. These are dealt with below: 
 
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and residual values 

 

The company tests annually whether the useful lives and residual values are appropriate and in 
accordance with its accounting policy. Judgement is required in determining the useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment. Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment have 
been determined based on previous experience and anticipated disposal values when the assets are 
disposed. This estimate is based on projected product lifecycles for its assets. It could change 
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry 
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously 
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have 
been abandoned or sold. 

 
Impairment of assets 

 

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there 
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Judgement is required in making 
this determination. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash 
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Critical estimates are made by management in assessment 
of impairment for non-financial assets. Significant estimates relate to the determination of the 
projected cash flows and the discount rate.   
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5.   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 
 

(e)   Capital risk management (continued) 
 

 The constitution of capital managed by The Standard Group PLC is as shown below: 
 
 GROUP  COMPANY 
 2023 2022  2022 2022 
 KES 000 KES 000  KES 000 KES 000 
      
Equity (1,122,472) 138,968  (1,232,086) (164,604) 
      
Total borrowings  463,570 849,919  453,425 822,500 
Less: cash balances (49,251) (45,422)  (32,197) (45,222) 
      
Net debt 414,319 804,497  421,228 777,278 
      
Gearing (37)%  579%  (34)% (472)% 

      
 
6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF 

ESTIMATION  UNCERTAINTY 
 

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. These are dealt with below: 
 
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and residual values 

 

The company tests annually whether the useful lives and residual values are appropriate and in 
accordance with its accounting policy. Judgement is required in determining the useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment. Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment have 
been determined based on previous experience and anticipated disposal values when the assets are 
disposed. This estimate is based on projected product lifecycles for its assets. It could change 
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry 
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously 
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have 
been abandoned or sold. 

 
Impairment of assets 

 

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there 
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Judgement is required in making 
this determination. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash 
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Critical estimates are made by management in assessment 
of impairment for non-financial assets. Significant estimates relate to the determination of the 
projected cash flows and the discount rate.   
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF 
ESTIMATION (continued)   

 
Contingent liabilities 
 

As disclosed in Note 34 of these financial statements, the Group is exposed to various contingent 
liabilities in the normal course of business including a number of legal cases. There is uncertainty as 
to how present and future claims and other liabilities will be resolved and therefore significant 
judgement is required in assessing the likely outcome and the potential liability for such matters. 
 
Management in consultation with the legal advisers evaluate the status of these exposures on a regular 
basis to assess the probability of the Group incurring related liabilities. Provisions are made in the 
financial statements where, based on the Directors’ evaluation, a present obligation has been 
established and it is probable that a liability will crystalise. 
 
Income tax 
 
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of 
legislation. There are many transactions and calculations for which ultimate tax determination is 
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome 
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact 
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 
 
Trade receivables 

 
The Group uses a provision matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from customers. The 
loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate’ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing 
through successive stages of delinquency to write-off. Roll rates are calculated separately for 
exposures in different segments. A number of significant judgements and estimations are also 
required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as: 
 
• The application of IFRS 9 risk parameters i.e. probably of default (PD), loss given at default (LGD) 

and exposure at default (EAD) to trade receivables; and 
• The definition of default, determination of probability of default matrix and identification of 

exposures with significant deterioration in credit quality.  
 
The Group uses historical patterns to determine the future payment patterns for government 
advertising debt. The expected future payments are then discounted to take into account the time 
value of money. 
 
Lease term and discount rates determination on adoption of IFRS 16  
 
Critical estimates are made by management in determining lease terms in lease contracts. Specifically, 
in determining which leases will be extended and renewed on expiry of the non-cancellable lease 
term. Estimates are also made on the discount rate. 
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WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA
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                                GROUP    COMPANY 
   

2023 
 

2022 
  

2023 
 

2022 
8. REVENUE KES 000 KES’   000   KES 000 KES 000 

                 Revenue recognised at a point in time 
Print            1,448,715  1,658,675  1,448,715  1,658,675 
Broadcasting      932,710  1,084,590    372,749      392,056 
      

 2,381,425 2,743,265  1,821,464 2,050,731 
9. DIRECT COSTS 

 
Material cost 336,536  286,356    336,534 286,153 
Programmes 83,613  135,303  33,191 56,030 
Depreciation 79,785  84,079     79,785 84,079 
News contribution costs 73,678  75,560  65,290 64,954 
News service 10,051  23,365  63 2,887 
Operating lease 5,267  11,622  5,095 9,594 
TV licenses  101,163  60,740  - - 
Maintenance 25,394  42,521  25,394 42,521 
Production salaries 8,905  5,803  8,905 5,803 
Events  25,488 23,503  15,281 22,746 
Other costs             -          534              -            - 

 749,880 749,386  569,538   574,767 
 

10. OTHER GAINS OR (LOSSES) 
 
Miscellaneous income 33,722 33,239  15,419 17,558 
Sale of newspaper returns, 
production waste and other income 

 
16,653 

 
14,808 

  
16,653 

 
14,808 

Printing services (115) 35  (115)     35   
Gain on disposal of property and 
equipment 7,044 534 

 
7,044 535 

Unrealised forex losses (109,853) (9,498)  (97,002) (6,795) 
Realised Forex Gains  1,722  47,845 (933) 
Realised Forex Losses  (18,091)  (15,356) (18,085) 

    (8,489)    22,749  (25,512)      7,122 
 

 
11. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION 

 
 Commission on bad debt  2,995     11,114  2,995 11,114 
Marketing and promotion 7,277 22,311  5,084 21,764 

        Advertising commission 161,733 151,719  115,120 95,771 
        Transport and distribution   67,511 72,059   67,511    70,547 
 

239,517 257,202 
 

190,710 199,196 
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12. a) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  
GROUP                                         COMPANY 

 2023 2022   2023 2023 
  KES 000    KES 000                KES 000              KES 000 
Staff costs          1,276,597    971,857  1,178,714 
Rent              60,777     55,742  39,223 
Property operations             38,172     28,057  33,210 
Depreciation charge              94,503       68,336 74,913 
Depreciation recharge                         -       (12,319) (36,454) 
Amortisation of intangible assets             14,226       10,958 14,054 
Right of use amortisation              18,253    18,253  28,668 
Leasehold land amortisation 4,141    4,141  4,141 
Professional fees           105,075     103,556  49,248 
Repairs and maintenance               41,809    38,102  73,916 
Vehicle expenses              53,386     51,305  70,786 
Communication expense     9,353     8,452  35,487 
Travel and accommodation                 1,853     1,830  8,543 
General insurance               57,232     40,492  48,734 
Licences 3,946    39,456 
Penalties 123,173   31,950 
Bank charges             15,293     13,345  32,972 
Electricity and water             36,426     31,700  39,104 
Training              2,865     2,540  2,995 
Subscription and donation               (135)    (135) 6,884 
Printing and stationery             2,316     2,225  8,070 
Directors’ fees               10,510     10,510  983 
AGM board meeting                1,334     1,334  1,360 
Others                      62               62        22,648 
      
 1,971,167 2,320,891  1,547,366 1,809,605 
Staff costs include:      
      

Salaries and wages  1,101,459  1,364,749   838,211  1,051,473 
Staff welfare  145,207  138,741   110,359  97,145 
Pension contributions  18,608  36,939   13,939  28,323 
NSSF  11,323  2,437   9,348  1,773 

      

           1,276,597 1,542,866  971,857 1,178,714 
      

      Average number of employees 
 

 Number Number  Number Number 
Management 17 25  16 22 
Others 714 842  576 651 
      

Total 731 867  592 673 
 
12. b) MOVEMENT IN EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES 

      
                GROUP                COMPANY 
     2023       2022      2023           2022 
 KES 000    KES 000                KES 000    KES 000               
Provision for expected credit 
losses 
 

 
(46,167) 

    
246,323 

  
(48,254) 

 
228,364 

      



THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 99THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 
2023(CONTINUED) 
 

Page 57 

 
13. FINANCE COSTS              

 

 GROUP  COMPANY 
 2023        2022   2023 2022  
 KES 000    KES 000                KES 000               KES 000 
Interest on term loans 35,031 153,247  15,720 125,312 
Interest on bank overdrafts 17,151  31,125           13,504  27,837 
Interest on shareholders loans 31,193 22,650  31,193 22,650 
Interest on asset financing 33  304  25  250 
Interest on lease liabilities   5,335     8,350  5,335     8,350 
      
 88,743 215,676  65,777 184,399 
      

14. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX                
GROUP    2023 2022 

 KES 000               KES 000 
The loss before taxation is arrived at after 
charging the following items: 

  

   

Depreciation for PPE   174,288 186,621 
Right of use asset amortisation 18,254 28,668 
Amortisation - intangible assets 14,226 20,633 
Directors’ emoluments:   
                      - Fees - non-executive 10,510 1,320 
                      - Executive directors                 17,788 30,828 
Auditors' remuneration - current year - 6,779 
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment       7,044       535 

   

            
COMPANY   

           The loss before taxation is arrived at after 
        charging the following items 

   

Depreciation for PPE 148,121 158,992 
Right of use asset amortisation 18,254 28,668 
Amortisation - Intangible assets 10,958 14,054 
Directors’ emoluments:   
                      - Fees - non-executive 10,510 983 
                      - Executive directors                 17,788 30,828 
Auditors' remuneration - current year - 6,779 
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment 7,044        535 
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15. INCOME TAX 
     2023   2022            

KES  000 KES 000 
 

Group    
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Note 28(a)) 
Deferred tax (credit)/expense  (150,289) (158,259) 
    
The current year income tax expense has arisen largely from deferred tax movements 

 
 
 
 

     2023   2022            
KES 000 KES 000 

Company   
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Note 28(a))   
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (142,252) (163,445) 
   
The current year income tax expense has arisen largely from deferred tax movements. 
   

  
(a) Reconciliation of expected tax based on accounting loss to taxation credit 

 
Group 
 
      2023   2022            
 KES 000 

 
KES 000 

  Derecognized deferred Tax  (538,902)  
   
  Loss before income tax (722,538) (1,023,463) 
   Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2022:30%) (216,762) (307,039) 
   Tax effect of non-deductible costs 70,559 88,589 
  Tax effect of under provision of lease liabilities in 

the prior years 
(4,087) - 

Under provision of deferred tax in prior year               - 60,191 
Unrecognised deferred tax (388,612)               - 

   (538,902) (158,259) 
   
 
Company 
   
 
Derecognized deferred Tax 

                    
hhhhh(441,788) 

 

   
 
   Loss before income tax 

                
ggggg(625,693) 

 
(938,477) 

  Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2022:30%) (187,708) (281,543) 
  Tax effect of non-deductible costs        hhhhhhh49,543 57,907 
  Tax effect of under provision of lease liabilities in the   

prior years 
(4,087) - 

  Under provision of deferred tax in prior year               - 61,191 
  Unrecognised deferred tax (299,536)               - 
 ( 441,788) (162,445) 
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15. INCOME TAX 
     2023   2022            

KES  000 KES 000 
 

Group    
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Note 28(a)) 
Deferred tax (credit)/expense  (150,289) (158,259) 
    
The current year income tax expense has arisen largely from deferred tax movements 

 
 
 
 

     2023   2022            
KES 000 KES 000 

Company   
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Note 28(a))   
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (142,252) (163,445) 
   
The current year income tax expense has arisen largely from deferred tax movements. 
   

  
(a) Reconciliation of expected tax based on accounting loss to taxation credit 

 
Group 
 
      2023   2022            
 KES 000 

 
KES 000 

  Derecognized deferred Tax  (538,902)  
   
  Loss before income tax (722,538) (1,023,463) 
   Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2022:30%) (216,762) (307,039) 
   Tax effect of non-deductible costs 70,559 88,589 
  Tax effect of under provision of lease liabilities in 

the prior years 
(4,087) - 

Under provision of deferred tax in prior year               - 60,191 
Unrecognised deferred tax (388,612)               - 

   (538,902) (158,259) 
   
 
Company 
   
 
Derecognized deferred Tax 

                    
hhhhh(441,788) 

 

   
 
   Loss before income tax 

                
ggggg(625,693) 

 
(938,477) 

  Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2022:30%) (187,708) (281,543) 
  Tax effect of non-deductible costs        hhhhhhh49,543 57,907 
  Tax effect of under provision of lease liabilities in the   

prior years 
(4,087) - 

  Under provision of deferred tax in prior year               - 61,191 
  Unrecognised deferred tax (299,536)               - 
 ( 441,788) (162,445) 
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15. INCOME TAX 
     2023   2022            

KES  000 KES 000 
 

Group    
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Note 28(a)) 
Deferred tax (credit)/expense  (150,289) (158,259) 
    
The current year income tax expense has arisen largely from deferred tax movements 

 
 
 
 

     2023   2022            
KES 000 KES 000 

Company   
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Note 28(a))   
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (142,252) (163,445) 
   
The current year income tax expense has arisen largely from deferred tax movements. 
   

  
(a) Reconciliation of expected tax based on accounting loss to taxation credit 

 
Group 
 
      2023   2022            
 KES 000 

 
KES 000 

  Derecognized deferred Tax  (538,902)  
   
  Loss before income tax (722,538) (1,023,463) 
   Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2022:30%) (216,762) (307,039) 
   Tax effect of non-deductible costs 70,559 88,589 
  Tax effect of under provision of lease liabilities in 

the prior years 
(4,087) - 

Under provision of deferred tax in prior year               - 60,191 
Unrecognised deferred tax (388,612)               - 

   (538,902) (158,259) 
   
 
Company 
   
 
Derecognized deferred Tax 

                    
hhhhh(441,788) 

 

   
 
   Loss before income tax 

                
ggggg(625,693) 

 
(938,477) 

  Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2022:30%) (187,708) (281,543) 
  Tax effect of non-deductible costs        hhhhhhh49,543 57,907 
  Tax effect of under provision of lease liabilities in the   

prior years 
(4,087) - 

  Under provision of deferred tax in prior year               - 61,191 
  Unrecognised deferred tax (299,536)               - 
 ( 441,788) (162,445) 
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15.        INCOME TAX (continued) 

          
(b)   Current income tax recoverable 

  2023 2022 
Group  KES 000 KES 000 
    
At 01 January  (23,973) (18,076) 
Tax paid in the year            - (5,897) 
    
At 31 December  (23,973) (23,973) 
    
Comprising:    
Tax payable  - - 
Tax recoverable  (23,973) (23,973) 
    

 
Company 

 

At 01 January   (16,500) (12,318) 
Current tax - charge for the year                                            - 
                   - tax paid in the year               - (4,182)  

     
At 31 December          (16,500) (16,500) 

  
16. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 

  
Loss attributable to owners     
of the Company – KES 000                       
  (1,166,401) (821,020) 
    
Total loss attributable to owners  (1,166,401) (821,020) 
    
Number of shares during the year                                                         81,731,808 81,731,808 
    
Earnings per share – continuing operations – Basic 
and diluted  

              
16 

 
(14.27) 

 
(10.05) 

    
    

    

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 
2023(CONTINUED) 
 

Page 60 

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
(a) Group 

     Buildings Plant & Motor Furniture Capital Total 
  machinery vehicles fittings & work in  

31 December 2023    equipment progress  
Cost KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
       
At start of year 935,537 2,548,319 182,906 728,781      3,216 4,398,760 
Additions  - - - - - - 
Disposals - - (14,545) - - (14,545) 
Transfer from CWIP* 
to intangible assets             -       1,537         (1)  (2,971)  1,632            197 

At end of year          935,537 2,549,856 168,360 725,810 4,848 4,384,412 
       
       

       
Depreciation       
At start of year  185,122   2,030,821   168,421   619,849   -     3,004,214  
Charge for the year  18,766   126,951   7,029   21,542   -  174,288 
Adjustment  (25)    (37,898)   (611)  38,732  -     197  
Disposal  -     -     (14,545)  -     -     (14,545) 
At end of year              203,863  2,119,875  160,294 680,122             - 3,164,154 
       
Net book value         731,674     429,981      8,066    45,688     4,848 1,220,258 

       
       

 
31 December 2022       
Cost       
At start of year 934,291 2,541,455 185,813 698,006 3,489 4,363,054 
Additions  1,246 2,466 - 30,775 6,579 41,067 
Disposals - - (2,907) - - (2,907) 
Transfer from CWIP*             - 4,398             -             - (6,852) (2,454) 
At end of year          935,537 2,548,319 182,906 728,781      3,216 4,398,760 
       

 
Depreciation       
At start of year 166,370 1,894,286 161,031 598,813 - 2,820,500 
Charge for the year 18,752 136,535 10,297 21,036 - 186,621 
Disposal             -             - (2,907)             -             -      (2,907) 
At end of year              185,122  2,030,821              168,421 619,849             - 3,004,214 
       
Net book value         750,415     517,498 14,485 108,932 3,216 1,394,546 

       
       

    
At 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment with cost of KES 2,390,332,676 (2022: KES 
2,168,640,595) were fully depreciated.  The notional depreciation charge on these assets would have been 
KES 525,756,082 (2022: KES 488,082,705).  
 CWIP* - Capital Work in Progress. The CWIP majorly comprises building under construction, as well as 
furniture and equipment. 

Assets pledged as security for liabilities are disclosed under Note 29. 
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
(a) Group 

     Buildings Plant & Motor Furniture Capital Total 
  machinery vehicles fittings & work in  

31 December 2023    equipment progress  
Cost KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
       
At start of year 935,537 2,548,319 182,906 728,781      3,216 4,398,760 
Additions  - - - - - - 
Disposals - - (14,545) - - (14,545) 
Transfer from CWIP* 
to intangible assets             -       1,537         (1)  (2,971)  1,632            197 

At end of year          935,537 2,549,856 168,360 725,810 4,848 4,384,412 
       
       

       
Depreciation       
At start of year  185,122   2,030,821   168,421   619,849   -     3,004,214  
Charge for the year  18,766   126,951   7,029   21,542   -  174,288 
Adjustment  (25)    (37,898)   (611)  38,732  -     197  
Disposal  -     -     (14,545)  -     -     (14,545) 
At end of year              203,863  2,119,875  160,294 680,122             - 3,164,154 
       
Net book value         731,674     429,981      8,066    45,688     4,848 1,220,258 

       
       

 
31 December 2022       
Cost       
At start of year 934,291 2,541,455 185,813 698,006 3,489 4,363,054 
Additions  1,246 2,466 - 30,775 6,579 41,067 
Disposals - - (2,907) - - (2,907) 
Transfer from CWIP*             - 4,398             -             - (6,852) (2,454) 
At end of year          935,537 2,548,319 182,906 728,781      3,216 4,398,760 
       

 
Depreciation       
At start of year 166,370 1,894,286 161,031 598,813 - 2,820,500 
Charge for the year 18,752 136,535 10,297 21,036 - 186,621 
Disposal             -             - (2,907)             -             -      (2,907) 
At end of year              185,122  2,030,821              168,421 619,849             - 3,004,214 
       
Net book value         750,415     517,498 14,485 108,932 3,216 1,394,546 

       
       

    
At 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment with cost of KES 2,390,332,676 (2022: KES 
2,168,640,595) were fully depreciated.  The notional depreciation charge on these assets would have been 
KES 525,756,082 (2022: KES 488,082,705).  
 CWIP* - Capital Work in Progress. The CWIP majorly comprises building under construction, as well as 
furniture and equipment. 

Assets pledged as security for liabilities are disclosed under Note 29. 
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 

(b) Company 
  Plant & Motor Furniture Capital  Total 
 Buildings machinery vehicles fittings & work in  
    equipment progress  
31 December 2023 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Cost       
At start of year 854,932 1,803,769 181,394 612,127  3,216 3,455,438 
Additions  - 1 - - - 1 
Disposals - - (14,545) - - (14,545) 
Adjustment            -        1,537         (1)  (2,974) 1,632            194 
At end of year          854,932 1,805,306 166,848 609,153   4,848 3,441,087 
       
       
Depreciation 
At start of year 164,443 1,382,013 166,298 485,588           - 2,198,342 
Charge for the year 17,154 107,817 7,028 16,121 - 148,120 
Adjustment - (70,897) 1   71,091 - 194 
Elimination on disposal          -              - (14,545)          -           -   (14,545) 
At the end of year 181,597 1,418,933 158,783 572,800           - 2,332,111 
       
Net book Value 673,335 386,373 8,066 36,353   4,848 1,108,975 
 
31 December 2022: 

      

Cost       
At start of year 853,686 1,799,166 184,301 596,991 3,489 3,437,633 
Additions  1,246 205 - 15,136 6,579 23,166 
Disposals - - (2,907) - - (2,907) 
Transfer from CWIP*            -         4,398           -           - (6,852) (2,454) 
At end of year          854,932 1,803,769 181,394 612,127  3,216 3,455,438 
       
       
 
Depreciation 
At start of year 147,303 1,269,249 158,908 466,797 -   2,042,257 
Charge for the year 17,140 112,764 10,297 18,791 - 158,992 
Elimination on disposal          -              - (2,907)          -           -     (2,907) 
At the end of year 164,443 1,382,013 166,298 485,588           - 2,198,342 
       

Net book Value 690,489 421,756 15,096 126,539     3,216 1,257,096 
         

 
At 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment with cost of KES 1,668,303,696 (2022: KES 
1,531,866,524) were fully depreciated. The notional depreciation charge on these assets would have been 
KES  417,162,481 (2022: KES 392,702,255 ). 
CWIP* - Capital Work in Progress. The CWIP majorly comprises building under construction. 

Assets pledged as security for liabilities are disclosed under Note 29. 
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 

(b) Company 
  Plant & Motor Furniture Capital  Total 
 Buildings machinery vehicles fittings & work in  
    equipment progress  
31 December 2023 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Cost       
At start of year 854,932 1,803,769 181,394 612,127  3,216 3,455,438 
Additions  - 1 - - - 1 
Disposals - - (14,545) - - (14,545) 
Adjustment            -        1,537         (1)  (2,974) 1,632            194 
At end of year          854,932 1,805,306 166,848 609,153   4,848 3,441,087 
       
       
Depreciation 
At start of year 164,443 1,382,013 166,298 485,588           - 2,198,342 
Charge for the year 17,154 107,817 7,028 16,121 - 148,120 
Adjustment - (70,897) 1   71,091 - 194 
Elimination on disposal          -              - (14,545)          -           -   (14,545) 
At the end of year 181,597 1,418,933 158,783 572,800           - 2,332,111 
       
Net book Value 673,335 386,373 8,066 36,353   4,848 1,108,975 
 
31 December 2022: 

      

Cost       
At start of year 853,686 1,799,166 184,301 596,991 3,489 3,437,633 
Additions  1,246 205 - 15,136 6,579 23,166 
Disposals - - (2,907) - - (2,907) 
Transfer from CWIP*            -         4,398           -           - (6,852) (2,454) 
At end of year          854,932 1,803,769 181,394 612,127  3,216 3,455,438 
       
       
 
Depreciation 
At start of year 147,303 1,269,249 158,908 466,797 -   2,042,257 
Charge for the year 17,140 112,764 10,297 18,791 - 158,992 
Elimination on disposal          -              - (2,907)          -           -     (2,907) 
At the end of year 164,443 1,382,013 166,298 485,588           - 2,198,342 
       

Net book Value 690,489 421,756 15,096 126,539     3,216 1,257,096 
         

 
At 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment with cost of KES 1,668,303,696 (2022: KES 
1,531,866,524) were fully depreciated. The notional depreciation charge on these assets would have been 
KES  417,162,481 (2022: KES 392,702,255 ). 
CWIP* - Capital Work in Progress. The CWIP majorly comprises building under construction. 

Assets pledged as security for liabilities are disclosed under Note 29. 
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18. LEASEHOLD LAND 
 

   2023            2022  
   KES 000   KES 000  
   
At 1 January 303,987 308,128 
Charge for the year (4,142) (4,141) 
 299,845 303,987 
   

 
 

19. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 
 

These assets and liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, 
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. The weighted average lessee’s 
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities during the year was 13%. 
 
The Group leases offices and motor vehicles. The leases for motor vehicles run for 2 years. The 
leases for offices typically run for a period ranging between 5 – 9 years. Information about leases 
for which the Group is a lessee is presented below. 
 
In order to identify whether the Group’s contracts gave rise to a lease, the Group looked out for 
the following; 

 
⎯ The lease is a contract. 
⎯ The parties to the contract are lessor and lessee. 
⎯ The lease contract specifies the period of contract. 
⎯ The lessee uses the assets. 
⎯ The lessee, in consideration, pays the lease rentals to the lessor. 
⎯ The lessor is the owner of the asset and is entitled to the benefit of depreciation and other 

allied benefits e.g., Tax payable under the Income Tax Act. 
⎯ The lessee claims the rentals as expenses chargeable to his income. 
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19. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 
 

(a) Right-of-use assets 
 

Group and Company 
 

  Rental leases Printers  Vehicles Total      
2023  KES 000 KES 000 KES 000  KES 000 
At 1 January 12,539 2,016 8,791 23,346 
Additions 16,827   16,827 
Disposals (4,630)   (4,630) 
Adjustment (2,017) 2 2,015 0 
Charge for the year (6,346) (1,101) (10,806) (18,253) 
At end of year  16,373        918               -     17,290  
 
 
2022 

 
  

 

At 1 January 22,417 3,118 26,479 52,014 
Charge for the year (9,878) (1,102) (17,688) (28,668) 
At end of year 12,539 2,016 8,791 23,346 
     
     

(b) Lease liabilities 
 

Group and Company 
 

   

2022 
Rental 
leases 

 
 
 

Vehicles 
 

Printers  

 
 
 

         Total 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES’   000 KES 000 
     
Less than one year 6,112 9,857 969 16,937 
2-5 years   5,633        -    904  6,537 
 

 
  

 

At end of year 11,744 9,857 1,873 23,474 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

 2023 Rental leases 
 

Vehicles 
 

Printers  
 

         Total 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES  000 KES 000 
     Less than one year   -     1,416   1,416  
     2-5 years  18,847     18,847  
     At end of year 18,847        - 1,416 20,263 
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19. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 
 

(c) Amounts recognised in cashflow and profit or loss - Group and Company 
 

 
   2023            2022  
Lease liabilities under IFRS 16  KES 000   KES 000  
Interest on lease liability  5,335  8,350 
Principal on lease liability 19,559 45,174 
Total cash flows for lease liabilities 24,894 53,524 
   
   

(d) Movement in lease liabilities is as follows - Group and Company 
  Rental leases Vehicles Printers Total 
2023 KES 000 KES 000 KES  000 KES 000 
     
At start of year   11,744 9,857    1,873   23,474 
Additions 16,827   16,827 
Disposal (9,962)   (9,962) 
Repayment of interest 
on lease liability 

 
 (3,600) 

 
 (1,375) 

 
 (360) 

 
 (5,335) 

Repayment of principal 
on lease liability 

 
 (5,815) 

 
 (12,496) 

  
(1,248) 

  
(19,559) 

Interest expense  3,600       1,375   360   5,335  
Adjustment  6,054     2,639   791   9,483  
At end of year 18,847        (0) 1,416   20,262 

 
 

  Rental leases Vehicles Printers Total  
2022 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 

 
At start of year 36,839      28,729 3,080 68,648 
Repayment of interest 
on lease liability (4,789)     (3,160) (400) (8,350) 

Repayment of principal 
on lease liability (25,095) (18,872) (1,207) (45,174) 
Interest expense     4,789 3,160      400     8,350 
At end of year   11,744   9,857    1,873   23,474 
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
  

a) Group 
   Broadcasting  
 Software Trademark  licenses Total 
As at 31 December 2023  

KES 000 
 

KES 000 
     

KES 000 
 

KES 000 
Cost     
At start of year 685,216 22,281 485,738 1,193,235 
Additions            -           -            -                - 
     
At end of year      685,216 22,281 485,738 1,193,235 
     
Amortisation     
At start of year (654,522)             -             -  (654,522) 
Charge for the year      (14,227)             -             - (14,227) 
     
At end of year           (668,749)             -             -  (668,749) 
     

Carrying amount at end of year      16,467   22,281 485,738    524,486 
     
As at 31 December 2022   
Cost     
At start of year 674,499 22,281 458,738 1,155,518 
Additions 8,264 - 27,000 35,264 
Transfers from CWIP    2,453         -           -      2,453 
At end of year      685,216 22,281 485,738 1,193,235 
     
Amortisation     
At start of year (633,890) - - (633,890) 
Charge for the year      (20,633)             -             - (20,633) 
At end of year           (654,523)             -             -  (654,523 
     
Carrying amount at end of year      30,693   22,281 485,738 538,712 
     

(b) Company      

 Trademark Software Broadcasting     Total 
   licenses  
As at 31 December 2023 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000   KES 000 
Cost     
At start of year    6,000 636,387 418,863 1,061,250 
Additions - - -            - 
Transfers from CWIP         -            -            -              - 
At end of year            6,000 636,387 418,863 1,061,250 
     
Amortisation     
At start of year           - 615,772         - 615,772 
Charge for the year              -    10,958          -   10,958 
At end of year         - 626,730         - 626,730 
     
Carrying amount at end of year   6,000     9,658 418,863 434,520 

 
 

    



THE STANDARD GROUP PLCAnnual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 iv Pg.  v Pg.

WE ARE
WHO 

The Standard Group PLC is a leading multi-media 
organization in Kenya, with investments in platforms 
spanning print operations, television, radio, digital 

and courier services. 

THE

PLC

To inspire lives through 
media and entertainment

PURPOSE

VISION
Voice of Society

OUR 
VALUES
• Achievement

• Agility

• Courage

• Excellence

• Innovation

To disseminate media content that 
provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 107

THE STANDARD GROUP PLC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 
2023(CONTINUED) 
 

Page 66 

 
20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)  

 
     
     As at 31 December 2022 

 
Trademark 

 
Software 

 
Broadcasting 

licenses 

    
 

 Total 
        Cost KES 000 KES 000 KES 000   KES 000 
        At start of year     
        Additions - 270 27,000  27,270 
        Transfers from CWIP         -     2,453            -       2,453 
        At end of year            6,000 636,387 418,863 1,061,250 
     
       Amortisation     
       At start of year  - 601,718 - 601,718 
       Charge for the year              -    14,054          - 14,054 
        At end of year         - 615,772         - 615,772 
     
        Carrying amount at end of year 6,000 20,615 418,863 445,478 
     
     

The trademarks and broadcasting licences have been accounted for as intangible assets with 
an indefinite useful life. Management estimate that the products will generate net cash 
inflows for the group for an indefinite period, therefore carrying them at cost without 
amortisation, but for which an impairment assessment is carried out on an annual basis. 

The Group acquired the rights to distribute the Eve trademark on 17 April 2009. An 
agreement was signed transferring full title and guaranteeing all rights, titles and interest in 
the publication to the Group. The carrying value of these rights is KES 6,000,000. The 
additional trademarks relate to Farmers TV.  

The Group acquired licenses for radio frequencies through its subsidiary, Toads Media 
Group Limited and additional frequencies acquired directly by the parent. The Group made 
reference to the cash generating ability of Radio Maisha and projected consistent revenue 
growth for the foreseeable future and assessed these as not impaired. 

At the end of the year, the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of both its investments 
in trademarks and the frequency for impairment. The Group used reference to their cash 
generating ability and assessed the frequencies as not impaired. For trademarks, the 
assumption made was that they will continue to accrue commercial benefits in the 
foreseeable future.  
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21. INVESTMENTS 

(a)  Investment in subsidiaries (unquoted) 
          

 Principal Shareholding 2023                2022 
 activity    KES 000      KES 000 
The Standard Limited Dormant 100% 3,398 3,398 
Baraza Limited Broadcasting 51% 92 92 
Agency Sales and Promotion 
Limited 

Dormant 100% 2 2 

Toads Media Group Limited  Leasing 100%  66,875 66,875 
   70,367 70,367 
     
The investments in the subsidiaries are carried at cost. Toads Media Group Limited holds the 
licence for the frequencies for Radio Maisha, which operates as a division of The Standard 
Group Plc. All subsidiaries above are incorporated in Kenya. 

 
(b) Investment in joint operation  

   
The Group has an investment in a Special Purpose Vehicle (Lancia Digital Broadcast Limited) 
that holds a digital broadcasting license. The operations of the SPV are treated as a joint 
operation where the Group recognises its direct right to the jointly held assets, liabilities, 
revenues, and expenses. The balance represents the Standard Group Plc’s share of the carrying 
amount of the digital broadcasting licence asset in the joint operation.  
 
At the end of the year, the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of its share of the digital 
broadcasting license for impairment, using reference to its cash generating ability and 
assessed it as not impaired. 

 
 

22. INVENTORIES 
                                     

(a) Group 
  2023 2022 
  KES 000 KES 000 
Raw materials  30,792 23,715 
Consumables    75,032 76,006 
Broadcast programmes             -       192 
    105,824 99,913 
    
Inventories expensed during the year  385,267 320,615 

                                                           
  

(b) Company   
  2023   2022 
  KES 000 KES 000 
Raw materials (Newsprint, inks & plates)   30,792 23,715         
Consumables  73,809 74,782           
    
  104,601 98,498 
    
Inventories expensed during the year  337,261 288,700 
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

   2023 2022 
      KES 000   KES 000 
(a) Group 

 
Trade receivables    2,993,015 2,490,152 
Adjustments   19,410  80,850 
Provision for expected credit losses  (1,222,479)       (1,176,312) 
  

  
    1,789,946    1,394,690 
    
Other receivables  49,493 42,653 
Prepayments          16,790      17,756 
  1,856,229 1,455,098 

(b) Company 
 
Trade receivables    2,416,305 2,006,350 
Adjustment   5,814  65,694 
Provision for expected credit losses   (995,229) (946,975) 
    
  1,426,890 1,125,069 
    
Other receivables  37,536 31,440 
Prepayments      17,122     17,524 
  1,481,548 1,174,033 
 
 
The movement in the provision for expected credit losses during the year is included under 
note 5(b). 
 
 

24. SHARE CAPITAL 

(a) Ordinary shares 2023 2022 
 KES 000    KES 000 
Authorised: 
103,979,600 ordinary shares of KES’   5 each 519,898      519,898  
 
Issued and fully paid: 
81,731,808 Ordinary shares of KES’   5 each  408,654  408,654 
 
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends when declared from time 
to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All 
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. 
 
Share premium 2023 2022 
 KES 000    KES 000 
Share premium comprises: 
Ordinary shares at 31 December 39,380      39,380 
 
Share premium arose when the shares of the company were issued at a price higher than 
the par value. There was no increase in share capital during the year. 
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 

 
(b) Movement in fully paid ordinary shares 

        Share    Share 
 No. of capital premium Total 
 shares KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
 
At 31 December 2023 81,731,808 408,654 39,380 448,034
     
At 31 December 202 81,731,808 408,654 39,380 448,034 
 
 
 

25. RESERVES 
 
(a) Capital redemption reserve 

 
The redemption of the preference share capital was made through a transfer to a capital 
redemption reserve fund. The reserve is non-distributable.  
 

(b) Retained earnings 
 
Retained earnings represent accumulated profits retained by the Group and company after 
payment of dividends to shareholders 
 
 

  
26. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS    

Baraza Limited is incorporated as a limited company in Kenya under the Kenya 
Companies Act, 2015 and is domiciled in Kenya. The address of its registered 
office is as follows: 

 
The Standard Group Centre 
Mombasa Road 
PO Box 30080 – 00100 
Nairobi 

 
The Company is a subsidiary of The Standard Group PLC, which is incorporated in Kenya 
 
The proportion of ownership interests held by non-controlling interests is 49% 

 
  2023         2022 

   KES 000             KES 000 
At 1 January 145,271     189,455 
Share of results for the year (43,516) (44,184) 
   
At 31 December 101,755 145,271 
   

 
Set out below are the summarised financial information for Baraza Limited for which 
the non-controlling interest is material to the Group. 
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26. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 

 
Summarised financial information on subsidiary with material non- controlling interest 
 
The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup 
eliminations. 

 
 Baraza Limited 
 As at 31 December   2023    2022 

 KES ‘000 KES ‘000 
Non-controlling interest   49% 49% 
Assets     942,659 893,738 
Liabilities (840,150) (597,217) 
   

Net assets 102,509 296,467 
   

Net assets attributable to NCI 50,232 145,271 
   

Revenue   559,961   692,534 
Expenses (559,693) (772,334) 
   

Profit for the year 268 (79,800) 
   
Total comprehensive income 268 (79,800) 
Total comprehensive income attributable   
to non-controlling interest (95,039) (44,184) 
   
Net cash inflow from operating activities 34,128 29,243 

Net cash outflow from investing activities             -    (25,895) 
   
Net cash outflow   34,128       3,348 

 
 

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
(a) Transactions with related parties 
 
    Group 

                                                                                                        

  
Millers 
Trustees 
Limited 

Trade 
World 
(K) 
Limited 

Oakside 
Loan 

SPSL 
Loan 

SNG 
Loan 

Arboretum 
Heights 
Ltd Loan 

Total 
2023 

As at 01 January 
2023 66,425 9,006 14,887 277,949 74,000 - 442,266 

Interest expense 5,314 720 -  17,000 -  -  23,034 
Additions  - -  -  -  -  391,892 391,892 
Reclassification  - -  -  -  (12,000) -  (12,000) 
WH Tax (797) (108)          -             -             -             -  (905) 
As at 31 
December 2023 70,942 9,618 14,887 294,948    62,000  391,892 844,287 
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27. RELATED PARTY BALANCES (continued) 
 

(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued) 
                                                                                                        

  

Millers 
Trustee
s 
Limited 

Trade 
World 
(K) 
Limited 

Oakside 
Loan 

SPSL 
Loan 

SNG 
Loan 

Total 
2023 

As at 01 January 
2022 

62,196 9,006 14,887 260,949 - 347,037 

Interest expense 4,976 675 - 17,000 - 22,650 

Additions -  -  - - 74,000
  74,000 

WH Tax (746) (101)          -                                (848) 
As at 31 
December 2022 66,425 9,579 14,887 277,949 74,000 442,839 

 
 

Company 

 KES 000 
Millers 
Trustees 
Limited 

Trade 
World 
(K) 
Limited 

Oakside  SPSL  SNG  
Arboretum 
Heights Ltd 
Loan 

 
Baraza 
Ltd 

The 
Standard 
Limited 

Total 
2023 

As at 01 
January 2023 66,425 9,006 14,887 277,949 74,000 - 342,664 10,590 795,520 

Interest expense 5,314 720 -  17,000  - -   -  - 23,034 
Additions -   - -   -  - 391,892  -  - 391,892 
Reclassification -   - -   - (12,000) -  -  - (12,000) 
Administrative 
expense 
recharge to 
subsidiary 

- - - - - - 65,190 - 65,190 

WH Tax (797) (108)         -  -  (905) 
As at 31 
December 2023 70,942 9,618 14,887 294,948 62,000  391,892 407,854 10,590 1,262,731 

 
 

 KES 000 
Millers 
Trustees 
Limited 

Trade 
World 
(K) 
Limited 

Oakside  SPSL  SNG  
Arboretum 
Heights Ltd 
Loan 

 
Baraza 
Ltd 

The 
Standard 
Limited 

Total 
2022 

As at 01 
January 2022 

62,196 9,006 14,887 260,949 - - 259,053 10,590 616,680 

Interest expense 4,976 675 - 17,000 - - - - 22,650 

Additions - - - - 74,000 - - - 74,000 
Administrative 
expense 
recharge to 
subsidiary 

- - - - - - 83,611 - 83,611 

WH Tax (746) (101) - - - - - - (848) 
As at 31 
December 2022 66,425 9,579 14,887 277,949 74,000 - 342,664 10,590 796,093 
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27. RELATED PARTY BALANCES (continued) 
 

(b) Due to related parties 
The balances due to related parties are based on the following terms. 

 Effective 
   Interest rate 2023 2022 

          Group %         KES 000     KES 000  
Non Current Liability     
Standard Production Services Ltd- SPSL   294,948 277,949 
Standard Newspaper Group Payable   62,000 74,000 
Arboretum Heights Ltd Loan   391,892             - 
   748,840 351,949 
Current Liabilities     
The Standard Media Group Holdings     
Limited (common shareholding)  - 14,887 14,887 
Trade World (K) Limited (shareholders)  8.0 9,618 9,005 
Miller Trustees (shareholders)  8.0 70,942 66,425 
   

95,447 90,317 

Company     
Non Current Liability     
     
     
Standard Production Services Ltd- SPSL   294,948 277,949 
Standard Newspaper Group Payable   62,000 74,000 
Arboretum Heights Ltd Loan   391,892                - 
   748,840 351,949 
Current Liabilities     
Standard Media Group Holdings Limited  - 14,887 14,887 
Trade World (K) Limited  8.0 9,618 9,005 
Miller Trustees Limited  8.0 70,942 66,425 
Baraza Limited   407,854 342,664 
The Standard Limited   -   10,590   10,590 
   513,891 443,571 
     

     

(c)    Key management compensation 
 

                 The remuneration of Directors and members of key management during the year were as  follows: 
 2023 2022 
 KES 000    KES 000 
Fees for services as a director   
Non-executive director 10,510 1,320 
Other emoluments   
Salaries and other short-term employment benefits:   
Executive director / key management   
Basic pay 15,810 27,000 
Insurance 118 228 
Gratuity   1,860   3,600 
 17,788 30,828 
 28,298    32,148 
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28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET 
 

(a) Group   2023        2022 
        KES 000          KES 000 

          The Movement on the deferred income tax asset:  
At 1 January   (538,902) (380,643) 
Deferred income tax credit - current year  (150,197) (158,259) 
    

At 31 December  (689,099) (538,902) 
 

                       The net deferred income tax asset is attributable to the following items;  
 

 At 01 Jan 2023 Movement    At 31 Dec 2023 
    
Accelerated capital allowances 109,720          (14,855) 94,864 
Other temporary differences (359,227)          (12,416) (372,744) 
Unrealised exchange gains and 
losses                                                                

(2,612)          (19,212) (21,824) 

Lease liabilities (7,042)                964  (6,079) 
Right-of-use asset 98,200            (3,059) 95,141 
Tax losses carried forward (377,941)        (101,618) (478,458) 
At 31 December (538,902) (150,197) (689,099) 
    

 
(b) Company 

 

          The movement on the deferred income tax asset:  
 2023 2022
 KES 000 KES 000 
At 1 January (441,789) (278,344) 
Deferred income tax credit - current year (142,160) (163,445) 
At 31 December     (583,949) (441,789) 

   
 

Deferred tax (asset)/liability 
 At 01 Jan 

2023 
Movement    At 31 Dec 2023 

Accelerated capital allowances 121,976            (13,774) 108,201  
Other temporary differences  (291,599)           (12,331)  (303,930) 
Unrealised exchange gains and 
losses  (2,512)           (18,032)  (20,544) 

Lease liabilities  (7,042)                964   (6,079) 
Right-of-use-assets 98,200             (3,059) 95,141  
Tax losses carried forward  (360,811)           (95,928)  (456,739) 
Net deferred income tax asset (441,789) (142,160) (583,949) 

 
 
 

The deferred income tax asset has not been recognised as the company is yet to record a taxable 
profit therefore, the availability of future taxable profits to utilise the net asset is in doubt. The 
net deferred income not recognised is attributable to the above. 
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29. BORROWINGS 
 

(a) Group 
          

   2023 2022 

 Term loans Overdrafts Total Total 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Current                99,762   84,159   183,921  849,919 
Non current         279,649              - 279,649             - 
                       379,411 84,159 463,570 849,919 

      
Movement in the year     
Start of year          590,363   259,556   849,919  1,204,705 
Additions      703,662    703,662  1,986,524 
Adjustment  (8,183)  (8,183)   
Interest expense   15,720   15,720 184,676 
Movement in overdrafts       -     (175,397)  (175,397) 61,409 
Interest repayment  (15,720)   (15,720) (184,676) 
Repayments   (906,431)          -  (906,145) (2,402,719) 
At 31 December    379,411 84,159 463,570      849,919 

 
 

       Loan category per Financial Institution 
                 

       Term  loans Overdrafts Total 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
At 31 December 2023: .   
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited 4,363 - 4,363 
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited     26,300      74,014 100,314 
(Short term)    
NCBA Bank Plc-(Short term)  73,463  10,145 83,608 
NCBA Bank Plc  275,285           - 275,285 
 379,411 84,159 463,570 

 
        

At 31 December 2022:    
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited 43,989 84,819 128,808 
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited     
(Short term)    48,300 - 48,300 
NCBA Bank Plc    
(Short term) 74,582                - 74,582 
NCBA Bank Plc 423,492 174,738 598,230 
    
 590,363 259,556 849,919 
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29. BORROWINGS (continued) 
 
(b)   Company 

  
Term loans 

 
Overdrafts 

2023 
Total 

2022 
Total 

 KES 000         KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
Current  99,762   74,014   173,776  822,500 
Non current 279,649          - - 279,649             - 
     

 379,411  74,014 453,425 822,500 
  
  

Term loans 
 

Overdrafts 
         2023     
        Total 

     2022  
     Total 

 KES  000    KES  000    KES 000   KES 000 
Movement in the year     
Start of year          590,363   232,137   822,500  1,173,938 
Additions      703,662    703,662  1,986,524 
Adjustment  (8,183)  (8,183)   
Interest expense   15,720    15,720 153,399 
Movement in overdrafts        (158,123)  (158,123) 64,757 
Interest repayments  (15,720)   (15,720) (153,399) 
Repayments    (906,431)              -  (906,431) (2,402,719) 
     

At 31 December                   379,411    74,014   453,425      822,500 
     
     

 
         Loan category per Financial Institution 

  
Term loans 

 
Overdrafts 

 
Total 

At 31 December 2023: KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 
    
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited 4,363 - 4,363 
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited                    
(Short term) 26,300 74,014 100,314 
NCBA Bank Plc  (Short term)         73,463 - 73,463 
NCBA Bank Plc             275,285           - 275,285 
Totals          379,411  74,014 453,425 
 

At 31 December 2022:    
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited 43,989 65,102 109,091 
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited                    
(Short term) 48,300 - 48,300 
NCBA Bank Plc                
(Short term)         102,656 167,035 269,691 
NCBA Bank Plc           395,418              - 395,418 
    

 590,363 232,137 822,500 
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29. BORROWINGS (continued) 
 

(c)  Facilities and securities 
  

The bank facilities are denominated in Kenya shillings with variable interest rates. The term 
loans and over drafts from the Group’s bankers are utilised as follows; 

 
           Year ended December 2023 

 
 

NCBA Bank Plc 
Stanbic Bank 

Kenya Limited Total 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 

    
Total facility 120,000 48,300 168,300 
Utilization   (73,463) (22,000) (95,462) 
Available head room   46,537   26,300   72,838 
    
% Utilisation 61% 46% 57% 

 
The increased utilization is as a result of the funds used in the business transformation 
project, with the converged newsroom. 

 
     Year ended December 2022 

 
 

NCBA Bank Plc 
Stanbic Bank 

Kenya Limited Total 
 KES 000 KES 000 KES 000 

    
Total facility 1,326,968        490,300 1,817,268 
Utilization   (700,740) (200,771) (901,511) 
Available room   626,228   289,529   915,757 
    

                        % Utilisation                                   53%                            41%                         50% 
 

The bank facilities are denominated in Kenya shillings with variable interest rates. The term 
loans and overdrafts for both NCBA Kenya Plc and Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited are 
secured as follows: 

 
 

                                                                                                                          2023                          2022 
   NCBA Bank NCBA Bank 
  KES ‘000           KES ‘000 
    
Joint and several debentures            890,000 890,000 
Joint and several debentures             110,000 110,000 
Legal charge on property (LR. 209/18213)  890,000 890,000 
 
 Stanbic Bank Stanbic Bank 
 KES ‘000 KES ‘000 

   
Joint and several debentures                490,000 490,000 
Legal charge on property (LR. 209/18213)                    490,000 490,000 
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29. BORROWINGS (continued) 
 
Corporate guarantees   
    NCBA Bank NCBA Bank  

         KES 000       KES 000 
  
Baraza Limited  890,000 890,000  
Toads Limited 110,000           110,000 
 
       Stanbic Bank Stanbic Bank 
           KES 000     KES 000 
 
The Standard Group Plc                 25,000  25,000 
Baraza Limited  877,000 877,000 
The Standard Limited                  25,000  25,000 

 
Further to the above securities; 

 
i. The banks have executed an inter-lenders agreement between the two banks and the 

borrower, ranking each bank parri passu. 
 

ii. Asset finance loans are guaranteed on deed of agreement on assignment of all the 
right of the assets to the financier. 
 

(d) Effective Interest rates 
 

The effective interest rates on the borrowings for Asset financing, Term loans and 
Overdraft were as follows: 

 
 

Year ended 31 December 2023                  
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited                CBR (11%) + Bank’s Margin (4%) = 14.5%  
NCBA Bank Kenya Plc                        CBR(11%) + Bank’s Margin (3.35%) = 14.5%                          

 
Year ended 31 December 2022 
Stanbic Bank Kenya Limited                CBR (8.90%) + Bank’s Margin (4%) = 12.90% 
NCBA Bank Kenya Plc                        CBR (8.90%) + Bank’s Margin (3.35%) = 12.25% 
 
 
 
 

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
      2023           2022 

                          KES 000            KES 000 
(a)  Group 

Trade payables  2,539,704            1,863,802  
Accruals and other payables              728,155                464,459  
Payroll Accruals              350,319                296,582  
Provisions              255,866                325,960  
Value Added Tax payable                17,464                  18,469  
  3,891,508  2,969,272 
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 
 
 

Movement of provision for liabilities 2023    2022 
 KES 000 KES 000 
At 01 January             285,910  222,527 
Charge to profit or loss  393,277  427,626 
Utilised in the year  (423,321) (364,243) 
At 31 December    255,866    285,910 
   

 
(b) Company  

 

Trade payables 1,974,660              1,478,578  
Accruals and other payables 563,488                 458,151  
Payroll Accruals 292,778                 207,853  
Provisions 220,201                 247,069  
Value Added Tax payable                  10,383                    7,775  
 3,061,510 2,399,426 
 
Movement of provision for liabilities   
   
As at 1 January 247,069 193,727 
Charge to profit or loss 325,677 336,747 
Utilised in the year             (352,545) (283,405) 
At 31 December    220,201    247,069 
   
 
 

  

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
(a) Pension  
 

The Group contributes to a pension plan established for the benefit of its employees. The 
pension plan is a defined contribution scheme, whereby the Group matches contributions 
to the fund made by employees up to 7.5% of the employee’s pensionable salary.  
 
During the year the Group temporarily suspended contributions in cognizance of changes 
in the operating environment.  

 
(b) Gratuity 

 
Senior management staff on a fixed term contract are entitled to gratuity payments from 
the company at a rate of 15% for every year worked. The company contributes the monies 
to a defined contribution plan.  
 
The assumptions made are that all the employees will reach the end of the contract period 
and that there will be no decrease in salaries paid over the duration of the contracts. Due 
to the short term nature of the contracts the impact on discounting will be very limited. 
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32. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

 
(i)      Group 
  2023 2022 
(a) Reconciliation of loss before tax to KES 000 KES 000 

cash generated from operations   
 
Loss before tax  (722,538) (1,023,463) 
    
Adjustments for:    
Depreciation – property, plant and 
equipment 

 
17(a) 

 
           174,287   

 
           186,621 

Right of use asset depreciation 19(a) 18,253 28,668 
Amortisation - intangible assets  20(a) 14,227 20,633 
Amortisation – leasehold land  4,142 4,141 
Gain on sale of plant and equipment   (7,044) (535) 
Loss on write off of plant and equipment      -     - 
Disposal of right of use asset  4,630 - 
Intangible asset write off 20(a)         -         - 
Interest Lease    5,335 8,350 
Interest expense 13     83,408 207,326 
Operating profit before tax before   (425,300) (568,259) 
working capital changes    
    
Changes in working capital 
Transfer of lease to trade payables  (478) - 
Inventories 22(a) (5,911) 58,493 
Trade and other receivables  23(a)    (401,131) (132,801) 
Trade and other payables 30(a)      922,236 1,281,198 
Related party balances   402,021      95,803 
    
Cash generated from operations  491,437 734,434 
   

(b) Cash and cash equivalents    
 
Bank and cash balances 49,251 45,422 
Bank overdraft (84,159) (259,556) 
   
 (34,908) (214,134) 
   

 
Net debt reconciliation 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 49,251 45,422 
Liquid Investments   
Borrowings (including overdraft) (463,570) (849,919) 
Lease liabilities     20,263     23,474 
   
Net debt (394,056) (781,023) 
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32.        NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 

 
(ii)  Company 

  2023 2022 
(a)  Reconciliation of loss before tax to KES 000 KES 000 

 cash generated from operations   
 

Loss before tax    (625,693) (938,477) 
    
Adjustments for:    
Depreciation – property, plant and 
equipment 

17(b) 148,120 158,992 

Right of use asset depreciation 19(a) 18,253 28,668 
Amortisation - intangible assets  20(b) 10,959 14,054 
Gain on sale of plant and equipment   (7,044) (535) 
Loss on write off of plant and equipment 13 - - 
Intangible asset write off 20(b) - - 
Disposal of right of use asset  4,630 - 
Amortisation – leasehold land  4,141 4,141 
Interest on lease liabilities  5,335 8,350 
Interest expense  46,913 176,049 
Operating profit before tax before   (394,386) (548,758) 
working capital changes    
    
Changes in working capital    
Transfer of lease to trade payables  (478) - 
Inventories 22(b) (6,103) 55,969 
Trade and other receivables 23(b) (307,515) (109,340) 
Trade and other payables 30(b) 662,084 1,094,912 
Related party balances  467,211 179,414 
    
Cash generated from operations  420,813 672,197 

   
(b) Cash and cash equivalents    

 
Bank and cash balances 32,197 45,222 
Bank overdraft (74,014)   (232,137) 
   
 (41,817) (186,915) 

 
Net debt reconciliation 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 32,197 45,222 
Liquid Investments   
Borrowings   (453,425) (822,500) 
Lease liabilities  (20,263) (23,474) 
   
Net debt (441,491) 800,752 
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33.         CAPITAL COMMITMENTS   
  

 2023 2022 
 KES 000 KES 000 
Authorised and contracted for - 53,677 
Authorised but not contracted for  113,447 328,815 
   
 113,447 382,492 

 
Capital commitments mainly relate to acquisition of new equipment and expansion of radio 
and television reach 

 
34.        CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

 
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has provided a total of KES 210,202,594 (2022; 
KES’170,152,594) in respect of on-going litigation mainly relating to libel charges arising 
in the normal course of business. This covers both the balance and the cost of professional 
legal services. Legal opinions obtained from the Group’s advocates show that no additional 
liability will arise from contingent liabilities that have not been provided for. 
 
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had contingent assets held in Joint Interest accounts 
amounting to KES 49,218,922 (2022; KES 49,218,922) in respect of on-going litigation 
mainly relating to libel cases that are pending hearing and determination after an appeal has 
been raised by the group. 
 

35. CORRECTION OF ERRORS. 
    
    During 2023 the Group discovered that the investment in joint operations had been 

erroneously accounted for as a joint venture. Consequently, the non-current asset and equity 
position had been overstated. The errors have been corrected by restating each of the affected 
financial statement line items for prior periods. The following tables summarise the impacts 
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

 
i. Group 

01 January 2022 
 
In KES 000 

 As previously 
Reported 

Adjustments As restated 

     
Non current Assets       2,841,743            (42,250)        2,799,493  
Current Assets   1,624,406               -  1,624,406  
Total Assets   4,466,149   (42,250)  4,423,899  

                       -    
Total Liabilities   4,284,931               -     4,284,931  

                       -    
Retained Earnings         (412,189)   (412,189) 
Equity accounted investee                   -     (42,250)  (42,250) 
Others      593,407                -     593,407  
Total Equity      181,218    (42,250)     138,968  
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35. CORRECTION OF ERRORS (CONTINUED) 
ii. Company 

 
 

01 January 2022 
 
In KES 000 

As previously 
Reported 

Adjustments As restated 

    
Non current Assets      2,584,313            (42,250)        2,542,063  
Current Assets   1,334,253     1,334,253  
Total Assets   3,918,566     (42,250)   3,876,316  

                      -    
Total Liabilities   4,040,920                 -      4,040,920  

                      -    
Retained Earnings        (570,490)   (570,490) 
Equity accounted investee                  -              (42,250)  (42,250) 
Others      448,136                 -     448,136  
Total Equity   (122,354)    (42,250)   (164,604) 

 
There is no material impact on the Group’s basic or diluted earnings per share and no impact 
on the total operating, investing or financing cash flows for the years ended 31 December 
2022 and 2023 
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PROXY FORM

The Company Secretary 
The Standard Group PLC
P.O. Box 30080 - 00100 
NAIROBI, KENYA

I/WE ……………………………………………………………………………………………..…….................................................................................................

of mobile number ……………………………………............................... and of P.O. Box ……….………………………….................................. 

Email address ………………………………………………………………………………………….....................................................................................

CDS Account Number …………………………….....................  Number of Shares held …………………...................................  
being a shareholder(s) of THE STANDARD GROUP PLC hereby appoint:

Name: ……………………………………………………………………………………….............................................................................................. 

Mobile number ……………………………….................................................    P.O. Box ………………………………................................................

National ID/Passport No ................................................................... or failing him/her, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our
proxy, to vote for my/our behalf at the Virtual Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held electronically on Monday, 02nd 

September 2024 at 9.00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof.

I/We direct my/our proxy to vote on the following resolutions as I/We have indicated by marking the appropriate box with 
an “X”. If no indication is given, my/our proxy will vote or withhold his/her vote at his/her discretion and I/We authorize 
my/our proxy to vote (or withhold his/her vote) as he/she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which is properly put 
before the Meeting.

As witness my/our hand/s this ……………………............... day of .................................................... 2024

…………………………………

Signature(s)
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Please clearly mark the box below to instruct your proxy how to vote

NO. RESOLUTION: FOR AGAINST WITHHELD

1. To receive, consider and if thought fit, adopt the audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
December 2023 together with the reports of the Chairman, 
the Group Chief Executive Officer and the Auditors’ 
thereon.

Election of Directors:

2. Dr. James Boyd Mcfie having attained the age of seventy 
years, retires in accordance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance Practices for Issuers of Securities to the Public, 
2015 and being eligible, offers himself for re-election as 
Director of the Company.

3. In accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Articles 
of Association, Mr. Alert Sigei, who was appointed to fill a 
casual vacancy retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-election as Director of the Company.

4. In accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Articles of 
Association, Ms. Christine Muthui, who was appointed to 
fill a casual vacancy retires by rotation, and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-election as Director of the Company

5. In accordance with Article 102 of the Company’s Articles 
of Association, Ms. Leonie Von Elverfeldt, who was 
appointed to fill a casual vacancy retires by rotation, and 
being eligible, offers herself for re-election as Director of 
the Company

6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 769 of the Companies 
Act 2015, the following Directors being members of the 
Finance & Audit Committee, be elected to continue to serve 
as members of the said Committee: Mr. Albert Sigei, Ms. 
Christine Muthui, Mr. Chris Otundo, and Dr. James McFie.

7. To approve the remuneration of the Directors and Directors 
Remuneration Report ad Policy for the year ended 31 
December 2023.

8. To re-appoint Grant Thornton LLP to continue in office as 
the Company’s External Auditors for the ensuing financial 
year by virtue of Section 721(2) of the Companies Act 2015 
and to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration.
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provides a voice to society

MISSION

The Standard, The Nairobian, Standard Digital, KTN, KTN News, KTN 
Farmers TV, Btv, Radio Maisha, Spice FM, Vybez Radio and Berur FM.

PLATFORMS
OUR MEDIA
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ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS PREFERENCE FORM

Please complete in BLOCK CAPITALS

Full Name of Proxy (s): ……………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………....………..

	           Address: …………………………………………………………………….....................................................................

           Mobile Number: ...............................................................................................................................................................

                                Date: ……………………….................................... Signature: ……………………….......................................

Please tick ONE of the boxes below and return to Image Registrars at P.O. Box 9287-00100 Nairobi or 5th floor, Absa 
Towers (formerly Barclays Plaza), Loita Street:

Approval of Registration:
I/WE approve to register to participate in the virtual Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, 
02nd September 2024.

Consent for use of the Mobile Number provided:
I/WE would give my/our consent for the use of the mobile number provided for purposes of 
voting at the AGM

Notes:

1.	 As a member of the Company you are entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to exercise all or any of your rights to 
participate and vote at the Virtual AGM of the Company. You can only appoint a proxy using the procedures set out 
hereunder and/or in the notes to the AGM Notice.

2.	 Appointment of a proxy does not preclude you from participating in the meeting and voting in person. If you have 
appointed a proxy and participate in the meeting in person and vote, your proxy appointment will automatically be 
terminated.

3.	 To be valid, the proxy form should be completed, signed and delivered (together with a power of attorney or other 
authority (if any) under which it is assigned or a notarized certified copy of such power or authority) to Image Registrars, 
5th Floor Absa Towers (formerly Barclays Plaza), Loita Street and address P.O. Box 9287-00100, Nairobi, or emailed to 
info@image.co.ke not later than Friday, 30th August 2024 at 11.00 am or, in the case of a poll taken subsequent to the 
date of the meeting, or any adjourned meeting, not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the 
poll.

4.	 A proxy form must be in writing and in case of an individual shall be signed by the shareholder and in the case of a body 
corporate, the proxy form must be either under its common seal or the hand of an officer or duly authorized attorney 
of such corporate body.

5.	 A “vote withheld” option has been included on the form of proxy. The legal effect of choosing this option on any 
resolution is that you will be treated as not having voted on the relevant resolution. The number of votes in respect of 
which votes are withheld will, however, be counted and recorded, but disregarded in calculating the number of votes for 
or against each resolution.
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Standard Group Plc HQ Office, 
The Standard Group Center, 
Mombasa Road. 
P.O Box 30080-00100, 
Nairobi, Kenya. 
0719012111 
corporate@standardmedia.co.ke

www.standardmedia.co.ke


